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Five-Year Financial Summary

IFMBHE

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT

HLEE S

Year ended 31 December

BENANBLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
202145 20205 20194 20184 20174
ARETIE AREBTFLT ARETT AREFT ARETT
Revenue W zs 165,942 198,478 203,443 172,480 145,981
Cost of sales THERAR (126,748) (124,621) (136,539) (127,107) (118,826)
Gross profit EX 39,194 73,857 66,904 45,373 27,155
Profit before income tax B PR3 B AT &= F 24,080 52,593 49,075 36,090 19,023
Profit for the year attributable to 7N B A A FE{S
owners of the Company F N F 21,182 43,821 41,851 31,550 16,798
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT &GS BRI R
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December
R12A318
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
20214 20204 20194 20184 20174
ARETRT ARETT AREFTT ARETLT ARETT
Total assets BERE 380,215 300,020 234,423 233,139 207,951
Total liabilities aEBE (45,509) (77,069) (55,155) (105,178) (80,460)
Total equity R BE 334,706 222,951 179,268 127,961 127,491

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

LRI TEREEZEREMBEREN D

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BE#ERERAT*) —T—— 544§ 5



Chairman’s Statement
FEWRE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Deyun Holding Ltd. (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
to you the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) (and each being “we", “us” or “our
Group” for the purposes of this annual report as appropriate) for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”).

KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BEMKRR :

AN A 52 K KDeyun Holding Ltd. (28R AER A
A ((xaa)Es((EE) g ((EE]) X
Am ETRERARAREMBAR (FHEREE])
(BAFHRME - SEAIRMI £ (HEA))
HE2021F12A318EFE ([HREHE ) HF® -

TENBRHE

Year ended 31 December

BZE12B31ALLEE
2021 2020
(Audited) (Audited)
20214 20204
(BERK) (gez1%)
Revenue (RMB’000) W (AR FT) 165,942 198,478
Gross profit (RMB’000) EF(AREFT) 39,194 73,857
Profit before income tax (RMB’000) MRATISE AT S R (AREFT) 24,080 52,593
Profit for the year attributable to owners RRABHE AEGFEA G
of the Company (RMB’000) (AR®FT) 21,182 43,821
Earnings per share G2
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) -EARAREE(ARESD) 1.70 4.64

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are a long-established lace manufacturer and dyeing service
provider based in Fuzhou City, Fujian, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"). We are primarily engaged in manufacturing and sales
of lace to our customers to produce branded lingerie products on
order-by-order basis. For our dyeing services, our customers are
mainly lace and swim wear manufacturers who would provide us
with their own lace and swimwear fabrics to dye before further
fabrication. As part of our business diversification strategies, we
commenced our footwear trading business in Hong Kong during the
Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the global economy was gradually
recovering from the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (the
"COVID-19") and demand on lace products and dyeing services
from the PRC market remained stable. However, our financial
performance for the Reporting Period was adversely affected by the
following incidents.

*  For identification purpose only
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

In February 2021, a fire incident broke out in a dyeing factory in
Fujian and it raised the concerns of the relevant PRC government
authorities on fire safety. The dyeing factories in Fujian were ordered
to halt operations and enhance their fire protection measures. We
halted operations for approximately three weeks, which caused
interruptions to our production schedule and sales. The relevant
PRC government authorities were satisfied with our enhance
fire protection measures. Further, an outbreak of COVID-19 in
Guangdong Province in May 2021 caused interruptions to business
activities of some of our Guangdong-based customers, which in
turn negatively affected our sales performance for the first half of
2021.

In the second half of 2021, our production schedule and sales were
affected as (i) another dyeing factory in Fujian had a fire incident
and the dyeing factories in Fujian were once again ordered to halt
operations and enhance their fire protection measures; (i) factories
in the PRC were required under the power-cut policy of the PRC
government to reduce their electricity usage in order to meet the
environmental targets; and (iii) our gross profit margin for the
Reporting Period decreased as a result of rising cost of raw materials
and other production costs.

Overall, we recorded revenue of approximately RMB165.9 million
for the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of approximately
16.4% from approximately RMB198.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. Our net profit for the Reporting Period decreased
by approximately 51.7% to approximately RMB21.2 million from
approximately RMB43.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2020.

202128 - BE—HRERBEE NS
SRR EEE IS BT 2T - LR
BEMNABBIEESIEE  LANEH AHEKE -
BMELBERN=R BHRMANEEFTE X
6 AR B o AR AP B BT A BA S R P A ISR B X
LR E o AN 2021 FS A EERE B BN
COVD- 198 ELERELPMEBREHPE - 1
MERM2021F LEFNHEXETIEETE -

2021F THF - BIMEEEENHEEXIIZE
AROEBES —RAREENL  BERBRERE
BRMEE W AR AFE b ¢ (i) B BT H R B IR
FRERPETRRLDBEELEFIREREZ  Kii)
RS B E R R E R AR BN [ HM A E R AN A
m B e

BEMmME RMARBEHRNESRANDARE
16595 & 7T * WA E2020F12A31B ILFELHA
RH¥198 58 BT #916.4% » TP 7 TR & B A
B 48R B A E2020F12 A31H IEFERH AR
438BE TR LS TREHNARE212BE T °

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BB {ZRBMRDT*) — T - —FFR
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

OUTLOOK AND BUSINESS STRATEGY

Looking ahead, our business is supported by various market drivers,
including rising disposable income, growing retail value of women'’s
outerwear and lingerie, wider application of lace fabric, further
expansion of online retailing and improved trading efficiency
brought by the development of e-commerce. The government
authorities may also roll out more stringent environmental
protection policies from time to time and the lace dyeing industry
will become more concentrated.

We will strive our best to expand our revenue streams, reduce our
operating costs and identify appropriate business opportunities to
maximise the interests of the Company and its shareholders. We will
comply with any new laws, regulations and environmental policies
that are relevant to our business operations.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our colleagues for
their diligence, dedication, loyalty and integrity. | would also like to
thank all our shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and other
business associates for their trust and support.

By order of the Board
Deyun Holding Ltd.
Mr. Lin Minqgiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R W S AT

Bt % [l R
iy 2

AEBERETPREABERBEURIEENHE R
HE - AEENEFEFPIEREERKERER -
REBPGHNBREBO RN - FREBEZ T
BN - AEERBEFNERTERRE

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group provides dyeing services as well as sale and manufacture
of lace to its customers. The Group’s customers are mainly lace
and swim wear manufacturers. Substantial portion of the Group's
revenue are domestic sales. As part of the business diversification

strategies, the Group commenced its footwear trading business in HESER-
Hong Kong during the Reporting Period.
Revenue by product types 12 i B B &1 5 19 1K 7%

Breakdown of the Group's revenue by product types is as follows: AEBEIREDENS DB KEBAAET :

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
% of % of
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
20214 2020%F
AR¥ET T HlE% ARETIT W2 %
Dyeing PR 94,244 56.8 121,803 61.4
Lace tig
— High density -=RE 45,097 27.2 50,020 25.2
— Regular density —EBEE 11,064 6.6 26,655 13.4
Sub-total NeE 56,161 33.8 76,675 38.6
Sales of shoes EREHEE 15,537 9.4 - -
Total st 165,942 100.0 198,478 100.0
Revenue by geographical regions 7 BB 7 HY W 25
Breakdown of the Group's revenue by geographical regions is as  ZR&EiR & 2|5 IR AARN T
follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE
2021 2020
% of % of
RMB’000 revenue RMB’'000 revenue
20214 2020%F
ARET R HkE% ARETFT {51 % %
Domestic sales EE] 148,577 89.5 196,672 99.1
International sales SN EH 17,365 10.5 1,806 0.9
Total s 165,942 100.0 198,478 100.0

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BEERERDT*) — T - —F 5 R



Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEE R wm AT

Dyeing RE

The Group's dyeing revenue decreased by approximately 22.6% 7% B A 2B U 25 A B £2020F 12 A31H L F /E
from approximately RMB121.8 million for the year ended 31 HANRE121.8BE TR D £8922.6% % 3 & HAfE 4
December 2020 to approximately RMB94.2 million for the  ARM042F &7t TEHNATEM : ()20214F
Reporting Period, primarily attributable to the following incidents: 58 £ B & /8 2 WCOVID-19 EH KM — L ER
(i) an outbreak of COVID-19 in Guangdong Province in May BB ER FE R E - £ & FI2021F LFF
2021 caused interruptions to business activities of some of our K EXEELC BT E  (VHRESHAR BEW
Guangdong-based customers, which in turn negatively affected our ~ R E A XK BERREE SEEIL NEHE
sales performance for the first half of 2021; (i) two dyeing factories  BrfE1E + K (i) o BI BT 69 IR B BUR 25k p B TR
in Fujian had fire incidents and the dyeing factories in Fujian R FHAEENEIRREIZ - AR AL EHFR
were ordered to halt operations and enhance their fire protection ~ BEE @ BN A EFT S HEE  EEHREHNR
measures during the Reporting Period; and (iii) factories in the PRC & {FIAY & BE A UL A A IE T F% o

were required under the power-cut policy of the PRC government

to reduce their electricity usage in order to meet the environmental

targets. As a result of the fire incidents and the power-cut policy,

our production schedule was delayed, leading to a significant

decline in our production capacity and revenue for the Reporting

Period.

Lace TE#

The Group’s lace products are classified into (i) reqular density ~ ANEBEEEERD AMALE © BI()EEZE I

lace, and (i) high density lace. The lace revenue decreased by  R()&ZEE/EE - AR Ll RE - Ei2 W A E
approximately 26.8% from approximately RMB76.7 million for the ~ %2020 12A318 It FEH AR K76.78 BT

year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB56.2 million > #726.8% =3R4 B A REES6. 2B &L ©
for the Reporting Period for the reasons mentioned above.

Sales of shoes HEHE

The Group commenced a footwear trading business in Hong Kong ~ SR&EHIR  "EEEELEHESEZE HE - &%
during the Reporting Period and recorded revenue of approximately U A4 AREE1555 B 7T (20204 : )
RMB15.5 million (2020: nil).

Gross profit and gross profit margin EMRERNE

Gross profit decreased by approximately 46.9% from approximately ~ EF|f & £2020F 12318 L FEH AR #73.9
RMB73.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to  BA&ETTH D 4146.9% EREHHMOAREI02EE
approximately RMB39.2 million for the Reporting Period, primarily ~— JT° EEZHRABREETEERNHEE THE -
attributable to the decrease in sales of dyeing services and lace

products.

Gross profit margin decreased from approximately 37.2% for the — FEF| ZE & £2020F12A318 (- FE H#37.2%
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately 23.6% for the = TRHERIRE B AAI23.6% °
Reporting Period.

Other income Haug A

Other income decreased by approximately 63.5% from  HiUWABREHZE2020F12A31HIEFEHARE
approximately RMB5.3 million for the year ended 31 December  53E &L 463.5% = REHMOARE1.98
2020 to approximately RMB1.9 million for the Reporting Period, &7t ' TEHRRABAQARRMN i — KK
primarily attributable to the decrease in one-off government grants  fF#E Bh R FTEL ©

in relation to the listing of the shares of the Company.

10 Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2021



Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEE R wm AT

Other losses, net

The Group recorded net other losses of approximately RMB1.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 and such losses
increased to approximately RMB3.7 million for the Reporting
Period, primarily attributable to the increase in losses on disposal of
properties, plant and equipment.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of packaging
expenses and staff cost in relation to sales and marketing staff.
Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
6.1% from approximately RMB2.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to RMB2.4 million for the Reporting Period,
primarily attributable to the increase in packaging expenses.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately 53.2% from
approximately RMB22.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB10.3 million for the Reporting Period
as the Group recognised one-off listing expenses of approximately
RMB13.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Finance income/(costs), net

The Group recorded net finance costs of approximately RMBO.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 and net finance
income of approximately RMB1.4 million for the Reporting Period,
primarily attributable to the increase in Group’s cash and cash
equivalents after its successful listing that generated more interest
income.

Income tax expenses

Deyun Technology, principal operating subsidiary of the Group, is
recognised as a High and New Technology Enterprise* (&= # i1
%) and therefore entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and for the Reporting Period. During
the Reporting Period, Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at
the rate of 8.25% on the estimated assessable profits. The income
tax expenses decreased from approximately RMB8.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB2.9 million
for the Reporting Period, mainly due to the decrease in assessable
profits that were subject to PRC corporate income tax.

*  For identification purpose only

Hitb IR FHE

HZE2020F12A31MBILFE - AEBESEBEME
BFEANAREI6CEE L MBKEHMBHAERE
ENEHAREITEE L TEHREEME -
WS R 25 1 RO S 1R G AN FT B ©

HERDHAX

HERDERAITEZEPREERIABEREHES
MEBABMBEIRA - HERDHERATAEE
2020F 12 A3TB LEFEMHARB23E B TIL N
496 1% EAFEPNARB24ABE L TZHR
BEEREMETE -

TR X

THRAXBEEE2020F12831B I FEHNARE
221BEEBTH A H532% EHEHRBHARKE10.3
BET FZHRARANEEREE2020612A4
BNEEFERR A ETHIHOAREIZ3E

i —

BT
BMEWA S (RAE) FH

HE2020F12A31HLFE - NEBSE YK
KEFBEHARBO2AEE L  HEPRTBWATE
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TMEESRRSESEYEM ELETEZHF SR
)\ °

PR x
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M Bt E E2020F12A318 EFE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEE R wm AT

Effective income tax rate decreased from approximately 16.7% for ~ B TS K & £2020F12A31H L FE 4
the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately 12.0% for  16.7%8 2 EH & M 4912.0% = 2 AR E £2020
the Reporting Period, primarily attributable to the recognition of ~ F12A31H IEFEBR NI A — XM EHH
one-off listing expenses of approximately RMB13.3 million for the ~ X# AR®133HE T °

year ended 31 December 2020, which were non-deductible for tax

purpose.

Net profit and net profit margin FRAERFEFEE

As a result of foregoing, the Group’s net profit for the year ended B Eit I8 - NEBR B E£2020F12A318 1
31 December 2020 decreased from approximately RMB43.8  FEMNEFMNBHAHARKIBSHETLH I ERE
million to approximately RMB21.2 million for the Reporting Period. ~ HiRI# A R #2128 & T o /FF) B X B E £2020
Net profit margin decreased from approximately 22.1% for the ~ “F12831H I FE £22.1% F & = H & HE 4
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately 12.8% for the 12.8% °

Reporting Period.

Dividend RE

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the  ZEZE T EZEIHmEHRIRMRE (2020%F « #&) ©
Reporting Period (2020: nil).

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND nHE BEEXERREEAR
GEARING kb &
Net current assets REBEESFE

The Group had net current assets of approximately RMB177.3  F2021F12A31H - AR ENRBEEFELH A
million as at 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately RMB74.2  AR¥17738 & T (2020F - HYARBET42EHE
million). The current ratio of the Group increased from  JT) ° NEEAREN LR H2020512 A31HHIL2.0
approximately 2.0 times as at 31 December 2020 to approximately & £2021F 12 A31H B 495.11F - 1A2021F 124
5.1 times as at 31 December 2021. The increase in net current 318 B EEFEEME R L ENEZETE MR
assets and improvement of current ratio as at 31 December RIREHANIIR S RIS SEYIE NN EERITE
2021 was primarily attributable to the increase in cash and  FKFTE -

cash equivalents and repayment of bank borrowings during the

Reporting Period.

Cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and ReRREEEY ERREEERR
pledge of assets

The Group funds its business and working capital requirements by ~ AEBEBBFEFERRNTER ERRLTES
using a balanced mix of internal resources, borrowings and funds MEHEBREEEST R - AEBBFRTES
from listing. The Group will adjust its mix of funding mix depending ~ XAREBRFRFABRHEESLES -

on the costs of funding and its actual needs.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents 720216128318 » AEENBE S NI S SEY
of approximately RMB182.3 million (2020: approximately  #AAR®182.35 & T (20204 : £ AR #109.5
RMB109.5 million) and they were denominated in RMB, USD and ~ B&7T) * MARE « ELMETAHE -

HKD.

12 Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2021



Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEE R wm AT

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no bank borrowings
(2020: RMB13.0 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings carried
floating rates at 4.4% per annum. The Group's bank borrowings
as at 31 December 2020 were denominated in RMB and they
were secured by the Group's properties, plant and equipment with
carrying amount of approximately RMB19.4 million.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no undrawn banking
facilities (2020: RMB62.0 million).

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a gearing ratio of
nil, calculated by dividing total debt by total equity (2020:
approximately 5.8%). The decrease in the gearing ratio was
primarily due to the repayment of the Group’s bank borrowings.

Capital structure

As at the date of this announcement, the Company’s issued share
capital was HKD 12,600,000 and the number of issued shares of the
Company was 1,260,000,000 ordinary shares of HKD0.01 each.

Capital expenditure

For the Reporting Period, the Group incurred cash flows on capital
expenditures for the purchase of properties, plant and equipment in
the amount of approximately RMB35.2 million (2020: approximately
RMB2.0 million).

Foreign exchange risks and hedging

The majority of assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated
in RMB, USD and HKD, and there are no significant assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies. The Group is subject
to foreign exchange rate risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities which are
denominated in a currency other than RMB, which is the functional
currency of the major operating companies within the Group.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not hedge its foreign
currency exposure. The Group regularly monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitments
of approximately RMBO0.2 million in relation to the purchase of
properties, plant and equipment (2020: approximately RMB2.8
million).

R2021F 128318 » REBBEIR1TE K (2020 -
ARBI13.08ETT) °

720206128318 » AE B/ RITERIZZEF
FIEL 4%ET B - NEER2020F12 A31B KR 1T
BEFAARESE IUARNEBMEREOAAR
1948 BT - HFE REREERR -

R2021F12A8318 » AEB LA REIRITHE
4E (2020F « AR¥62.08&E L) ©

EERMBHLR

M2021F 128310 - AEBMEEAGL R AE
TR ERS AR AR 2 FERTE (2020 495.8%) ©
CEABUERTREIZANRAEBEERITER
FEL -

=N

RARERR  ARAFWEEITRZAAE12,600,000
BT ARAFREEITRME B &1,260,000,000
A% T A EEO.01/8 TR @AY -

EXRX

RREHE A5EREEVE BERREE
HEEARYESRENARE352HE T (20204 ¢
HAREB20EET) ©

S [ B B2 ¥ O

AEBENKHFLBEERABURARYE - T RE
TEHE Y EEMBEREERABNEMERG
B AEEEBREARBEXSIUARBERAAR
BN EE (RAKERTELERANINGEE
B)FHEMBEERAEMELNINEEXRR - ©
BEHRE AEEXEH PEIINERR - AEH
EHERINERR AR EFTESZSEETE
RIME R

EARER

R2021F12A31MH  AEERBEEYME  HEX
RENERNEAENBARK02BE T (20204 :
HARE28EETT) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEE R wm AT

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES HARBE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material 720214128310 "EB W EF M EAK KA
contingent liabilities (2020: nil). f& (20204F : £&) o

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY 18 & & 3 i B3R

The Group’s employees are generally remunerated by way of AEEMEE —BRUKEMEBETH TR ESY
fixed salary and they may also be entitled to a number of welfare Bl - F SR A KNS BER/H © BFETERIZ
benefits, including but not limited to job-nature based subsidy, = T{EHEE4 FHMEL EWEAL - BEHBRALE
performance-based bonus, paid leave and share options. The Group ~ f%#E - REB R AEEEL BFIELESREES
also make contributions to mandatory social security funds for its ~ # c AEB AEBRA —EFZEH TR#E
employees. The Group utilises an appraisal system for its employees — 1T#H £ 5 M E T L4 2R E & (H 5B B 5T
and considers the appraisal results of individual employees when  #Z&R - AlRESEBENEN  AEE AEEIRE
conducting their salary review and determining the amount of @ %I & F HiEEEH -

bonuses. To enhance the performance of the employees, the Group

provides its employees with adequate and regular trainings.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 495 employees (2020: 72021124318 + A £ B H£E495% (& 8 (2020
469 employees) and the Group's total employee benefit expenses £ : 469K R E) - NEFR R E LB IR E =T
(including directors’ emoluments) for the Reporting Period FX#B(BREZH) WAAREIZTIAET
amounted to approximately RMB37.1 million (2020: approximately (20204 : YA R¥37.7EET) °

RMB37.7 million).

PENSION SCHEME RBKEEE

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC ~ AEBRAPEKYHHBEAR  HESAEZ
are required to participate in a state-managed retirement benefit ~ FREIBF 4 ENE R TR EARBHE ([THELY
scheme (the “Defined Contribution Scheme”) operated by the — F&tEl]) - AEEBIREAH SR ANE T
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a certain L =Y F 2 Fat S -

percentage of basic payroll costs to the Defined Contribution

Scheme.

m 3 OB
DB B

The Group's contributions to the Defined Contribution Scheme — ANEEH FREEAENER 2SR EE
vest fully and immediately with the employees. Accordingly, (i)  FTH ° &It - (VEE=T-_—F+=-A=+—HL
for the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no forfeiture of ~ 4F[& + I % & B8 i Sk 5T 8178 T &9 (4 308 B2 U
contributions under the Defined Contribution Scheme; and (i) there  R(INARZZE=Z—F+=—A=+—H KAEB L&
were no forfeited contributions available for the Group to reduce its 8 Ut 7 - 7] AR K F Rt FEt 2108 A ¢
existing level of contributions to the Defined Contribution Scheme — FX7KF o £ 5K AR & & B8 1 3k 51 &1 48 Bl & X FE 1+ 65
as at 31 December 2021. The contributions are charged to profit Bz o

or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the

Defined Contribution Scheme.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL EARE - EARKBRHEE
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed herein, the Group did not have any significant B@$Q%\ﬁﬁ%}§z?§%§7l\ P ARER R E AR ET
investments, material acquisitions and disposals during the AEARE BERABERLE -
Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEE R wm AT

FUTURE PLANS FOR MAJOR INVESTMENT

During the Reporting Period, save for the expansion plans as
disclosed in the sections headed “Business” and “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated
28 December 2020, the Group had no specific plan for major
investment or acquisition for major capital assets or other
businesses. However, the Group will continue to identify new
opportunities for business development.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

Net proceeds from the initial public offering (the “IPO"), after
deducting underwriting commissions and other relevant expenses,
amounted to approximately HKD85.6 million. As at 31 December
2021, the net proceeds from the IPO had been applied as follows:

EXARENRRKTE

PSR - B2 R B E§A20209F12 8288 1)
BRER((BRERDEB] RIRKTERAE
HERRZEHEENERTEN  AEERE
BEARESRBEEREARAEENHMEHBHAE
ETEl- AT AEBEBBEDCTERERHES -

BEXARBREMSERERR

KRB HEAe REMBBRASE BEAAFRE
E(ERALAHAZE]) MBHRIBEFELNASES
BT o BLE20215F 128318 BERAHBERE
FBFRHECE T XEA

Net proceeds Unused Timeframe
Planned used asat  balance as at for the
use of  31December 31 December unused
Planned use of net proceeds net proceeds 2021 2021 balance
BZ201%F
BB 12A31AH BZ2021%F
NERE 2B 12A318 RE AL
HEMGRACHA B2 MERERE ADAEH R R &
HKD million ~ HKD million ~ HKD million
EEET EEET BEET
Expand dyeing service capacity and enhance  BBAH  EALEE
efficiency by way of upgrading, replacing WRREBRT AR By end of 2022
and acquiring machineries and facilities FRis8e ) BB FHCK 499 17.2 327 202K
Strengthen research and development MBLERBOHELRL N
capability and quality control for dyeing REHREE By end of 2022
services 3.4 15 19 202255
Replace a coal-burning-boiler by a URARIIEFLME By end of 2022
natural-gas- boiler i) 13.6 5.1 85  202FEA
Expand integrated enterprise planning RRGaGEERAZ N/A
resource system 25 09 09 - A
Repayment of bank loan BRETER N/A
9.5 9.5 - TER
General working capital —-REEES N/A
8.3 8.3 - TER
85.6 42.5 43.1

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has applied the net proceeds
from the IPO in the manner and proportion set out in the prospectus
of the Company dated 28 December 2020.

HZE2021F128318  AEEEBEARNGIHEE
202012 A28 BBl ERRH FrE 5 2\ R L I E) A
BIXAFABERSHIBETE -

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BEERERDT*) — T - —F 5 R
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIBE RS

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD HREHEEER

The Group does not have any important events after the Reporting ~ ZAREBEN RSB B ERNER B W BEREAS
Period and up to the date of this annual report. 15 ©

THE COVID-19 OUTBREAK'S IMPACT COVID- 19 EHN &

Although the risk that PRC to experience another large-scale  EERBEKFE R —15AIRKECOVID-19Z 15 H) EFE +E
COVID-19 outbreak is relatively low, certain regional outbreaks can  ¥EE - {B 3 Lk 15 M 1E B4 ) Al R S AN 2 E A (i
still negatively and substantially affect the supply chain system of the WEGEFEENEATE - AR XIEEMFRLL
Group. To minimise such risk, the management has implemented HER - BIEEER2021FEE AT :

the following measures in 2021:

(i)  setting up epidemic prevention mechanism, enhancing the () BSZFIEHS]  hEAETHMEFASTHE A

hygienic level of our production plant and office, actively MR EBEDAE THEER - 2KESETLE
monitoring the body temperature of the employees, MR ARMEA S - nE T MRS - WS
requesting our employees to wear masks at all time during BB T#E7TCOVID- 198 H#ETE

work and report promptly whenever they feel unwell and
encouraging the employees to take the COVID-19 vaccination;

(i) further improving the automation rate of the production (i) #E—HIESEEBEHEARE - BB 4EE
process to reduce the reliance on production workers; T AHIEE 5

(i) exploring and approaching more alternative suppliers, (i) FERWEBEZHSAEER @ BEENETE

adequately increasing the stock volume of particular raw EME R BEMBEFE - By EEEEERE
materials and packaging materials to prevent disruption of P B R T i A A A R T -

production caused by late delivery of a single supplier.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

==
=

EXENESREREREN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Mingiang (#kEK38), aged 66, is an executive Director and
the chairman of the Board. Mr. Lin Mingiang is also our controlling
shareholder and a director of all of the subsidiaries of our Group. He
is responsible for the strategic planning and overall budget of our
Group.

Mr. Lin Mingiang has over 32 years of experience in the fabrics
weaving and dyeing business. Mr. Lin Mingiang was the committee
member of the Party Branch of Longxia Village of Changle District
in Fuzhou from April 1978 to August 1992. In August 1988,
Mr. Lin Mingiang took the role of the factory director of “Changle
Warp Knitted Fabrics Factory”, a collective enterprise established
in Fujian, which subsequently reformed as a limited liability
company and changed its name into Fujian Changle Xingsheng
Warpknitted Fabrics Co., Ltd.* ({B2& REMERSREEMBR
A7) (“Xingsheng”) in October 1996. Mr. Lin Mingiang was the
executive director and the manager of Xingsheng from October
1996 to January 2006. After Deyun merged with Xingsheng by
way of absorption. Mr. Lin Mingiang was appointed as a director of
Deyun in January 2006. Over the years, he has been responsible for
planning the company strategy and overall budget of Deyun.

Mr. Lin Mingiang was awarded the certificate of completion
of the course of Business Information Strategy and Knowledge
Management CEO Advanced Training Class by School of
Information Science and Technology, Tsinghua University in July
2005.

Mr. Lin Mingiang is the father of Ms. Lin Lili. Mr. Lin Mingiang is the
brother-in-law of Mr. Lin Bingzhong, the uncle of Mr. Lin Chaowen
and Mr. Lin Chaowei. Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr. Lin
Mingiang is not connected with any other Directors or members of
the senior management of our Company.

*  For identification purpose only

HITES

MEBELE 665 HAITEETNESTEIF M
RoBFEENRIERBR R AN EEPTE K E AR
Ex -RABAKENRBRIINEREE -

MRBEERMREIER P2 EITERABIANF
KB o M978FA R 1992498 ME R LA A
BINRERETNEDHZESHKE - 1198848
A MREEAEETIRETEEEYR] (—HR
BREAKIMEEBEE  HEM9eFI0AER
BERARNTEZRAREERETHEREREEGED
BRAT(THEE])) WK - R19965 10 A 22006
F1A MRAELEETERNAITESRLEE -
2006518 BESBRFEERSHE MR
MAEEEZTABENES -ZHFM HEERE
B AR BRI R EEEE -

PRER 58 58 A 20055F 7 A 175 3£ K25 BRI BRIl
BRI THCEERBBENMNTRARIR
MHETIM S EESE -

MERBEEBMFFZ L 2R - MRBEE R
ROFEMER - ML ERMAR T LR
R BRAEHABEEEIN  MERBEEEARRFE
MEMEEATREEEKNEMERE -

RREXEE %l
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Mr. Lin Chaowei (#&8{&), aged 51, is our controlling shareholder
and executive Director. Mr. Lin Chaowei was appointed as a Director
of our Company on 17 February 2020 and was re-designated as
our Executive Director on 20 March 2020. He is responsible for the
overall business development and marketing strategy of our Group.

Mr. Lin Chaowei has over 32 years of experience in the fabrics
weaving and dyeing industry. Mr. Lin Chaowei served as an
employee, then the factory deputy director and the deputy general
manager at Xingsheng from October 1988 to December 2002. In
December 2002, he joined Deyun as a director and the general
manager where he has been responsible for making marketing
strategy, liaising with clients for business contracts, planning overall
budgets, administering site operations, and monitoring the safety
and health issues arising from production since then.

Mr. Lin Chaowei was awarded the certificate of completion of the
course of Corporate Leadership Advanced Training Class by Peking
University Private Economic Research Institute in May 2017.

Mr. Lin Chaowei is the nephew of Mr. Lin Mingiang, the cousin of
Mr. Lin Chaowen and Ms. Lin Lili. Saved as disclosed in this section,
Mr. Lin Chaowei is not connected with any other Directors or
members of the senior management of our Company.

Mr. Lin Chaowen (#E3X), aged 57, is our controlling shareholder
and executive Director. Mr. Lin Chaowen was appointed as
a Director of our Company on 17 February 2020 and was
re-designated as our Executive Director on 20 March 2020. He is
responsible for overseeing the purchasing aspects of our Group.

Mr. Lin Chaowen has over 36 years of experience in the fabrics
weaving and dyeing industry. He was a staff of Changle County
Chemical Fiber Weaving Factory from October 1984 to August
1988. From October 1988 to January 2006, he took the position
of the deputy general manager of Xingsheng. Mr. Lin Chaowen
joined Deyun in January 2006 as a deputy general manager and
has been a director of Deyun since then, where he gained extensive
knowledge and experience in the fabrics weaving and dyeing
industry. He has been primarily responsible for managing suppliers
and communicating with suppliers on product procurement.

Mr. Lin Chaowen is the nephew of Mr. Lin Mingiang, the cousin of
Mr. Lin Chaowei and Ms. Lin Lili. Saved as disclosed in this section,
Mr. Lin Chaowen is not connected with any other Directors or
members of the senior management of our Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENARERERERFS

Mr. Lin Bingzhong (%% ®), aged 57, is our controlling
shareholder and executive Director. Mr. Lin Bingzhong was
appointed as a Director of our Company on 17 February 2020 and
was re-designated as our Executive Director on 20 March 2020. He
is responsible for overseeing and managing the technical aspects of
our Group.

Mr. Lin Bingzhong has over 20 years of experience in the fabrics
weaving and dyeing industry. Mr. Lin Bingzhong was the shop
assistant and then the executive of Changle District Supply and
Marketing Cooperative in Fuzhou from November 1980 to
December 1999. From January 2000 to December 2002, Mr. Lin
Bingzhong was the business manager of Xingsheng. Mr. Lin
Bingzhong joined Deyun in December 2002 as a director and the
deputy general manager. He has been supervising and managing
the technical affairs of Deyun since then.

Mr. Lin Bingzhong is the brother-in-law of Mr. Lin Mingiang and
the uncle of Ms. Lin Lili. Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr. Lin
Bingzhong is not connected with any other Directors or members of
the senior management of our Company.

Mr. Wei Cunzhuo (B774), aged 58, is an Executive Director.
Mr. Wei Cunzhuo was appointed as a Director of our Company
on 17 February 2020 and was re-designated as our executive
Director on 20 March 2020. He is responsible for the financial and
administration functions of our Group.

Mr. Wei Cunzhuo has over 26 years of experience in the accounting
position in the weaving and dyeing industry. Mr. Wei Cunzhuo
was the accountant of Changle City Association of Supply and
Marketing Cooperatives since August 1983. From March 1994
to January 2006, Mr. Wei Cunzhuo was the financial manager of
Xingsheng. Mr. Wei Cunzhuo joined Deyun in January 2006 as
the chief financial officer and the manager of the administration
department, and he has been appointed as a director and has been
managing the financial work, coordinating financial institutions and
handling human resources issues of Deyun since then.

Mr. Wei Cunzhuo obtained his graduation certificate in Financial
Accounting major from Jingiang District Supply and Marketing
School in July 1983.

Mr. Wei Cunzhuo is not connected with any other Directors or
members of the senior management of our Company.
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Ms. Lin Lili (BRF0%]), aged 39, is an Executive Director and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee. Ms. Lin Lili was appointed
as a Director of our Company on 17 February 2020 and was
redesignated as our executive Director on 20 March 2020. She is
responsible for the information disclosure of our Group.

Ms. Lin was a lecturer in the Foreign Language College of Jimei
University in Xiamen from March 2009 to March 2016. In April
2016, she took the position of the secretary of the board of Deyun.

Ms. Lin obtained her Master of Arts degree from Xiamen University
in June 2008. She obtained the certificate for the qualifications
of teachers in institutions of higher learning from the Education
Department of Fujian in December 2011.

Ms. Lin Lili is the daughter of Mr. Lin Mingiang and the niece of
Mr. Lin Bingzhong. Ms. Lin Lili is the cousin of Mr. Lin Chaowei and
Mr. Lin Chaowen. Saved as disclosed in this section, Ms. Lin Lili is
not connected with any other Directors or members of the senior
management of our Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sheng Zijiu (B ¥ ), aged 77, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director, a member of the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee on 16 December 2020. Mr. Sheng Zijiu is
primarily responsible for supervising the management of our Group
independently.

Mr. Sheng Zijiu has over 53 years of experience in the fabrics
weaving and dyeing industry. Mr. Sheng was the deputy
director of the chief engineers department in Changde Textile
Machinery Company Limited from September 1968 to April 1987.
Subsequently Mr. Sheng took the position of the deputy general
manager of Zhejiang Textile Machinery Industry Company Limited,
the deputy president of Zhejiang Textile Machinery Industry
Association and the head of Zhejiang Textile Machinery Quality
Supervision and Inspection Center from April 1987 to September
1997. He then worked in Shanghai Chunchao Industry Company
Limited as the project participant for the preparation and operation
of knitting and woven projects from September 1999 to July 2003.

Mr. Sheng is currently working in Zhejiang Fangzheng Textile

Machinery Testing Center Company Limited and Quality Appraisal
Center as the company consultant.
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Mr. Sheng Zijiu obtained his Bachelor’s degree majoring in textile
machinery design from Donghua University in July 1967. He was
awarded the qualification certificate of senior engineer by the
Zhejiang Light Industry Engineering and Technical Personnel of
Senior Position Assessing Committee in August 1993. From January
1993 to January 1998, he was a member of the Zhejiang Provincial
People’s Congress.

Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr. Sheng Zijiu is not connected
with any other Directors or members of the senior management of
our Company.

Mr. Chow Kit Ting (A#E), aged 37, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee on
16 December 2020. Mr. Chow Kit Ting is primarily responsible
for supervising the management of our Group independently.
Mr. Chow has over 14 years of experience in accounting, corporate
finance, compliance and company secretarial matters. Mr. Chow
previously worked in the audit department of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from September 2007 to March 2015 and last held the
position of manager. Mr. Chow subsequently took the position
of the financial controller and company secretary of Link Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 8237) from March 2015 to January 2016. He then
acted the financial controller and company secretary of Kin Shing
Holdings Limited, a company listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1630) from February 2016 to August 2018.
Afterwards, he joined a private company, HY Technology Holding
Limited as its financial controller from August 2018 to December
2019 and was re-designated to Hua Yu (S) Pte. Ltd. since January
2020 until December 2020. He has been appointed as the financial
controller and company secretary of Rich River Holdings Limited
since July 2020 and September 2020, respectively. Mr. Chow has
also been an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong
Aerospace Technology Group Limited (formerly known as Eternity
Technology Holding Limited), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1725), from July 2018 to July
2021.

Mr. Chow obtained his Bachelor’s degree of commerce majoring in
accountancy from Macquarie University in November 2007. He is a
member of the Certified Public Accountants (CPA) Australia and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr. Chow Kit Ting is not
connected with any other Directors or members of the senior
management of our Company.
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Mr. Yip Koon Shing (E® M), aged 56, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and of the Nomination Committee on 16 December 2020. Mr. Yip
Koon Shing is primarily responsible for supervising the management
of our Group independently.

Mr. Yip has over 26 years of experience in business development
and management in the transportation and logistics industry.
Mr. Yip was an executive of 3M Cogent Systems Inc. from March
1987 to January 1991. From April 1992 to June 1997, he worked
in Jardine Matheson & Co. and last held the position of assistant
general manager and chief representative of Jardine Transport
Services Group. At this position, Mr. Yip was mainly responsible for
managing business and operations of the entity and acting as key
liaison with overseas in managing business in China. Subsequently,
Mr. Yip started his own company, Good One Logistics Group, in
July 1997 and has been acting as its founder and chief advisor since
then.

Mr. Yip is currently also an independent non-executive director of
Orange Tour Cultural Holding Limited, a company listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8627).

Mr. Yip obtained his Bachelor of Science in business administration
degree from California State Polytechnic University, Pomona in June
1988 and his master of business administration degree from Loyola
Marymount University in May 1992.

Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr. Yip Koon Shing is not
connected with any other Directors or members of the senior
management of our Company.
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Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund (E#7%), aged 37, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director, a member
of the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee on 16 December 2020. Mr. Wong is
primarily responsible for supervising the management of our Group
independently.

Mr. Wong has over 14 years of accounting and corporate
management experience. Mr. Wong joined Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as audit associate in September 2007 and left as audit
senior in November 2011. He then took the position of audit
manager of Patrick Wong CPA Limited from February 2012 and has
been its practising director since March 2013. Mr. Wong has also
been an independent non-executive director of InvesTech Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1087), from 5 June 2017 to 14 May 2021 and an
independent non-executive director of Confidence Intelligence
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1967), since 20 September 2019.

Mr. Wong obtained his Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from
Hong Kong Baptist University in November 2007, Master of Science
in Applied Accounting and Finance from Hong Kong Baptist
University in November 2013, Master of Business Administration
from The Open University of Hong Kong in October 2016 and
Master of Corporate Governance from The Open University of Hong
Kong in August 2017. Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administration.

Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr. Wong Chun Shek Edmund is
not connected with any other Directors or members of the senior
management of our Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Guangqiang (:23£38), aged 43, has been our business
manager of lace sales since March 2016. He is primarily responsible
for managing the sales, promotion and management of our lace
products.

Mr. Wu has over 21 years of experience in the sales, purchase and
management of textile products. Before joining our Group, he
worked in the dyeing factory of Sun Hing Industries Holding Limited
from March 2000 to March 2001, and then he was transferred to
Sun Hing Elastic and Lace Factory Limited as the group leader. In
August 2002, Mr. Wu became a senior salesman in the business
department of Sun Hing Industries Holding Limited. Subsequently,
in September 2006, he took the position of assistant manager of
the purchasing department at Chung Tai Garment Factory and as
a special assistant to the general manager and factory director as
his last position. From December 2011 to March 2016, Mr. Wu was
the business manager of Xiamen Liying Knitting Co., Ltd. In March
2016, Mr. Wu joined Deyun as the business manager of lace sales
and has been working with us since then.

Ms. Wang Guangyan (E ¥ #), aged 44, has been our director
of weaving factory since May 2015. She is primarily responsible
for managing the manufacturing and operations of the weaving
factory.

Ms. Wang has over 24 years of experience in the manufacturing
and management of textiles industry. Prior to joining Deyun, she
was the workshop director in Qinghong Fuging Lace Co., Ltd. In
March 2000, Ms. Wang joined Changle Yongyi Lace Co., Ltd as
a workshop director. She then took her position as production
manager of Changle Xinyu Lace Co., Ltd. In May 2015, Ms. Wang
Guangyan joined Deyun as the director of the weaving factory and
has been working with us since then.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Xu Jing (##}), aged 44, was appointed as our company
secretary on 20 February 2020. She is responsible for our Group’s
company secretarial duties and corporate governance matters in
relation to our Company.

Ms. Xu has over 19 years of experience in the corporate services
field. Ms. Xu has been a company secretary of Dafeng Port Heshun
Technology Company Limited (stock code: 8310) since May 2016.
Ms. Xu has also been a company secretary of Fullsun International
Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock code:627) since April 2021.
She is responsible for supervising the company secretarial teams
to provide a full range of listed and private company secretarial
services as director in a local enterprise service provider in Hong
Kong, Excellent Enterprise Services Limited. Prior to her current
position, Ms. Xu was a company secretary of Hong Kong
Aerospace Technology Group Limited (formerly known as Eternity
Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 1725) from February
2018 to December 2019. Ms. Xu was a company secretary and a
financial internal control audit director at China Health Group Inc.,
a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
8225) from December 2015 to June 2016. She also worked as a
chief financial officer at Shenzhen Jiantao Technology Company
Limited from February 2012 to April 2015. During June 2007 to
March 2012, Ms. Xu took the position of the financial director
and a qualified accountant at Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong
Bio-Technique Company Limited, a company listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8329). From July 2002 to May
2007, Ms. Xu worked at Yulong Computer Telecommunication
Scientific (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (the wholly owned subsidiary of a
Hong Kong listed company, Coolpad Group Limited (stock code:
2369), formerly known as China Wireless Technologies Limited) as
the company accountant.

Ms. Xu obtained her Bachelor of Administration degree from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in June 2002. Ms. Xu
was awarded the certificate of certified public accountant by
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in October
2003. Ms. Xu has been a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certificated Accountants since September 2013. Ms. Xu has
also been a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since July 2016.
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The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance
for enhancing the management of the Company as well as
preserving the interests of its shareholders as a whole. The Company
has adopted a set of corporate governance practices which aligns
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of The Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code during the Reporting Period.

The Board will continue to review and improve the corporate
governance practices of the Group to ensure compliance with the
CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed that, following
specific enquiry by the Company, they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code for the Reporting
Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DUTIES

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During
the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed and discussed the
corporate governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of the corporate governance policy of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provisions A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Lin Mingiang is the chairman of the Board and executive
Director, who has a pivotal role to the Board in relation to the
management, strategic planning and overall budget of our Group.

The Company has not appointed any chief executive officer. The
daily operation and management of the Company is monitored
by the executive Directors and the senior management. The
Board considers the present structure is more suitable for the
Company because it can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Company’s strategies.

CG Code provision A.2.7 stipulates that the chairman should at least
annually hold meetings with independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other directors. During the Reporting
Period, the Company has conducted such meeting.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the
fields of accounting, finance, business and corporate governance.
Their skills, expertise and number in the Board ensure that strong
independent views and judgement are brought in the Board's
deliberations and that such views and judgement carry weight in the
Board’s decision-making process. Their presence and participation
also enable the Board to maintain high standards of compliance in
financial and other mandatory reporting requirements, and provide
adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

The Company annually assesses the independence of each
independent non-executive Director during their terms of
appointment. The Company received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.
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THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises six executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. The Board’'s composition

during the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report 21T :
is set out as follows:
Executive Directors HITES

28

Date of joining

Name Age Gender the Group Roles and responsibilities

i Fie Al MAKREEARH AERBE

Mr. Lin Mingiang 66 Male 23 January 2006 Overseeing the management, strategic
planning and overall budget of our Group

NN 665% % 2006%1H23H ERAEENER KRB REEREA

Mr. Lin Chaowei 51 Male 11 December 2002 Overseeing the business development and
marketing strategy of our Group

e & 515% % 2002F12A11H ERAREENERER NS HRE

Mr. Lin Chaowen 57 Male 11 December 2002 Overseeing the purchasing aspects of our
Group

MREAX S 4 575% % 2002F12A11H ERASENRESEE

Mr. Lin Bingzhong 57 Male 11 December 2002 Overseeing and managing the technical
aspects of our Group

MERBEE 575% % 2002%F12F11H ERREBAEENRINER

Mr. Wei Cunzhuo 58 Male 11 December 2002 Overseeing the financial and administration
department of our Group

BENRE 581% % 2002%12F11H BN E 0 B 7% R AT BRI

Ms. Lin Lili 39 Female 1 April 2016 Overseeing the information disclosure of
our Group; serves as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee

MRFIH £ 395% Z  2016F4A1H ERAEENERNKEE  EEREEESE
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Name

HA

Age
FHR

Gender

1 5l

BYFHTES

Date of joining
the Group
A A S B H

Roles and responsibilities

AERBE

Mr. Sheng Zijiu

BFNEE

Mr. Chow Kit Ting

AE s

Mr. Yip Koon Shing

E s

Mr. Wong Chun Sek

Edmund

HIEEEE

Biographical details of the members of the Board and relationship
between members of the Board are set out in the section headed

77

775

37

375%

56

565%

37

375%

Male

i

Male

i

Male

38

Male

|==]
73

16 December 2020

2020512 816H

16 December 2020

2020512 A 16H

16 December 2020

202012 16H

16 December 2020

202012 H16H

“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this

annual report.

Supervising and providing independent
advice to our Group; serves on the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee

EEREERMARRBEIER  EEER
ZEg REZEQeRFMEEEKE

Supervising and providing independent advice
to our Group; serves as the chairman
of the Audit Committee; serves on the
Remuneration Committee

EEARBRARRMBYER  EEEX
ZEEIR  EEFMEEEKE

Supervising and providing independent advice
to our Group; serves as the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee; serves on
the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee

EEAEERMERHBYER  EEFH
ZEGXR EIEZZEgRREEEE

B E

Supervising and providing independent
advice to our Group; serves on the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee

EEARERMARMEIER  EEF
ZZEEg  RELZEeRFMEEgXE
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The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects
the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group and for
effective leadership as the executive Directors possess extensive
experience in managing the Group’s business operations; and
professional knowledge in the fabrics weaving and dyeing industry,
while the four independent non-executive Directors possess
professional knowledge and broad experience in accounting,
finance, business and corporate governance. The Directors are
of the opinion that the current Board structure can ensure the
independence and objectivity of the Board and also safeguard the
interests of the Company and its shareholders.

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times met the
requirement of the Listing Rules of having a minimum of three
independent non- executive Directors (representing at least
one-third of the Board) with one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company. It oversees the Group’s business, strategic decisions,
financial performance and internal controls and it is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. The Board shall make decisions objectively
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders. Daily business
operations and management, inter alia, the implementation of
strategies are delegated to the executive Directors along with other
senior management. They report periodically to the Board their
work and business decisions.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors has signed a letter of appointment with our Company
up to a term of three years commencing from 16 December 2020,
which may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the letter
of appointment.
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Pursuant to article 112 of the articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles”), at any time or from time to time, the Board shall
have the power to appoint any person as a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy on the Board or as an additional Director to the
existing Board subject to any maximum number of Directors, if
any, as may be determined by the members in a general meeting.
Any Director so appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of our Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director so appointed as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the first annual general meeting of our Company
after his appointment and be eligible for re-election at such
meeting. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall not be taken
into account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.

Pursuant to article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation. However, if the number of Directors is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one
third shall be the number of retiring Directors. The Directors to retire
in each year shall be those who have been in office longest since
their last re-election or appointment but, as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot.

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the
Company before the expiration of his term of office (but without
prejudice to any claim which such Director may have for damages
for any breach of any contract between him and the Company) and
the Company may by ordinary resolution appoint another in his
place.

Pursuant to articles 108(a) of the Articles, Mr. Wei Cunzhuo, Ms. Lin
Lili, Mr. Yip Koon Shing and Mr.Wong Chun Sek Edmund will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM").
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

To enhance the effectiveness of our Board and to maintain high
standard of corporate governance, the Company has adopted a
board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets
out the objective and approach to achieve and maintain diversity of
the Board. The Board Diversity Policy sets out the criteria in selecting
candidates to the Board, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Company is also committed to adopting a similar approach to
promote diversity of the management (including but not limited to
the senior management) to enhance the effectiveness of corporate
governance. The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and
skills, including knowledge and experience in the areas of fabrics
weaving and dyeing, transportation and logistics auditing and
accounting, business administration. Furthermore, the Directors
range from 37 years old to 77 years old, and comprise 9 males and
1 female.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring the diversity
of Board members and compliance with relevant codes governing
board diversity under the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
will review the Board Diversity Policy and diversity profile (including
gender balance) from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revision
that may be required and recommend any such revisions to the
Board. The Company will also disclose in the corporate governance
report on the Board’s composition under diversified perspectives on
an annual basis.

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2021

EEEIRLEE

RREREFEURERFERKFINEEER K&
REAEHRMEFTEZTHBR ((ESEZ LK
K] BEREINRERRRBEEEZ LW A
BhiEE EFTESTEBRRIARBREETSR
BANBRE BERETRRERN  Fik Xk
BEER Bk HELR KL ABLREF
Hl - REREREEANRELAIREETSHEDN
BB ERE -

ARBITFBARFRBUST A CEETEE (21FE
TERSRERE) L - WEFABEERHK
Mo BEEZRANMBRREDEERL  2EMHH
BEMAE BHLYMREBEFTREF EBERE
BN B AR o WA BENFITRETTIHR
BREEBE T RIAL L -

REZEGABTHRESENEZ T RETD
EEATATREEESZ LLWMEBTR - 2
FEREERTRRIESEEZ TEBRERZ T
B (BREERNSE)  EREESE N - REZ
Bl mEmMAEAELNEr] TNEES
REBITNHEBER ARBANSEFNEEE
AMERREZTCEHEEERIEN



Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) for the Nomination Committee to consider and make
recommendations on suitable candidates for directorship.

Selection criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

(1) reputation for integrity;

(2) accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

(3) commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

(4) diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and educational
background and length of service;

(5) qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy;

(6) the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

(7) requirement for the Board to have independent non- executive
directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.08, 3.09 and
3.13 of the Listing Rules;

(8) Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for
achieving diversity on the Board; and

(9) such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

The aforesaid factors are for reference only, and not meant to
be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person as it considers appropriate.
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Procedures for nominating director

Subject to the provisions in the Articles and the Listing Rules, if the
Board recognises the need for an additional Director or a member of
senior management, the following procedures will be followed:

(1) The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify
potential candidates based on the criteria as set out in the
selection criteria, possibly with assistance from external
agencies and/or advisors;

(2) The Nomination Committee and/or the company secretary
of the Company will provide the Board with the biographical
details and details of the relationship between the candidate
and the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills
and experience, other positions which involve significant time
commitment and any other particulars required by the Listing
Rules, the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and other
regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to
the Board;

(3) The Nomination Committee will make recommendation to
the Board on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and
conditions of the appointment;

(4) The Nomination Committee should ensure that the proposed
candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the Board, being
particularly mindful of gender balance;

(5) In the case of the appointment of an independent non-
executive director, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board should obtain all information in relation to the
proposed Director to allow the Board to adequately assess the
independence of the Director in accordance with the factors
set out in Rules 3.08, 3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
subject to any amendments as may be made by the Stock
Exchange from time to time; and

(6) The Board will then deliberate and decide on the appointment

based upon the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee.
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Monitoring and reporting

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the
Nomination Policy and reports to the Board annually.

PROCEEDINGS OF GENERAL MEETINGS,
BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD
COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Board may meet for the dispatch of business, adjourn and
otherwise regulate its meeting and proceedings as it thinks fit
and may determine the quorum necessary for the transaction of
business. An AGM shall be called by at least 20 clear business days’
notice in writing, and a general meeting of the Company, other
than an AGM, shall be called by at least 14 days’ notice in writing.
The notice shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served or
deemed to be served and of the day for which it is given, and must
specify the time, place and agenda of the meeting and particulars of
the resolution(s) to be considered at that meeting and, in the case of
special business, the general nature of that business.

A meeting of the Board or any committee of the Board may be held
by means of such telephone, electronic or other communication
facilities as permit all persons participating in the meeting.

A Director shall not vote (nor shall he be counted in the quorum)
on any resolution of the Board in respect of any contract or
arrangement or proposal in which he or any of his close associate(s)
has/have a material interest, and if he shall do so his vote shall
not be counted (nor shall he be counted in the quorum for that
resolution).

At least four regular Board meetings involving active participation,
either in person or through electronic means of communication, of a
majority of Directors will be held at approximately quarterly intervals
in each financial year to comply with code provision A.1.1 of the
CG Code. All Directors will have the opportunity to include matters
in the agenda for the regular board meetings. Written notice of
at least 14 days will be given of a regular board meeting to all
directors, and agenda and accompanying board papers will be sent
to all directors at least 3 days before the intended date of meeting.
Four Board meetings were held during the Reporting Period.

ERRER

RAZESEEERLERENAUTER LBFRA
ExgER-

BRRAE ESESTBERESEZ
EEERNREER

EEeRARRAEN T ABHERRESER
BehUEMTAREEGALZERF LA
ETREEBAFTNEEAR - ARAAHARKRRE
BFERE BARBRIEAZBEXAMNER
B MERBIRBEAREIN  ARAAHEMRE
RETMEARPEVVAENEEBA - HAIAR °
BARPLTEBRXERREREZER  TTEE
HHBAER BBAAIBRITEHENKRE
WHEFRARBNG EEZNRBARNOFE
AR EE - AARAABERN —RILE -

EFONEFRR TAMNEAGTERES B
FREMBHRE (VAR BEE AT EARE)
BITEH -

EETERAHESEERNETHEARAEAN
BENERNEOALHIEENTANESTSRE
RREIGFAEZEARA > MHESEHEM Lt
RBRKE  BRZARBRNREB T ER
N BZREER T AEEAR

RESTEEERTRTAEXEAILUGE RAAF
BREVRERERTEINRAENEFTEEH
ROBF—R BHHEERARYBESERSY
HESIAEFBALAERSE 2 REFHK
EREREEMATHEEEEANARE - EH
EFEERBELRAURETBNLRBES
TARREREHESS X BN SHRE R B
EPIRBERTERES - ARARBERMET
MAEEEGH

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BB {ZRBMRDT*) — T - —FFR

35



36

Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings of the Company held during the Reporting
Period are set out in the table below:

RBEHE SEERAARNRTNEFERE
FEZARUAOREREHNTR

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEREEERH

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
EEpE g EREES REZEE YHEES
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Lin Mingiang MR E 4/4 - _ _
Mr. Lin Chaowei MERE &AL 4/4 - _ _
Mr. Lin Chaowen MEAN e 4/4 - - -
Mr. Lin Bingzhong MR EE 4/4 - - -
Mr. Wei Cunzhuo BRENSEE 4/4 - - -
Mes. Lin Lili MFF Z £ 4/4 - 171 -
Independent Non-Executive B EHITES

Directors

Mr. Sheng Zijiu BFNEE 4/4 2/2 11 11
Mr. Chow Kit Ting EEELE 4/4 2/2 - 11
Mr. Yip Koon Shing B 4/4 2/2 11 11
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund H=EBEE 4/4 2/2 11 11

The management has been providing all members of the Board a
monthly update in accordance with code provision C.1.2 of the CG
Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”), for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company's affairs. All committees have been established
with defined written terms of reference, which were posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk) and the
Company (www.ds-lace.com). All committees should report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations made. All committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and,
upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Audit Committee

The Group established the Audit Committee on 16 December 2020
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules and paragraph C3 and paragraph D3 of the Code as
set forth in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Chow Kit Ting, who holds
the appropriate professional qualifications as required under Rules
3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules and have three other members,
namely Mr. Sheng Zijiu, Mr. Yip Koon Shing and Mr. Wong Chun
Sek Edmund.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not
limited to, the following: (i) assisting the Board by providing an
independent view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management systems of the
Group; (i) overseeing the audit process and performing other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board; (iii) developing
and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance;
(iv) making recommendations to the Board; and (v) ensuring
that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held two
meeting and the work performed by the Audit Committee was
summarised as follows:

(1) reviewed the Company’s interim results and annual results;

(2) reviewed the findings and recommendations from external
auditors;

(3) reviewed the independence and engagement of the external
auditors;

(4) reviewed the audit plan, the development in new accounting
standards and their impact on the Group’s financial
performance and position;

(5) reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff in the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting functions; and

(6) reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the
Company the annual results and annual report of the Company for
the Reporting Period, including accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and discussed internal controls and financial
reporting matters. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting
Period comply with applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 16
December 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph B1 of the Code as set forth in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Yip Koon Shing, and
have three other members, namely Mr. Sheng Zijiu, Mr. Wong Chun
Sek Edmund and Mr. Chow Kit Ting.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but are
not limited to, the following: (i) making recommendations to the
Board on our policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;
(i) determining the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors; and (iii)
reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration proposal
with reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting to review the performance and remuneration packages
and emoluments of the Directors and senior management and
considered that they are fair and reasonable during the Reporting
Period.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 16
December 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph A5 of the Code as set forth in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Ms. Lin Lili, and have three
other members, namely Mr. Sheng Zijiu, Mr. Yip Koon Shing and
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund.

The primary duties of our Nomination Committee include, but
are not limited to, the following: (i) reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board; (ii) assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; (iii) making recommendations
to the Board on matters relating to the appointment and re-
appointment of Director; and (iv) reviewing the Board Diversity
Policy.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting and the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessing the independence of
independence non-executive Directors, and reviewed the Board
Diversity Policy and other matters of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which aims to ensure sustainable development of its
business operations and to provide a favorable return to its
shareholders.

The declaration and payment of future dividends will be subject to
the decision of the Board having regard to various factors, including
but not limited to the Group’s business operation and financial
performance, profitability, business development, prospect, capital
requirements, and economic outlook. Declaration and payment
of dividends is also subject to any applicable laws and the Articles.
The dividend distribution record in the past may not be used as
a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may
be declared or paid by the Board in the future. Currently, the
Group does not have a fixed dividend policy and does not have a
pre-determined dividend distribution action.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time as the Board thinks fit and
necessary. The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Company that any dividend will be paid
in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has delegated the corporate governance function to the
Audit Committee, whose authorities include:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

3. toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4.  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The corporate governance policy is formulated with an emphasis on
the Board's quality, effective internal control, stringent disclosure
practices and transparency and accountability to all shareholders
of the Company. The Board strives to comply with the code
provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy regularly in
order to maintain high standards of business ethics and corporate
governance, and to ensure the full compliance of the Group's
operations with applicable laws and regulations.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the CG Code provision A.6.5, all Directors should
participate in a programme of continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company recommends and/or arranges the Directors to participate
in Director’s training courses in order to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. In addition, the Company also provides
relevant reading materials to the Directors for their studying and
reference. All Directors, namely Mr. Lin Mingiang, Mr. Lin Chaowei,
Mr. Lin Chaowen, Mr. Lin Bingzhong, Mr. Wei Cunzhuo, Ms. Lin
Lili, Mr. Sheng Zijiu, Mr. Chow Kit Ting, Mr. Yip Koon Shing and
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund confirmed that they have complied
with the CG Code provision A.6.5 during the Reporting Period by
attending seminars and briefings and reading relevant materials.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers, as its
external auditor for the Reporting Period. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
external auditor. During the Reporting Period, the fees payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of its audit services and
non-audit services provided to the Company were approximately
RMB1.8 million and nil, respectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Reporting Period. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Reporting
Period, the Directors:

o assessed the reasonableness of preparing the consolidated
financial statements taking into consideration the Group's
financial performance, position, cash flows and liquidity ratios;

e  selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

o made judgements and estimates in a prudent, fair and
reasonable manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The statement
of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” from page 99
to page 101 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk management and internal control

The Group maintains an effective internal control and risk
management system to safeguard the investment of the Company’s
shareholders and the Group's assets at all times.

The Directors acknowledge that they have overall responsibility for
overseeing the Company’s internal control, financial control and
risk management system and shall monitor its effectiveness on an
ongoing basis. A review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems will be conducted by the Board at least
annually.
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The Company has established the following risk management
procedures to provide reasonable assurance against material errors,
losses or fraud:

(1) Identify risks: Identify major and significant risks that could
affect the achievement of goals of the Group;

(2) Risk assessment: Assess and evaluate the identified risk
according to its likely impact and the likelihood of occurrence;
and

(3) Risk mitigation: Develop effective control activities to mitigate
the risks.

Risk identification and assessment are performed or updated
annually, and the results of risk assessment, evaluation and
mitigation of each function or operation are documented to
communicate to the Board and management for reviews.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems
are, however, designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

A review on the internal control systems of the Company,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions has been carried out by an independent
consultancy company. The independent consultancy company has
conducted analysis and independent assessment on the adequacy
and the effectiveness of the internal control system and risk
management of the Group, and has submitted the findings and
recommendations to the Audit Committee and the Board. Over the
Audit Committee meeting and Board meeting held on 25 March
2022, the Audit Committee and the Board reviewed the report
issued by independent consultancy company and they are of the
view that the internal control measures in place are adequate and
effective to safeguard the interest of Company’s shareholders and
the Group's assets.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. Taking into
account the size, nature and complexity of the Group's business,
the Board have sufficient capacity to oversee the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control
system and to assess its effectiveness, and accordingly there is no
immediate need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group.
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The Group has implemented a policy on disclosure of inside
information which sets out the procedures and internal controls
for handling and dissemination of inside information. The policy
provides guidelines to the Directors and all relevant employees
of the Group to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It
also includes appropriate internal control and reporting systems to
identify and assess potential inside information.

Key procedures in place include:

(1) define the requirements of periodic financial and operational
reporting to the Board to enable them to assess inside
information and make timely disclosures, if necessary;

(2) controls the access to inside information by employees on a
need-to-know basis, and safeguarding the confidentiality of
the inside information before it is properly disclosed to public;
and

(3) procedures of communicating with the Group's stakeholders
in ways which are in compliance with the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Xu Jing was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 20 February 2020 and she is responsible for the
Group’s company secretarial duties and corporate governance
matters in relation to the Company. Ms. Xu possesses the necessary
qualification and experience, and is capable of performing the
functions of a company secretary. During the Reporting Period,
Ms. Xu confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training as required under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. The biographical details of Ms. Xu are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An AGM
of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may
be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an
AGM, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, extraordinary general meetings
may be convened on the requisition of one or more members
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the secretary of the Company for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the company secretary at the Company'’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
SHAREHOLDERS" MEETINGS

Shareholders of the Company are requested to follow article 64 of
the Articles for including a resolution at an extraordinary general
meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out above in
the paragraph headed “Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting”.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person (other than a
retiring Director) shall, unless recommended by the Board for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
at the head office of the Company or at the Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office of the Company. The period for
lodgement of such notices will commence no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the date
of such general meeting and the minimum length of the period
during which such notices to the Company may be given will be at
least seven days.
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The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a Director is posted on the website of the
Company. Shareholders or the Company may refer to the above
procedures for putting forward any other proposals at general
meetings.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
shareholders. Information of the Company is disseminated to the
shareholders in the following manner:

o Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all
shareholders;

o Publication of announcements on the annual and interim
results on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

e The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.

The Company has in place a shareholder communication policy to
ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential
investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and
the public. Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by
post to the Company’s head office. The Company also maintains
a website at www.ds-lace.com where up-to-date information and
updates of the Company’s operations, performances and strategies
are available to public access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 16 December 2020, the Company adopted an amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association which had
been uploaded to the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Save as disclosed above, there had been no changes in
the constitutional documents of the Company during the Reporting
Period.

ARARRRRERER-ALTZBEZNHEFTEHR
AR B o PR A R R A 25 Ll R K
SREEMEMERNER -

REEBR

ARAHNBTAMN  FHBBRARREAE
AR TR « AL FEB T 55 R AR RS
R

s MMEBRRZXEZFERTHEERRSE

s RELTRAINKSEREET RAR
W RBXABETIEFERPHEER
AR TR MR ERBRBE - &

Al#
==
=

ARAREARTAEEGERENE LR
AR -

ARRFEREREERGR MAEARRERER
BEREENER RANBOSUEEE )
ERARREEZ WHESSRARRAMENM
AB AHFEARRENEE AQANRE
ub (4841 Awww.ds-lace.com)  TIH ZH &R K&
EMANTEE RBERKE  UEARERN -

MEERXH

72020128168 * AR R EFRMLIERT R E T A
MEEHERAMRAR WD EHNEAR RER
Friguh o Br EXXCFTETEEI A RARNAKER
MR RS BRI ) o

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BB {ZRBMRDT*) — T - —FFR

45



46

RIE - g MERRE

COMPANY PROFILE

Deyun Holding Ltd. (the “Company” and its subsidiaries,
collectively the “Group”) is an investment holding company.
Fujian Deyun Technology Co., Ltd.* (R Z{EERIHRBR A R)) is the
Group's principal operating subsidiary and it is principally engaged
in manufacturing and sales of lace. Its services and products can
be broadly categorised into two types, namely, (i) dyeing services
and (ii) lace manufacturing. As part of the Group’s business
diversification strategies, the Group commenced its footwear
trading business in Hong Kong during the year ended 31 December
2021.

REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE

The Group presents its Environmental, Social and Governance (the
"ESG") report. This report captures the ESG performance of the
Group from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Based on the principle of materiality, the scope of this report
concentrates on the Group’s business in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC") where the Group principally derives its
revenue. All the PRC companies of the Group were included in
the assessment of ESG performance for the purpose of this report.
The scope of this report does not cover the Group’s operations
outside the PRC as they are immaterial and do not have significant
environmental and social impacts.

BASIS FOR COMPILATION OF THE REPORT

This report was prepared with reference to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

*  For identification purpose only
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ESG REPORTING PRINCIPLES

Materiality: In compliance with the requirements of materiality
principle defined by the Stock Exchange, the ESG issues considered
by the board of directors (the “Board”) and the ESG working
group, stakeholders communication, identification process of
substantive issues and the substantive issues are disclosed in this
report, further details of which are set out in the corresponding part
of this report.

Quantitative: Statistical standards, methods, assumptions and/or
calculation tools for quantitative key performance indicators herein
and source of conversion factors are all explained below.

Balance: This report shall provide an unbiased picture of the
Group's performance during the reporting period and should
avoid selections, omissions, or presentation formats that may
inappropriately influence the decision or judgment made by the
report readers.

Consistency: The statistical methodologies applied to the data
disclosed in this report shall be consistent.

ESG GOVERNANCE

The Group acknowledges the importance of ESG commitment and
it takes ESG into consideration in its decision making process. The
Group has developed an ESG governance structure to integrate
ESG into its business operations and align ESG governance with its
strategic growth. The ESG governance structure is divided into two
components, namely the Board and an ESG working group.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy
and reporting. It oversees the overall governance and progress
of the Group’s ESG management system, policies, commitments,
strategies and objectives. It also participates in the evaluation and
determination of ESG-related risks. The Group implemented ESG
management system and policies to ensure compliance with the
relevant environmental protection laws and regulations, achieve
other ESG objectives and mitigate ESG-related risks. It also formed
a designated ESG working group to oversee and monitor the
implementation and effectiveness of the ESG management system
and policies. The ESG working group reports to the Board regularly.
In order to evaluate, prioritise and manage the Group’s material ESG
issues, the Board discusses and reviews the Group’s ESG-related
risks, performance, progress, goals and targets regularly with the
assistance of the ESG working group. The Board reviewed the
contents disclosed in this report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT Eh&EzsHE

The Group listens to its stakeholders as their contributions are ~ AEEHEEHHENTR  BAFRSHNEBHA
critical to the Group's long-term success and development. The SEEBEMRHKNIMERZHFEZ - ALBRAS
Group communicates with its stakeholders regularly through diverse ~ TERETFTHEBFHEBR U THRESHEIL
channels to understand their concerns and respond in a timely — MBS EE TR ANEBMBROTZEESHD
manner. The table below sets forth the key stakeholders identified & » W /AR A EEESGE &G MM BT HEM -
by the Group and provides the basis for identifying ESG substantive

issues of the Group.

Stakeholders Expectations and concerns Management responses
BE HMEREY EEERE
Shareholders e Actin the best interest of shareholders e  Actively identify attractive business
[ o RBRELEMNZITE opportunities
e Return on investment o ERYWe AR HHEK
o IHEMEWR e Improve profitability
e Information disclosure o WMEATEE
o BERFEE e Regular information disclosure
e Compliance with laws and regulations o FHIERHEE
o BSPEEER e Enhance risk management and internal
controls

o NoBJERRE TR K A ER 1 I

Governments and e Compliance with laws and regulations e Enhance risk management and internal
regulatory bodies o ESPERER controls
BT R BB 18 e Business and economic development o N3RS E IR K A ER
o EBRKEERE e Regular update on relevant laws and
e Social contribution regulations
o HEHR o TFHEMMEBIAEEMR
e Fulfilment of tax obligations e Pay tax in full and on time
o BIIMBES o IREFBREHB
e Environment protection e Purchase/upgrade facilities to reduce emissions
o IRIFRE arising from the production process
o HE AMRBURSEERREREENG
b
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Stakeholders Expectations and concerns Management responses

A HMEREY EEE R E
Employees e Employee compensation and benefits e Offer attractive salary and incentives based on
== o BITHM&ERN performance
e Training and career development o IREBFEFZREERS NOFKKREE
o HIIRBEERE Provide regular trainings for employees
e Safe working environment RETEE T
o LTERTEIIRIE Monitor work safety and make sure employees
are familiar with the work safety handbook
ERETHELZ2URRE TABRIEL2FM
Customers e Quality products and services Enhance quality control on production process
LS o BEEmMRE and products
e Protection of customers rights MR A ERENREMNESEH
o REZFEF Perform the contract according to law
EBH
Suppliers e Integrity cooperation Build a long-term reliable supply chain
fpEn o MIEEIE B RHTERNHERE
e Business ethics and credibility Perform the contract according to law
o FFRBRTHEHE BEBH)

Communities/public
& A

Environmental protection
RIERE
Employment opportunities

MRS

Reduce environmental pollutions
ROBASR

Purchase/upgrade facilities to reduce emissions
arising from the production process

BE ARREARDEEBIZETEENH
i

Provide equal employment opportunities

REHEFENRRES
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49



50

BRI - L@ MEARE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The ESG working group reviews the Group’s operations and
identifies relevant ESG issues and assesses the importance of related
matters to its businesses and stakeholders. The ESG working group
collected information and views from relevant departments and

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EER MR

ESGI{E/NEA T & 7N & B /5 & I 74 B A8 BEES Gk
B WS EEBRFNENETEE -
ESGTENEBEALEMRANIIRFHEKREE

BEER  UH#BIEAESGERE - TRHIENH

stakeholders of the Group to identify significant ESG issues. The — ¥ EZ|FH) A EE B KESGHE :
table below sets forth the Group's significant ESG issues based on

their relative importance:

ESG aspects as set forth in ESG Reporting Guide
ESGH &HI5 5| HSIMESGH H

The Group’s significant ESG issues

AEBENEKRESGEE

(A) Environmental

(A) BE

A1 Emissions

ATHERR

A2 Use of Resources

A2E R A

A3 Environment and Natural Resources
ASRIF R RAE IR

A4 Climate Change
AAEIR B

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2021

Air pollutant emissions

22585 R

Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions
RERE(DRERE]) BER
Sewage treatment

J5IKERER

Hazardous wastes management

BERENER

Energy management
BERER
Water management
AKRER

Negative environmental impacts arising from business
operations

EBBELELNAARRTE

Global warming
2IRBE
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ESG aspects as set forth in ESG Reporting Guide
ESGH &H15 5| B MWESGH E
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The Group’s significant ESG issues

REBENEKRESGEE

(B) Social
(B) &

B1 Employment
BIE(R

B2 Health and Safety
B2 R &2

B3 Development and Training
B3% & K& I

B4 Labour Standards
B4%5 T %8|

B5 Supply Chain Management
Bofit & 3 & I8

B6 Product Responsibility
B6E m & fE

B7 Anti-corruption
B7TR &S

B8 Community Investment
B8t [@ IR &

Recruitment, promotion, and dismissal Compensation and
benefits

B~ B R R E B AR A

Equal opportunities, diversity, and anti-discrimination
FERE - SR RRIER

Safety production management
TEEETR

Employee development and training
B TR KE

Prevention of child and forced labour

P1bE T Rogblgs T

Supply chain management

HrEEER

Product quality and safety
EmZERLE
Customer satisfaction

EPMEE

Anti-corruption, fraud prevention and anti-money laundering
R&ET - REGFF R REE

Corporate social responsibility
TELTEET

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group confirmed
that it has established appropriate and effective management
policies and internal control systems for ESG issues and confirmed
that the disclosed contents comply with the requirements of the
ESG Reporting Guide.

CONTACT US

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and
suggestions. You can provide valuable advice in respect of this
report or the Group'’s performances in sustainable development to
No. 97 Longjiangnan Road Longxia Village, Songxia Town Changle
District, Fuzhou Fujian, the PRC.

HZE2021F12A31HIEFE  AEERREDH
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ENVIRONMENT

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to protect the
environment and it has implemented policies to reduce
emissions and improve the efficiency in the use of resources.

The Group's business is subject to various PRC environmental
protection laws and regulations as well as environmental
regulations promulgated by the local governments where the
Group operates. Under the prevailing laws and regulations
in the PRC, the Group is subject to provisions including
Environmental Protection law of the PRC (FF % A R A FNEIIR
IR %), Promotion of Cleaner Production Law of the PRC
(FEEAREMEERAEE(REEE), Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the PRC (%= AR HERMBINS P58
’%), Prevention and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution
Law of the PRC (R A R EMBEIRIFRESLPAE), and
Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution Law of the
PRC (FFZE A R ALFNEI[E B8 B )5 IR B A5).

To ensure compliance with the latest environmental laws
and regulations, the Group has implemented stringent
environmental protection policies setting out its goals and
policies in relation to environmental matters. The Group has
also installed air filtration facilities and sewage treatment
system to reduce emissions. The Group obtained a certificate
for complying with the requirement of GB/T 24001 — 2016/
ISO14001:2015 for its environmental management system on
11 October 2018.

The Group is required under the PRC law to obtain a valid
pollutant discharge permit for its production facilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
obtained all relevant pollutant discharge permit and it
complied with all applicable PRC environmental laws and
regulations in all material respects and had not been subject to
any material penalty in relation to environmental protection.
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A.1 Emissions

Emissions from the Group’s production process include
air pollutants, sewage and solid waste.

In order to reduce the level of pollution, the Group
has installed air filtration facilities to filter air pollutants
generated from coal-burning-boiler and a sewage
treatment system to collect and process sewage to
reduce hazardous substance in the sewage generated
during the dyeing process and in accordance with
different national standards (GB 13271-2014 for
air and GB 4287-2012 for wastewater) in the PRC,
which are comparable to corresponding international
standards. An online real-time monitoring system
has also been installed to connect such facilities to
environmental authority of the PRC government,
ensuring that the Group can satisfy with the pollutant
emission standard at all times. The Group has been
spending continuous effort to enhance its equipment
and facilities for satisfying the increasingly stringent
environmental protection requirement. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not exceed
any maximum pollutants emission standards under the
monitoring system and maintained a clean record with
the government.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, for
compliance with the requirement of Fujian government,
the Group upgraded its boilers to generate heat
from natural gas for its dyeing services, which would
significantly reduce the amount of air pollutants emitted.

To complement with the use of natural-gas-boiler,
the Group also acquired some crucial waste treatment
equipment, including flue gas purifying treatment
machines which can transform and filter the
concentrated smoke produced by its natural-gas-boiler
to less harmful substances and water vapour. These new
equipment allows the Group to control the amount of
pollutants emitted to the environment in a more stable
way and fulfil the discharge standard stipulated by the
PRC government.

A.1HER

AEBEERETOHRBRERIGR
)~ BEOKKERRERY) o

BRASLRE - AR EEAEEEERAE
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Besides, the Group has a number of vehicles for
transportation of materials and products, which generate
exhaust gas from the combustion of petrol and diesel.
The Group’s emission reduction measures for vehicles
include:

(i)

turn off the engine when the vehicle is not in use;

plan routes ahead of time to reduce route
repetition and optimise fuel consumption;

undergo maintenance service regularly to ensure
optimal engine performance and fuel use; and

optimise operational procedures to increase
efficiency and reduce vehicle idling rates

Air pollutant emissions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, air
pollutants generated from the use of the Group’s
coal-burning-boiler contributed to the emission
of 28.33 kg (2020: 20.21 kg) of nitrogen oxides
(NO,), 29.09 kg (2020: 20.75 kg) of sulphur oxides
(SO, and 4.74 kg (2020: 3.38 kg) of respiratory
suspended particles (PM), and air pollutants
generated from the use of the Group’s motor
vehicles contributed to the emission of 157.68 kg
(2020: 101.02 kg) of nitrogen oxides (NO)), 0.40
kg (2020: 0.18 kg) of sulphur oxides (SO,) and
13.64 kg (2020: 9.72 kqg) of respiratory suspended
particles (PM). The Group targets that the amounts
of air pollutants generated from the Group's
coal-burning-boiler and motor vehicles in 2022 will
not be significantly higher than 2021.
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(ii) GHG emissions
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group's activities contributed to 53,508.62 tonnes
(2020: 43,162.72 tonnes) of carbon dioxide
equivalent (carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide
and hydrofluorocarbons) GHG emissions. The
table below sets forth details of the Group’s GHG

emissions by scope:

(i) BEREHK

HE2021F 128310 IHEE - K&
B 2 7% 0% 8 B 453,508.62M8(2020
£ :43,162.72) —EtiggE (=
Stk B —|EZAaREHR
e AEREHER - TX
Y AEEIZBERESNBEERE

BEPREIS -

For the year ended
31 December 2021

For the year ended
31 December 2020

Bz0215F EZ2020F
12A318 LFE 12A31BILEFE
Scope of GHG emissions Unit Emission Emission
BERBIERER B BHRE HHE
Scope 1 Direct emissions tCOe 38,226.33 27,267.03
BENVEEHN 1 k= |44
Consumption of coal during the use of
coal-burning-boiler
MR E G R BT e ROR R
Consumption of petrol and diesel for tCOe 64.44 29.30
mobile vehicles M-altikEs
BB b RS EE
Use of refrigerant tCOe - 90.50
HRBER B_EliEE
Scope 2 Indirect emissions
BE2REHN
Purchased electricity tCOe 14,932.53 15,661.26
SNEEN M-Stz e
Scope 3 Other indirect emissions
EE3HMREESEN
Paper waste disposal tCOe 0.96 0.96
ERRE 1 k= |44
Water consumption tCOe 284.36 113.27
kg 1 k= | 4=
Business air travel tCOe - 0.40
ABER 1 k= |44
Total GHG emissions 1COe 53,508.62 43,162.72
BEREHRAE M-E{BEER
Intensity tCO,e/employee (note 3) 108.10 92.03
BE W-S{BEE S (MH3)
tCO,e/product (tonnes) (note 4) 5.27 334

B-S{BER ER (W) (K4
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Notes:

Q) GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon
dioxide equivalent and are based on, but not limited
to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the
World Resources Institute and the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare
an ESG Report — Appendix II: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange,
the latest released emission factors of China’s regional
power grid basis.

(2)  The above emission data does not include the removal
of CO, contributed by recycling of paper.

(3)  As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 495 (2020:
469) fulltime employees in total. The data is also used
for calculating other intensity data.

(4)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group produced/processed 10,163 tonnes (2020:
12,935.68 tonnes) of products. The data is also used for
calculating other intensity data.

Scope 1 — Direct emissions

Scope 1 direct emissions are generated from the
use of the Group's coal-burning-boiler, motor
vehicles and refrigerant. The Group is taking the
proactive measures to reduce these emissions and
these measures are set out in the section headed
“A.1 Emissions” above.

Scope 2 — Indirect emissions

Scope 2 indirect emissions are generated from the
use of purchased electricity. Measures to reduce
these emissions are set out in the section headed
“A.2 Use of resources” below.

Scope 3 - Other indirect emissions

Scope 3 other indirect emissions are generated
from paper consumption, water consumption
and business air travel. The Group will only
choose air travel when considered necessary.
Teleconferencing and network conferencing are
the Group’s preferred means of communication
to reduce the frequency of travel. The measures to
reduce paper and water consumption are set out in
the section headed “A.2 Use of resources” below.
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(iii) Sewage discharge

Sewage is generated during the Group’s dyeing
process. Sewage is treated and discharged in
accordance with the Discharge Standard of Water
Pollutant for Dyeing and Finishing of Textile
Industry (K% 4 2 28 T 3% /K05 2 W HE R 2E)).
Measures to reduce hazardous substance in the
sewage generated during the dyeing process are
set out in the section headed “A.1 Emissions”
above. The table below sets forth details of the
Group's sewage discharge:

(i) 5K HEHK

REBRRAEBETGELITK
BARBBRABIENTEY
BERUR ) fR 3 R BE TR BE K - B A
BAORBIBIETIELBKNES
WEEREN EXTAIPER] —
B o TR AEBASKBERGF

&

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2020

BZE2021F #F2020%F

12A31BLFE 12A31BIEFE

Sewage discharge Unit Intensity Intensity

75 KB B mE E

CODcr Mg/l £7 /Tt 26.00 29.89

Ammonia nitrogen Mg/l £7,/ Ft 2.00 3.89
AR

Total nitrogen Mg/l £7,/ Ft 3.20 4.66
HBA

The Group targets that the amounts of the Group's
sewage discharge in 2022 will not be significantly
higher than 2021.

(iv) Hazardous and non-hazardous waste

Hazardous waste of the Group includes waste
mineral oil, effluent and packaging materials
contaminated by dye. Non-hazardous waste of the
Group includes residual coal, sludge, paper and
packaging materials.

Apart from the above air pollutants and sewage
treatments, the Group has adopted practices in
relation to the separation, collection, storage
and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste in order to minimise environmental
impact. In particular, the Group has engaged
external service providers qualified by the relevant
environmental authorities of the PRC government
for (i) purification, transportation and disposal
of the sludge generated from waste water; and
(i) collection and disposal of the residual coal
produced from our coal-burning boiler for further
recycling purpose.

AEBEMEBEEZEANEEN2022
FHSKEREETEBEESR
20214 -

(iv) BEREZEEY

AEBENBEEEEYBERERY
o BRI RNBEY
e AEBNEERRMEEEY
B O5E - R KB

B bl 22 E5 4 K5 K BRI -
NEBORBREBEELES
EMoB - WRE BFEREENE
B UASRAREMRDHIRENY
B rHR AEBERELHH
WFABREEE IR A BN
RIS B H()F - B8 R
BREKELNSE  Ri)VKERE
EERPOMREREEENRES
B DA — S BRI A e
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The Group also adopted certain measures in
relation to consumption of paper and packaging
products including:

o Make use of computer system for
general transaction notification and data
transmission;

o Use both sides of paper as much as possible;

o Dispose of waste packaging boxes as
recyclable waste; and

o Increase the use of recycled paper.

During the two years ended 31 December
2021, the Group did not receive any complaints
or warnings on disposal of its hazardous and
non-hazardous waste and the Group targets
to reduce the amounts of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste generated in 2022.

The table below sets forth details of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste of the Group:

AEE TR AR N B R H R R
BE T 8%

e FHAEMAMET KBRS
BN BB EE

o EWREEAEMmA

s HEREKMEAEKER
mERE K&

o HNGE A EIMKAL -

B E2021%12A8318 It R A F
B AEENRKEFAEBREE
BEREZEEYNRFHES
RAREE®EBERBN2022F 7 2
BEREZTEEYNELS -

TRESIAEENEE R EEE
WS -

Types of hazardous and For the year ended For the year ended
non-hazardous waste Unit 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
gz0215 #Z2020F
BERBERRVER By 12AMBLEE ANALFE
Waste mineral oil tonnes 0.78 0.89
R WE
Effluent tonnes 0.46 0.53
Ak e
Packaging materials contaminated by dye tonnes 0.64 0.66
BARDTRHBEME E
Residual coal tonnes 786.54 797.81
EH) g
Sludge tonnes 697.87 696.63
Ak 0
Paper and packaging materials tonnes 200.00 200.00
HRRBEME U
Total waste tonnes 1,686.29 1,696.52
BEEY W
Intensity tonnes/employee 3.41 3.62
BE W,/ &S
tonnes/product (tonnes) 0.17 0.13
W,/ Em(H)
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A.2 Use of resources

The Group strives to minimise the impact of its business
operations on the environment by adopting measures to
conserve energy during the manufacturing and dyeing.
Such measures include practices to limit electricity
and water wastage, guidelines on permitted usage of
electronic equipment by employees and utilisation of
equipment which is energy-efficient.

Energy management

The Group actively implements the concept of energy
saving, emission reduction, and maintain efficient
use of resources through following the methods and
measures for energy saving. Through practicing active
management control in its operations, the Group
strives to prevent pollution by using environmentally
friendly materials, producing green products, and
implementing technological innovations. The Group has
also implemented strategies to reduce the consumption
of petrol and diesel (see section headed “A.1 Emissions”)
and achieve electricity conservation and efficient
use of electricity. The strategies to achieve electricity
conservation and efficient use of electricity are as
follows:

° Conserve electricity and turn off unnecessary
lighting power;

° Minimise energy consumption when equipment is
not in production;

e Avoid premature start-up of equipment and idling
of equipment; and

e  Assure the cooling effect of air conditioning
equipment by proper maintenance.

A2 &R 7 A

AEBBBRREBNEERREIBRER
RETRIBEIR - B AR EEBEZLHIRR
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The table below sets forth details of energy consumption
of the Group:

R B A B BB FERES

For the year ended For the year ended
Types of energy consumption Unit 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
220215 EHZ2020F
ERERES By 12A31R LFE 12A31BILFE
Direct energy consumption
BEEERER
— Petrol and diesel litre 26,295 12,324
Ay e 7t
Intensity litre/employee 53.12 26.28
BE #/EE
litre/product (tonnes) 2.59 0.95
#/Em ()
Indirect energy consumption
HERER
— Purchased electricity kilowatt hours 17,846,940 18,717,889
—NEEN TR
Intensity kilowatt hours/employee 36,054.42 39,910.21
BE TRE/ES
kilowatt hours/product (tonnes) 1,756.07 1,447.00
TRE/ER(H)
Water management FKEE

The Group consumes water during its production process
and for office use. In addition to the aforesaid measures
related to the discharge of sewage, the Group also
encourages all employees to develop a habit of conscious
water use and implements the following water-saving
measures:

e  Formulate specific guidelines and measures for
water conservation based on the characteristics of
water consumption; and

. Inspect and maintain water storage, distribution,
and consumption facilities regularly, and promptly
solve problems identified to prevent wastage of
water resources.

During the two years ended 31 December 2021, the
Group did not encounter any issues in water sourcing.
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The table below sets forth details of water consumption
of the Group:

TREIIAREERKFEFE

For the year ended For the year ended

Unit 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
5220215 HZE2020F
By 12A31ALEE 12B318ILEE
Water tonnes 339,856 135,377
K e
Intensity tonnes/employee
BE W/ EE 686.58 283,65
tonnes/product (tonnes)
W,/ Em () 33.44 1047
A.3 The environment and natural resources BERKXKRER

The Group recognises its responsibility to minimise
the negative environmental impacts arising from its
business operations and it is committed to achieving
the goal of environmental sustainability. The Group
regularly assesses the environmental risks of its business
operations, adopts preventive measures to reduce
risks, and ensures compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The significant impact of activities of the
Group on the environment and the actions taken to
manage them are detailed in the sections headed “A.1
Emissions” and “A.2 Use of resources”.

A.4 Climate change

Management of the Group regularly monitors and
identifies climate change risk that is relevant to the
Group’s business operations. The climate-related risks
can be divided into two major categories: (i) risks related
to the transition to a lower-carbon economy and (ii) risks
related to the physical impacts of climate change.

(i) Transition risks

Transitioning to a lower-carbon economy may
entail extensive policy, legal, technology, and
market changes to address mitigation and
adaptation requirements related to climate change.
Depending on the nature, speed, and focus of
these changes, transition risks may pose varying
levels of financial and reputational risk to the
Group. Policy actions around climate change could
continue to evolve. Transition risks related to policy
change include any risk that the environmental
laws and regulations in China may be amended
from time to time and changes in those laws and
regulations may cause us to incur additional costs in
order to comply with the more stringent rules.
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(ii) Physical risks

Physical risks may have financial implications for
the Group, such as direct damage to assets and
indirect impacts from supply chain disruption. The
Group's financial performance may be affected
by changes in water availability, sourcing, and
quality, or extreme temperature changes affecting
the premises, operations, supply chain, transport
needs, and employee safety. During the two
years ended 31 December 2021, the Group did
not encounter any difficulty in water availability,
sourcing and quality, and it did not encounter
any extreme temperature changes affecting the
premises, operations, supply chain, transport
needs, and employee safety that materially and
adversely affecting business operation.

Moreover, the business of the Group as a dyeing
service provider, has been categorised as one of the
heavily polluting industries and may cause negative
impact on the climate. In particular, the Group use
coal-burning-boiler during our production process,
that could emit air pollutants causing further
warming of the planet.

The management recognised its social responsibility
on climate change, and its role in assessing and
managing these climate-related risks. The Group
has implemented “coal-to-gas” transformation of
its heating equipment from coal-burning-boiler to
natural-gas-burning boiler during the year ended
31 December 2021. The management believes
the natural-gas-burning boiler could significantly
reduce the amount of air pollutants to be emitted
in production, and will continue to assess and
manage the climate-related risks posed to the
Group in the future.
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B. 8

B1EENRE TEH

B. SOCIAL

B.1 Employment and labour practices

Employees are one of the Group’s important assets. The
Group provides a safe, fair and harmonious working
environment for its employees. By upholding values of
trust, respect and compassion, the Group believes that it
will boost employees’ sense of belonging and retain top
talents.

The Group has a recruitment policy in place. New
employees are recruited according to business needs and
upon request from relevant departments. The Group
generally recruits its workforce through online platforms,
regional job fairs and referrals by existing employees.
The candidates will be examined based on their relevant
experiences, skills, knowledge, and integrity. According
to the recruitment policy, the Group encourages its
employees to refer potential candidates, rewards would
be given if the candidates are successfully employed.

Each employee of the Group will receive an employee
handbook which stipulates the rights and obligations
of them. Basic rules such as dormitory rules, canteen
management rules, factory access rules and resignation
procedures will be included in the handbook and allow
the employees to have constant references.

The Group also regularly reviews and updates its
employment policy to ensure the applicability of its terms
and condition and compliance with the latest labour
laws and regulations. During the two years ended 31
December 2021, the Group complied with the Labour
Law of the PRC and did not experience any significant
labour disputes or any disruption to business operations
due to labour disputes. In addition, the Group did
not experience any difficulties in the recruitment and
retention of experienced core staff or skilled personnel.
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Employee benefits and welfare

The Group’s employees are generally remunerated
by way of fixed salary. The Group utilises an appraisal
system for its employees and considers the appraisal
results of individual employees when conducting their
salary review and determining the amounts of bonuses.
The team manager, person-in-charge of the factories
and human resources department will be responsible
for conducting performance appraisal. The Group's
employees are also entitled to a number of subsidies,
including but not limited to job-nature based subsidy,
performance-based bonus, share options and paid leave.

During the two years ended 31 December 2021, the
Group made timely and adequate social insurance
contributions and housing provident fund contributions
for its qualified employees in accordance with the
relevant PRC laws and regulations.

Labour standards

The Group's recruitment policy sets out its recruitment
procedures and standard. The Group strictly follows and
regularly reviews such policy. The Group would carry out
background checks to authenticate information provided
by job applicants to confirm that they are at least 18
years old. During the two years ended 31 December
2021, the Group did not have non-compliance in relation
to laws and regulations regarding prevention of child and
forced labour. The Group also ensures that the working
hours of its employees are reasonable and comply with
the relevant laws and regulations and its employees
would have sufficient rest periods.

Equal opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for employees
in respect of recruitment, job advancement, training
and development, etc. Employees are not discriminated
against or deprived of such opportunities on the
basis of race, nationality, religion, physical condition,
disability, gender, pregnancy, sexual orientation, political
status, age and any other discrimination prohibited by
applicable law. Employees shall not act in discriminatory
manner or they can be subject to disciplinary actions.
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(i

(ii)

Employee relations

The Directors consider that it is important to
maintain good relationship with employees. The
Group maintains regular communications with its
employees by arranging gatherings, celebration
activities and trainings. Through these activities, the
Group would collect feedback from its employees
on job satisfactions and their expectations on
the Group and would implement appropriate
strategies to improve the work environment and its
relationship with the employees.

Employee health and safety

The Group's principal raw materials are colouring
dyes and additives. Although they are not
hazardous chemicals as defined under the Catalog
of Hazardous Chemicals (2015) /& {t 2 @
B #£(2015)f%) ), they can cause accidents and/
or adverse impact on the environment unless
they are properly stored and handled. In order to
ensure the safe storage of the dyes and additives
and to minimise the risk of the occurrences of any
accidents, the Group has adopted certain measures
in relation to the storage and handling of dyes and
additives including:

e Storage facilities for dyes and additives must
be (i) in specialised space or storage rooms;
(i) managed by designated personnel; (iii)
labelled clearly; and (iv) kitted with sufficient
fire safety equipment;

o Personnel and departments which handle
different dyes and additives must strictly
comply with the relevant management
regulations, operational procedures and fire
safety guidelines; and

o Specialised containers used for the storage
of dyes and additives must be labelled
accordingly.

()

(ii)
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The Group has established a series of safety
guidelines, rules and procedures for different
aspects of its production activities, including fire
safety, operation safety, warehouse safety, work
related injuries and emergency and evacuation
procedures to promote occupational health and
safety and to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. Also, the Group provides
suitable and necessary protection equipment to its
employees, i.e., earplugs, protective suits and mask
to ensure their safety during work. Furthermore,
the Group will inspect its production facilities from
time to time in order to ensure that such facilities
are safe for use.

During the two years ended 31 December 2021,
the Group complied in all material respects with
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC relating
to health and work safety and the Group did not
record any material accidents. The Group was not
involved in any material violations of health and
safety laws or regulations in the PRC and it was not
subject to material litigations, claims, administrative
sanctions or penalties with regard to work safety
and labour related issues. There were also no
work-related fatalities or serious injuries, and no
days were lost due to work injury for the three years
ended 31 December 2021.

Development and training

In order to increase the overall competitiveness
of workforce, the Group strives to ensure that its
employees are equipped with the required skill
and safety knowledge when performing their
duties. It has been the Group's policy to provide
all-round training to its employees. Usually it
includes induction training with regard to factory
rules, production flow and use of machineries
which is held by manager or director; on-board
training on the usage of machines and safety
procedures required by its experienced senior staff
for one to two months; and sometimes education
opportunities depending on the job function of the
employees.
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The Group will also arrange management skills REBTEEEPEETILRHER
training to its potential mid-level staffs to increase BRIl RAEEEE N o #E
their ability on management. Newly recruited EHES VARFZ2HIIRIE
employees are required to attend a safety training EREERMNEEBERIRIEEE
course so that they can be familiarised with BRERATEHNRDIRLE KNEE
the safety standards which they are required to N AR RESRITES KB E
meet during production and in their handling of B2METRE NI T RPNE
production equipment. The Group will also hold SEEENMTE  NEHETISS
events occasionally for its employees or allow its o

employees to join the trade fairs or seminars in

difference provinces or cities, in order for them to

catch up with market trend.

Set forth below is the number and percentage
of training hours completed by the Group’s

employees by gender and employee category:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

AT BRI e BRI &E 5 B A
EE R 8 RSN E LA
D

HZE2021F 128318 L EE

% of training

hours by
employee
Employee category Male Female Total category
RIESER
bl DR g |
EEEH ES z FEE RENBE DL
Training hours  Training hours  Training hours
33 R 2 % 5 B 2 3% 3 05 B
Senior management 648 136 784 9.4%
BREEE
Middle management 792 216 1,008 12.0%
RERE
Other employees 4,644 1,940 6,584 78.6%
HibfE&
Total 6,084 2,292 8,376 100.0%
Bt
% of training hours
by gender 72.6% 27.4% 100.0%
R B & 2 B3
RENWE D
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BZ2020F12A318 L FE

% of training

hours by
employee
Employee category Male Female Total category
RIESER
B2 B 55
EEER ES z #Et RENBEIE
Training hours  Training hours  Training hours
IR B B
Senior management 648 36 684 8.3%
SREEE
Middle management 792 216 1,008 12.2%
hREEE
Other employees 4,644 1,940 6,584 79.5%
HibfE&
Total 6,084 2,192 8,276 100.0%
st
% of training hours
by gender 73.5% 26.5% 100.0%
B BB 5 89 15 3%
RENBED
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(iv) Employee distribution

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 495
(2020: 469 )full-time employees in total and they
are employed for the Group’s business operations
in the PRC. The Group had no part-time employees.
Set forth below are the distribution of the Group’s
employees as at 31 December 2021 by gender and

(iv) 1ES

20214128318 KREBEH A
4952020  469)B 2 HEE » I
REREAEERPRENER K
SEBmBHBES o TXHIIASE
B R2021F12831B R MBI R E
RAB D IEE DM :

age group:
Number of
employees Percentage
Category Al BT A% ERalsd
By gender BB &5
Male Bk 288 58.2%
Female eg i 207 41.8%
By age groups RE WA R & D
30 or below 305R sk AT 100 20.2%
31-40 31-40%% 140 28.3%
41-50 41-505% 117 23.6%
51 or above S51BR A 138 27.9%

The table below sets forth the staff turnover rate of
the Group classified by different categories:

TEBIIARE T AR St
BERAELE :

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2020

HZ20215F E 220205
Category 28 12A3MBLLEE 12A318LFE
By gender RERE D
Male Bk 5% 23%
Female eg i 12% 32%
By age groups REWRA RIS D
30 or below 30BK AT 5% 35%
31-40 31-40%% 7% 28%
41-50 41-507% 8% 17%
51 or above 515 EA | 10% 20%
By geographical region Rt EE D
China GE 8% 27%

Deyun Holding Ltd.
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B.2 Operating practices B.2 € E1EH

(i) Supply chain management () HE#ERT

70

Most of the Group’s major suppliers are based in
the PRC. The Group relies on the support from a
wide variety of suppliers to provide raw materials
and production equipment to carry out its business
operations. It is very important for the Group to
choose its suppliers carefully as such decision
would directly affect the quality of its products and
services.

The Group expects its suppliers to uphold the
environmental, social and governance principles
that the Group has adopted into the management
of its business operations. In order to ensure that
the components and raw materials meet the
requisite safety and quality standards, the Group
adopts stringent criteria in supplier selection
(including but not limited to whether they provide
high quality raw materials, whether they maintain
a high standard on environmental protection
and comply with relevant laws on environmental
issues, whether price is comparable to market rate
and location of their factories) and continuously
monitors existing suppliers on an annual basis,
based on criteria such as product quality, product
defect ratio, delivery punctuality ratio and
responsiveness.
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Whether the supplier will continue to be included
in the Group's list of approved suppliers depends
on the marks it achieved under annual evaluation.
The awareness of environmental protection is one
of the key criteria for us to evaluate the suppliers.
The Group highly recognises suppliers that can
provide international recognitions and certificates,
including but not limited to (i) ISO 14001,
recognising the environmental management
system in place, (ii) Bluesign® certificate,
recognising textile chemical providers and the
products are responsible, sustainable and is greener
textile chemicals for the environment, or (iii)
Standard 100 of OEKO-Tex® recognition, mainly
on product safety, which also attest to socially and
environmentally sound conditions in production
facilities.

If the aggregate marks of the supplier under the
Group's annual evaluation (i) equals to or is more
than 80 marks, then the supplier will remain in our
list of approved suppliers for the following year;
(i) less than 80 marks, the Group would ask the
suppliers to make corresponding amendments and
conduct the evaluation again after three months. If
its marks under the evaluation equals to or is more
than 80 marks, the supplier will remain in the list
of approved suppliers for the following year; or (i)
equals to or less than 70 marks, the supplier will be
removed from the list of approved suppliers.

(ii) Product responsibility

Product assurance and recall

The Group believes that its reputation for product
quality, timely delivery and customer service has
contributed significantly to the success of its
business operations.

(ii)

HEFSHEEINALREEBNL
REREREERRTEREE
FETHREB2EME - RIREH
AEMAGHEERNBERIZEY
— o NEE S E RO AL SIR M H R
RAIRFBENHER  BEETR
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14001 - (i) 7R °] 47 4% 11 22 Gh 41 FE 7Y
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AT R 7 4 E 22 R BYBluesign®FR
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OEKO-Tex®IZ#100 °
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*

The Group adopts strict quality control measures
which includes four stages, (i) initial quality check
for raw materials, (i) checking against prototype
of greige fabrics according to the specification
from customers, such as pattern and dimension
of our lace and obtain approval from customers
before bulk production; (iii) inspecting finished lace
against any snagged yarns to ensure the number of
weaving defects is below the agreed level and (iv)
conduct various types of test to ensure appropriate
elasticity of the products. In the event of anomalies
discovered during inspection, the production
staff would instantly report to the manager of
the quality control department or to the general
manager of the Group, so that the problem can be
solved as quickly as possible.

The Group is currently using the total quality
management system which can monitor the quality
of products in an all-rounded respective. The
Group's quality management system complies with
the standard of GB/T 19001-2016/ISO9001:2015
Quality Management Systems Requirements
and the Group was awarded a certificate for the
design, and production of warp knitted lace (£t
KR Iti2). Also, the Group fully complies with
domestic industry standards such as FZ/T 73027-
2016 Textile Industry Standard (Warp Knitted Lace)
of the PRC* (& A R HFBIA AT RIZ (ST
EHRIEIR)). The Group has also been accredited
with, among others, ISO 9001:2015 for quality
management system for its design and production
of lace and OEKO-TEX® Confidence in Textiles
STANDARD 100, which shows that the quality of
the Group’s products can meet the international
stringent requirements on product safety. In
respect of dyeing services, the Group has obtained
ISO14001:2015 for its environmental management
system.

For identification purpose only
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The Group also implements a series of repair and
maintenance procedures of its machinery and
equipment. The production team conducts basic
routine checks on machinery and equipment
regularly and detailed checks annually. The
production team maintains detailed record on
repair and maintenance work and the Group has
its our own hardware warehouse to increase the
efficiency of repairing.

During the two years ended 31 December 2021,
the Group did not have material non-compliance
with laws and regulations in relation to product
safety and receive any product return request, nor
had it received any complaint from its customers
on the quality of products, and no customers made
any material warranty claims against the Group.

Intellectual property rights and privacy protection

To protect its intellectual property rights, the Group
has entered into confidentiality and noncompete
agreements with members of senior management,
employees of the design and development team
and technical support team and/or other employees
who have access to secrets or confidential
information of the Group. The confidentiality
and non-compete agreements prohibit such
members of senior management and/or the
relevant employees from (i) disclosing confidential
information of the Group such as technology
know-how and trade secrets acquired or generated
during the course of their employment with
the Group; and (ii) engaging in activities and/or
business that may potentially compete with the
Group.

The Group has also established appropriate
guidelines for its employees to regulate the use
of personal information, safeguard confidential
information and avoid leakage of customers’ and
suppliers’ privacy.

During the two years ended 31 December
2021, the Group was not aware of any material
infringement of any intellectual property rights nor
material breach of data privacy.
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(iii) Anti-corruption

The Group has implemented anti-corruption
guides, policies and procedures for its employees
to follow. A reporting mechanism is in place for
any corruption or suspected corruption behaviour.
Any contravention to these anti-corruption guides
and policies identified with solid evidence, the
Group will terminate the engagement with the
contravened parties immediately and if needed,
report to relevant regulatory authorities. The Group
also provides trainings to its employees from time
to time to ensure that they comply and familiar
with the anti-corruption guides, policies and
procedures of the Group.

During the two years ended 31 December 2021,
the Group complied with all applicable laws on
prohibiting corruption and bribery of the PRC
and there was no concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

B.3 Community investment

The Group acknowledges corporate social responsibility
and allocates resources to satisfy the needs of the
community. In achieving its social corporate goal in
volunteering in the community, the Group has actively
endeavoured in funding the development of less
developed cities in the PRC by making donations to
various charitable organisations occasionally.

During the two years ended 31 December 2021, the
Group focused on environmental protection as well as
cultural and sport promotion. Going forward, the Group
will continue to focus on community needs and increase
its investment in community. The Group has contributed
a reasonable amount of time to environmental
protection and cultural and sport promotion.
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Directors’ Report
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The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders of the
Company the annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 4 January 2019. The
Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 13 January 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
provides dyeing services as well as sale and manufacture of lace
to its customers. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW, FUTURE PROSPECT AND
DEVELOPMENT

The review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021 and the discussion on the Group's future business
development are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISK FACTORS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The following sets out the principal risks and uncertainties
encountered by the Group in its business operations:

The Group as a dyeing service provider has been categorised
as one of the heavily polluting industries. Any failure to
comply with environmental regulations would expose the
Group to penalties, fines, suspensions or actions in other
forms.

The Group’s business of providing dyeing services has been
categorised as one of the heavily polluting industries and its
operations are subjected to the environmental protection laws
and regulations promulgated by the PRC government authorities.
These laws and regulations require the Group to adopt effective
measures to control and properly dispose of waste water and other
environmental pollutants. The Group could be exposed to penalties,
fines, suspensions or actions in other forms if we fail to comply with
these laws and regulations.
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The Group derives a significant portion of revenue from
customers in Fujian and Guangdong. Failure to retain
business relationships with existing customers or secure
new business may materially affect the Group’s results and
financial performance.

The Group’s revenue is concentrated in Fujian and Guangdong.
The Group mainly provides lace manufacture and dyeing services
on an order-by-order basis, there is no assurance that our business
relationship with our customers in Fujian and Guangdong
will continue in the future. The Group’s results of operations,
profitability and liquidity may be materially and adversely affected if
it is unable to secure new orders from existing customers in Fujian
and Guangdong or fail to procure similar level of business from new
customers from other cities or countries on comparable commercial
terms to offset the loss of revenue from customers in Fujian and
Guangdong.

The Group’s business depends on a stable and adequate
supply of raw materials and the Group does not enter into
any long-term agreements with suppliers, fluctuation in the
price of raw materials may affect the Group'’s cost of sales
and adversely affect business operation and profitability.

Since the Group does not enter into any long-term agreement
with its raw material suppliers, if any interruption, reduction or
termination of the supply of raw materials occurs, or the price of
the raw material increase due to an increase in demand, the Group
has to bear the risk of such fluctuations and may not be able to shift
such risk to its customers.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The Group does not have any important events occurring after the
year ended 31 December 2021.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, sales to the Group’s
largest customer and five largest customers accounted for 6.0%
(2020: 4.4%) and 21.0% (2020: 16.2%) of the total revenue,
respectively.

Purchases from the Group's largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2021 accounted
for 16.0% (2020: 17.1%) and 46.0% (2020: 56.1%) of the total
purchases, respectively.
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None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2021.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group maintains good relationships with employees, customers
and suppliers by making frequent communications with them to
understand their needs. The Group provides safe work environment,
competitive remuneration, good welfare benefits and continuous
training for its employees. During the year ended 31 December
2021, there were no material disputes between the Group and its
employees, customers and suppliers.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group. The
Group also complied with (i) the requirements under the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") for the disclosure of information
and corporate governance; and (ii) the ordinances relating to
occupational safety for the interest of its employees.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the environment
and giving back to community and achieving sustainable growth.
Details of such are set out in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 102 to 105. The directors do
not recommend the payment of dividend for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: nil).

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company'’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are
set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2021
are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

Details of the Group's assets pledged as securities for current bank
borrowings and bills payables as at 31 December 2021 are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purposes of determining the shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 25 May 2022 (Wednesday), the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 20 May 2022 (Friday) to 25 May
2022 (Wednesday), both days inclusive. The latest time to lodge
transfer documents for registration will be at 4:30 p.m. on 19 May
2022 (Thursday). During the above closure period, no transfer of
shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 19 May 2022
(Thursday).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of this annual report. The distributable reserves
of the Company are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group made donations of RMB Nil during the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB100,000).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no contracts concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company or its subsidiaries were entered
into or existed.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out in the section
headed “Five-Year Financial Summary” of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS 5=

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December HE2021F12A3MBLEFEREEAFHRAH
2021 and up to the date of this annual report were: RABNERR

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lin Mingiang (Chairman) MR EE (FE)

Mr. Lin Chaowei MERB A&

Mr. Lin Chaowen MEASCSE A&

Mr. Lin Bingzhong MEARLEAE

Mr. Wei Cunzhuo BIFNEE

Ms. Lin Lili MRFF 2+

Independent Non-Executive Directors BYKHTES

Mr. Sheng Zijiu BFhEE

Mr. Chow Kit Ting FEGE R4

Mr. Yip Koon Shing ERKEE

Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund E=EEEE

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Wei Cunzhuo, Ms. Lin Lili,  iRIE4A) BENEE KA F 2+ EFK L

Mr. Yip Koon Shing and Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund will retire £ REZBAEFREEREREAST KNS LETW
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the  FABIENEEBERET -
forthcoming AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS EENSHNEEEBEAE
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the members of the Board and relationship ~EZEREMNEEFBREZSKE ZHNEERE
between members of the Board are set out in the section headed BN AFHR EENSRERBEFFB] -
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this

annual report.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES AND EEEABEZRANDERREHES
MANPOWER SERVICE EXPENSES, BIEEEHS
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Group’s employee benefit expenses and manpower & E20216 128318 IEFE > KREENEERF
service expenses for the year ended 31 December 2021 (including B M AN BBRBEHL (BRAEEEE 54
the emoluments of the Directors and senior management and the  BIEE M AZ &S H A THFHM) FBEHNAFE
five highest paid individuals of the Group) are set out in note 9 to ~ MRAFA P BRARW 9 - BN EENEE HIRES
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report. The HRHEZET BFEETENHEXRE mREAE
emoluments payable to the Directors are determined according R BRSO - B E2021F12A31B L FE -
to various factors, including but not limited to their performance, & FEMEL MBS o & Z2021F128318 IEF
market conditions and the financial conditions of the Group. During & * AEEN S A EEBHFMENIA THER ¢
the year ended 31 December 2021, no Directors have waived any

emoluments. The remuneration of the senior management of

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 falls within the

following band:

Number of

senior

management

Remuneration band FrENEi E BEREEEAY
Not more than HKD 1,000,000 TE R AR ®1,000,0007% 7T 5

DIRECTORS’ LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT BEEZEH

Each of the executive Directors and the independent non-executive ~ &HITEZENIBUIIFRTEECHBARN AR L
Directors has signed a letter of appointment with our Company LK B2020F 128168 T A =F Al iR &
up to a term of three years commencing from 16 December 2020,  Z{EKEEFR T LA IE ©

which may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the letter

of appointment.

Apart from the foregoing, no Directors proposed for re-election & Fai&E I BIEREENREBAFASETENE
at the AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not ~ FEARRQBFIZ NEHARA IR —FRK IEME
determinable by the Company within one year without payment or 7B " ZIBS B E CEE B ERIN) RBA L) -
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION BEFNBEMKRX

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be  1RIEAIA S EET (EHEHERREAEF I H
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or ~ AJ&E) AR B AT AR S St LA MS
liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies Laws of ~ F S BHE A EEBELE K T EEGSUARQ R EENE
the Cayman Islands) which he/she may sustain or incur in or about HE R -

the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation

thereto.

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BEEZRERAT]*) —T - —FF#H 8l



Directors’ Report
S R
Ea g

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S BEENBRETHAERARTHME
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN MAEBEEZENRG HERORE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND EENEZRRAXRE

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2021, interests and short positions of the ~ M2021F12831H - ARREERESTHAE
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,  HAARQ R EEMAEEE (E& LESMPEK
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its  IEXVEL) W% ~ HERD M EEEFHEECE
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),  1BE&E 5 K B E &0 EXVERE7M8D LA E AR
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange ~ FIREEZFIRIER SUA R (BIERIEE S LS 15
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including  {Il/B B S E (ESi R B A MRS KX R) SiiR
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to have &5 R HI G KM E352{EBEH AR R T FENE
under such provisions of the SFO) or have been entered in the  REfIMEZERIARE @ HIRBIZETEIZBAE AR
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the & MEF X FrAER KA BT ¢

SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code are as follows:

(i) Interest in the Company (i) AXARIWER

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest
Percentage of
Number of shareholding in
shares held the Company
(Note 1) (Approximate)
FEH RAERTE
BROEE BREDL

EENSR B EmEME (HaE1) (B49)
Mr. Lin Mingiang (Note 2 and 3) Interest in a controlled corporation 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Interest held jointly with other persons
MRS E (B 72%3) PR E S
BEMATERF RS
Mr. Lin Bingzhong (Note 3) Interest held jointly with other persons 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
IR B E (B 7E3) BEMATERFEES
Mr. Lin Chaowei (Note 3) Interest held jointly with other persons 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
MRERIE S (A1 7E3) HEMATHERFEES
Mr. Lin Chaowen (Note 3) Interest held jointly with other persons 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
MBS ST & (B 7E3) HEMATHERFEES
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(i) REBZESERNES

(ii) Interest in the ordinary shares of associated
corporation

Percentage of
shareholding in

Number of  the associated

Name of associated Capacity/nature of shares held corporation

Name of Director corporation interest (Note 1) (Approximate)

BEN REBSEER

RO EE BRE D

EEpg HEEE BB B REEME (BtzE1) (B49)

Mr. Lin Mingiang Deyong Investment Beneficial owner 6,000 (L) 60%
MERBEEE Deyong Investment BEmEA A

Mr. Lin Bingzhong Deyong Investment Beneficial owner 1,160 (L) 11.6%
MEREE Deyong Investment BEmEAA

Mr. Lin Chaowei Deyong Investment Beneficial owner 922 (L) 9.22%
MERE L& Deyong Investment BB A

Mr. Lin Chaowen Deyong Investment Beneficial owner 864 (L) 8.64%
MREAS A& Deyong Investment BExEAA

Notes: WisE

1.

The letter “L" denotes long position of the shares.

1.

LRRZBALREOITR -

2. These shares are held by Deyong Investment Co., Ltd (“Deyong 2. #ZE MR AEDeyong Investment Co.,
Investment”). Deyong Investment is an investment holding Ltd ([ Deyong Investment]) 5 5& °
company incorporated in the BVI and is owned by Mr. Lin Mingiang, Deyonglnvestment & i 2 & BE 22 Bf & 7E i 5
Mr. Lin Bingzhong, Mr. Lin Chaoji, Mr. Lin Chaowei and Mr. Lin SRS EER AT DRIRMRERE A M
Chaowen as to 60%, 11.6%, 10.54%, 9.22% and 8.64%, FhELE  HREELEAE - HREE L4 RHE
respectively. Mr. Lin Mingiang is a director of Deyong Investment. XEAE#HEBEE0% * 11.6% * 10.54% ~ 9.22%
Therefore, Mr. Lin Mingiang is deemed, or taken, to be interested F8.64% o E It - IRIFFEF MEEKEH - Ak
in the shares of the Company held by Deyong Investment for the R 98 % AR &3 E fER Deyong Investment
purposes of the SFO. FRENARATIRG P HAER -

3. On 31 December 2019, Mr. Lin Mingiang, Mr. Lin Bingzhong, Mr. Lin 3. M2019 128318 - MME®REE - MHFELR

Chaoji, Mr. Lin Chaowei and Mr. Lin Chaowen entered into an
acting in concert agreement to acknowledge and confirm (among
other things) that they are parties acting in concert during the three
years ended 31 December 2019 and six months ended 30 June
2020 and that to continue to act in the same manner in the Group
after the Company'’s listing. As such, by virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lin
Mingiang, Mr. Lin Bingzhong, Mr. Lin Chaoji, Mr. Lin Chaowei and
Mr. Lin Chaowen are deemed to be interested in all the shares of the
Company held by Deyong Investment.

et - MRERE ST A - MRERIE ST A ARBE S
AR BT R AEAREER (K4
BIE) BFEREE2019F12A318 1t =AF
& RE E2020F6 5308 1L N8 B A — 81T
AT THERARAR LETEEENR—
FRARARNEETH - Al RIEFSH K
EEP - MR AL - MTRHRELE - MEEE
fE - MPARLTERMBXEERR AR
Deyong InvestmentfT#5 A #) AR 2 7 FT B AR
DR R -
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company had registered any interests or short positions in any
shares and underlying shares in, and debentures of, the Company or
any associated corporations as at 31 December 2021, as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director of the
Company or their respective spouses or minor children, or were such
rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of
the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF

THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2021, the
following corporation/persons (other than the interests of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company as disclosed above)
had interests of 5% or more in the issued shares which fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded

in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO:

FERREEMATRAERT RS
RERROPHEENEDZR AR

BEZFTA - R2021F12A318 - THEE A
T(ENFRENARRESAEaTHRAE#ER
BRI BEEARRFEBITRMOPS%IA EHER
BARIEFE H KB E KRG EXVEB 2 X35 BB & XA
BARAT RBZAEBESBRALRRRIREES
NEAE G HIZE336157EF B & o fif

Percentage of

Number of  shareholding in
shares held the Company
Name Capacity/nature of interest (Note 1) (Approximate)
RARFH
B3 EE EBREot
mE BB B ERHE (HteE1) (BE#)
Deyong Investment (Note 2) Beneficial owner 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Deyong Investment (/77#2) EmEAA 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Mr. Lin Chaoji (Note 3) Interest held jointly with other persons 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
MRERE S (M1723) HEM T HEFEER 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Ms. Lin Yueyun (Note 4) Interest of spouse 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
MAE R+ (Hit4) B (B = 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Ms. Jiang Yanyun (Note 5) Interest of spouse 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
BWEL Lt (Hi25) B B R 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Ms. Zheng Xiugin (Note 6) Interest of spouse 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
B AR 2+ (H5F6) BB 2 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Ms. Lin Yunzhen (Note 7) Interest of spouse 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
MEE 2+ (K777) Bic (B = 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Ms. Lin Aimei (Note 8) Interest of spouse 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
ME X+ (H778) B (B = 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Glorious Way Investments Limited Beneficial owner 94,500,000 (L) 7.5%
("Glorious Way") (Note 9)
Glorious Way Investments Limited EHEAA 94,500,000 (L) 7.5%
([ Glorious Way |) (#17%9)
Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing (Note 10) Interest in a controlled corporation and 119,500,000 (L) 9.48%
beneficial owner
BB RE(KiE10) ZEEEEEHEESHEEA 119,500,000 (L) 9.48%
Ms. Wu Chor Har (Note 11) Interest of spouse 119,500,000 (L) 9.48%
MM E R (Hat11) B (B fE = 119,500,000 (L) 9.48%
Deyun Holding Ltd. (fBEE#ZIRARQA*) —T - —FF#§
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The letter “L" denotes long position of the shares.

Deyong Investment is an investment holding company incorporated in the
BVI and is owned by Mr. Lin Mingiang, Mr. Lin Bingzhong, Mr. Lin Chaoji,
Mr. Lin Chaowei and Mr. Lin Chaowen as to 60%, 11.6%, 10.54%, 9.22%
and 8.64%, respectively.

On 31 December 2019, Mr. Lin Mingiang, Mr. Lin Bingzhong, Mr. Lin
Chaoji, Mr. Lin Chaowei and Mr. Lin Chaowen entered into an acting in
concert agreement to acknowledge and confirm (among other things) that
they are parties acting in concert during the three years ended 31 December
2019 and six months ended 30 June 2020 and that to continue to act in the
same manner in the Group after the Company’s listing. As such, by virtue
of the SFO, Mr. Lin Mingiang, Mr. Lin Bingzhong, Mr. Lin Chaoji, Mr. Lin
Chaowei and Mr. Lin Chaowen are deemed to be interested in all the shares
of the Company held by Deyong Investment.

Ms. Lin Yueyun is the spouse of Mr. Lin Mingiang. Therefore, Ms. Lin
Yueyun is deemed to be, or taken to be, interested in the shares of the
Company which Mr. Lin Mingiang is interested in for the purposes of the
SFO.

Ms. Jiang Yanyun is the spouse of Mr. Lin Bingzhong. Therefore, Ms. Jiang
Yanyun is deemed to be, or taken to be, interested in the shares of the
Company which Mr. Lin Bingzhong is interested in for the purposes of the
SFO.

Ms. Zheng Xiugin is the spouse of Mr. Lin Chaoji. Therefore, Ms. Zheng
Xiugin is deemed to be, or taken to be, interested in the shares of the
Company which Mr. Lin Chaoji is interested in for the purposes of the SFO.

Ms. Lin Yunzhen is the spouse of Mr. Lin Chaowei. Therefore, Ms. Lin
Yunzhen is deemed to be, or taken to be, interested in the shares of the
Company which Mr. Lin Chaowei is interested in for the purposes of the
SFO.

Ms. Lin Aimei is the spouse of Mr. Lin Chaowen. Therefore, Ms. Lin Aimei
is deemed to be, or taken to be, interested in the shares of the Company
which Mr. Lin Chaowen is interested in for the purposes of the SFO.

Glorious Way is an investment holding company incorporated in the BVI and
is wholly owned by Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing.

Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing (i) directly and beneficially holds 1.98% of the shares
of the Company; and (i) beneficially owns 100% of the issued shares of
Glorious Way, which in turn holds 7.5% of the shares of the Company.
Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing is a director of Glorious Way. Therefore, Mr. Tsoi Wing
Sing is deemed, or taken to be interested in the shares of the Company held
by Glorious Way for the purpose of the SFO and in aggregate holds 9.48%
of the Shares of the Company.

Ms. Wu Chor Har is the spouse of Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing. Therefore, Ms. Wu
Chor Har is deemed to be, or taken to be, interested in the shares of the
Company which Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing is interested in for the purposes of the
SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company has
not been notified of any other relevant interests or short positions
in the issued share capital of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director or his/her connected entity has or had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party subsisting during or
at the end of the year ended 31 December 2021.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST

No contracts of significance were entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and any controlling shareholders
or any of its subsidiaries or any contracts of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by any
controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Apart from the Group’s business, none of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders or any of their respective close associates
was engaged in or had any interest in any business that competes or
may compete with the principal business of the Group, which would
require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules. or has any
other conflict of interest with the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 16 December 2020 (the “Adoption
Date"), which become effective on 13 January 2021.

(i) Purpose of Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to eligible participants; and to promote the success
of the business of the Group.

(ii) Who may join and basis of eligibility

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms
as it may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time),
director, consultant or adviser of the Group, or any substantial
shareholder of the Group, or any distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service provider
of the Group, options to subscribe at a price calculated in
accordance with paragraph (iii) below for such number of
shares as it may determine in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme. The basis of eligibility of any participant
to the grant of any option shall be determined by the Board (or
as the case may be, the independent nonexecutive Directors)
from time to time on the basis of his/her contribution or
potential contribution to the development and growth of the
Group.

(iii) Exercise price of share option

The exercise price of share option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the
Board and shall be at least highest of: (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant of the option; (i) the average of the
closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share on the date of grant of the option.

(iv) Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to our
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option
is HKD1.00.
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(v) Maximum number of shares that may be (v) T8 1THRMEE LR

issued

The aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of our Company must not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. No options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of our Company if this will result in such 30% limit
being exceeded.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option
Scheme, the maximum numbers of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of
the Shares in issue as at the Adoption Date (i.e. 126,000,000
shares) unless approved by the shareholders of the Company.

The 10% limit as mentioned above may be refreshed at any
time by obtaining approval of the Company’s shareholders
in general meeting provided that the total number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshed limit. Options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including those outstanding, cancelled or lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or
any other share option schemes of the Company) will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the refreshed 10%
limit. A circular must be sent to the Company’s shareholders
containing the information as required under the Listing Rules
in this regard.

(vi) Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting in the manner stipulated in the Listing Rules, the
maximum entitlement for each eligible participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) under the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.

RITHERBEBERAIE S RARREMEAME
Pt B R B ARTTREA 2 AR BT
ARERITHRMAE  TEBB IR #T
B 10 #930% © ANAR 35 6 A e AT 8 s AR A RIE
MEMBRE SR EBRERSEREARN
30%H) ERR - RIS T BB ALHE -

EEREFEGERRGEENRET - BER
BRERETE RAEMEMT R R EAE
BREORNEE LREETSBEREMRA
B2 3B 31T A910% (B1126,000,0004%
BRG) - BRIEARRRIRESITHOA -

SRt #910% L PR 7T BE B AR AR A R BCR A
BRERAE EHERER - ERTEREER
RERT &) Ko AN 1 BE ] B Al B A HE A 8IS T
Re e BB AREm A s BT R B8
NEBEBIEKEMN LRE RS HTRMNE
10% - T HEKEH10% ERME @ £RIR
BB BER 8 R AR D BUE A A A B R T 8
BHnBERE (BRREBRETE RER
BUEfATE R AT B (R W R 1T - 2
AN E KRB BRE) B TEAEER - —
EAE LW AR RIEIE 7T E AR E BV E R R K
WAFTHETARBMIR

(Vi) B2 EENERE LR

BRIERARBIBRRAER EMRREN T X
BITHREAREG LHE  F28EALTREMR
REARFHEER L AMNERE LR (B4
BITERARITENBERE) TEEBAE %
TR A% o

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BB {ZRBMRDT*) — T - —FFR

89



90

Directors’ Report
ERRWS

(vii) Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from
the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof.

(viii) Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years commencing on the Adoption Date and shall expire
at the close of business on the business day immediately
preceding the tenth anniversary thereof unless terminated
earlier by our Shareholders in general meeting. As at 31
December 2021, the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme is approximately eight years and 11.5 months.

For further details on the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme, please refer to Appendix IV to the Prospectus.

As of 31 December 2021 and the date of this annual report,
no share options had been granted or agreed to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme. As a result, the total number
of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
as of the date of this annual report was 126,000,000,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as of the Adoption Date.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has not
entered into or conducted any connected transactions, which
were subject to the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements as required under the Listing
Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the Group's related party transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of these related party transactions
are connected transactions which are subject to the reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTIONOFTHE  BE - - HEFEEAATRLTES
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold & Z2021F 128318 L F[Z » A Q&) sk & E AT FY

or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ~ BAFREEE - HEXBELRAQRER EWES -
ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES TEEBRER
Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set ~ BEARRICEEAEROFBHNAFRIDZE
=

out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS PR RE #8177 5

Other than the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements & Z2021F12A318 Lt FE - BB E T 250
were entered into by the Company during the year ended 31 NN ABEET S AR S e ok o

December 2021.
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT TEARERE
According to the information that is publicly available to the  RIEAQAFT AHAIESHERERESHM KL

Company and within the knowledge of the Board, as of the date of ~ ZAR¥R & H %ﬁ RARBHF ETHRARENAR
this report, the Company has maintained the public float as required iz = -
under the Listing Rules.

INTEREST OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER EHRERER

In accordance with Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules, the Company 1R TR AIZE3A 191 - AR RIEZREERENE
has appointed Dakin Capital Limited (“Dakin Capital”) to be  ARAG ([EEBMEDELASHER -ERER
the compliance adviser. Dakin Capital, being the sponsor of the & - H{RE AN EEEEDRE EHEAE3A.07
Company in relation to the Listing, has declared its independence BB EB 1 - BB MBS R ER, K BR
pursuant to Rule 3A.07 of the Listing Rules. Save as provided forin ~ ZI2FTIHREEIN - EREBME K EFAHE A LI
relation to the share offer and/or disclosed in the Prospectus, neither K& 2 B AR QA G MH = B E R mﬂéﬁﬂﬁ%‘i
Dakin Capital nor any of its associates and none of the directorsor B8 ({ERREBEA) B E L AT AR H B E MR
employees of Dakin Capital who have been involved in providing 782 7] 3k 7% £ B {F ] H b & 7E'JET—J’K%‘T?§ﬁ%
advice to the Company as the sponsor, has or may, as a result of  # (BIEREZSELNBIESEN) -

the share offer, have any interest in any securities of the Company

or any other companies of the Group (including options or rights to

subscribe for such securities).

REVIEW OF AUDITED ANNUAL RESULTS EHNREREFERE
The Group's audited consolidated financial statements for the — ZA&EBEHE2021F12A318 L FENEBZLEA

year ended 31 December 2021 have been reviewed by the Audit  HBMACHBXZESEHN -
Committee.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed that, following
specific enquiry by the Company, they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2021.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM IPO

Details of the use of the proceeds from IPO are set out on page 15
of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire at
the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the
Company.

By order of the Board
Deyun Holding Ltd.
Mr. Lin Minqgiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022

*  For identification purpose only
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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_E
pwec

To the Shareholders of Deyun Holding Ltd.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Deyun Holding Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out
on pages 102 to 177, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e  the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince's Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Revenue recognition for manufacturing of lace and provision
of dyeing services

. Impairment of contract assets, trade and bills receivables
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
HEETER

Revenue recognition for manufacturing of lace and provision
of dyeing services

HERBREHIERKEREER
Refer to Notes 2.21 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
FELRSRE B mERMTE2.21 %5 ¢

During the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue of approximately
RMB150,405,000 was recognised for manufacturing of lace and
provision of dyeing services in the Group’s consolidated income
statement.

HZE2021F12A3101EFE - EEENGAEREREEREE
12 I HR R B AR S e 49 A R #5150,405,0007T ©

Revenue from manufacturing of lace and provision of dyeing
services is recognised over the period of the contract using the input
method. For contracts in progress at the period end, the Group
applies a percentage of completion to the contracted price and the
percentage is determined with reference to the actual costs incurred
and the total estimated costs on completion for the services.

SHEICIE MR R R EREWER G N BREERR AR AERER -
HRBMRERAOME - E%lﬁé@ﬁ%%%nlﬁ oL MRz
BALTR2ECEENBRKA MRS TR RO 5B
B e

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of revenue
transactions occurred and hence, significant audit effort was spent in
auditing this area.

BPEER T ENRAERMEEN KR S BEA - Bt
ERETEAERRERTER

FERETTEIE#)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWETFNMEERRENSE

Our audit procedures performed on revenue
recognition for manufacturing of lace and provision
of dyeing service included:

I EETEE MR A B IR WE R PTETTE
BT EF B

e We understood, evaluated and tested the key
controls in respect of revenue recognition for
manufacturing of lace and provision of dyeing
service and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatements by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors;

o BBREERMEFTHEEMNEEREMESR
BRERKFE  RAITHE - ﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁ@%L
TEi R A B RS W s FE R MO R R 12 1) -
FHEEARFERR AN E B E

e We discussed with management and evaluated
whether the method used by management
to estimate revenue in relation to contracts in
progress at period end is reasonable;

o RMETEEIWLIEEERER %Xﬁﬁ
ERANREMRANTEER AR

e We assessed management’s identification of
performance obligations and the recognition
of revenue over-time by examining the sales
contracts with customers and with reference to
our understanding of the client’s business and
industry practices;

s BERETRPHNBEEANLZ2ERMYER
X TERITREN - AR E R E R
B %) B 1E I B R ) e iR M et
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) AEETEE @
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HEETER BMWETFNAEERRENSE

. We checked, on a sample basis, the contracted
prices to the underlying sales invoices and sales
contracts;

o HMHMBEZRSHBHEERRRFEEAONAS
MBS

. We tested, on a sample basis, the actual costs
incurred including direct material costs, direct
labour costs and overhead costs to underlying
supporting documents;

o HFHMBEREMABEE XN EELERK
o BREERVHKA BRBTRAREE
DFINE

e  For contracts in progress at the year end, we
assessed the estimated costs on completion
of selected contracts with reference to total
costs of the Group's similar sales contracts that
are completed, and checking the total cost
incurred in respect to those selected contracts
subsequent to the year end; and

s HFERERAHNME H BHMI2ZERECTX
RIRLUEE S MA@ SHEEEA DRI
AR - WIREZEREANNFERREESE
HYBRAS + J

e  We checked the calculation of the revenue
recognition based on the contracted prices, the
actual costs incurred and the total estimated
costs on completion.

o RfRRXHER EEENERKARRTE
BB R A BB B W R R BT
= o

Based upon the above procedures performed, we
considered that the recognition of revenue from
manufacturing of lace and provision of dyeing service
was supported by the available evidence.

ERN Ll PrETER - HARARETEE RIEHR
ERBERERERG BB -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
HRETEH

Impairment of contract assets, trade and bills receivables

BHNEERERESBEFEARERRERE

Refer to Notes 3.1.3, 4.1 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BRHRA M IEHRERMFES 1.3 4.1%20-°

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying value of the Group's
gross contract assets, trade and bills receivables amounted to
RMB29,737,000, against which the provision for impairment
of contract assets, trade and bills receivables amounted to
RMB2,643,000 was made.

R2021F 128318 - EEEMNENEE - B 5 EIE K EWK
BB ERE(E A AR 29,737,000 @ WLt EHESHEE
B 5 e W 5k TE % e UK R4 R (B B A R #52,643,0007T ©

Management applied the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all contract assets, trade and bills receivables. In measuring
the credit loss rates, management assess whether there are any
significant changes in payment profiles and risk of default, and takes
into consideration the current and forward-looking information, to
adjust the expected losses rates.

ERERBEEVBREENESRNELT EFERBEERS
B EPUHMBANEE BIHRUFEANEBKRERERFE
HENEEERRE -FEEEREXR EEENGBNNE
MREBHDRRESHEEAEAEE) - WEEBEF LATEEER
AT B IEHIR R K o

We focused on auditing the impairment of contract assets, trade and
bills receivables because the estimation of loss allowance is subject
to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation
to the impairment assessment of contract assets, trade and bills
receivables is considered significant due to subjectivity of significant
assumptions used, and significant judgements involved in selecting
data.

BHAZEREZANEERERE ZERFANERRERE
FREEEREBENGHAEEASETHEL ARMERCER
BROTEE  ARRERBURR S REAHE - FAibEa 4
BERENE S EEFIERERZERERHABORNERR
BEX-

FERETTEIE#)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEFNMEEREENSE

Our audit procedures performed on impairment of
contract assets, trade and bills receivables included:
BMSeNEEREBERE S RYGIERERER
BEFMEITHEEF 81

e We obtained an understanding of the
management'’s internal control and assessment
processes for determining the provision for
impairment of contract assets, trade and
bills receivables and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and
the judgement involved in determining the
assumptions to be applied;

e HMTHEEEETANEE HHEUX
BN W R BB E B AR AR M AT (A 1R
FroWEBERMG T EEENEERERE
P A R R R B 08 R B9 HI T - RE L RPEE R
R RERRR |

e  We evaluated the outcome of prior period
assessment of provision for impairment of
contract assets, trade and bills receivables,
by reviewing receivables settlement records,
to assess the effectiveness of management'’s
estimation process;

s HBMEZHEZEBUFCRGELE  FULFE
HEHWEE BIRRREREREEES
MBI EER  UHAERBZHEBE
A RE

e We tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of
ageing profile of trade receivables by checking
to relevant supporting evidence;

o HMEERTEMEBNFRER  AHMET R
R E 5 IR IR R e 0 T RO R HEE

e We assessed the appropriateness of the
expected credit loss methodology adopted
by management and the reasonableness of
the use of forward-looking information by
management in determining the expected credit
loss allowance;

o HMFHERERANEHEEEBENEN
HEM UREEEETRAEEBERRB
R AR ARSI
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
HEETER

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is

a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2021
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWETFNAEERRENSE

e We considered whether the judgements
made in selecting the methods, significant
assumptions and data would give rise to
indicators of possible management bias.

s RMERERENE BEARRKRKLBIER(E
HE R R BN FEEREEREZD
B -

Based upon the above procedures performed, we
considered that management’s judgements and
assumptions applied in respect of allowance for the
provision for impairment of trade receivables were
supportable by the evidence obtained and procedures
performed.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN B AR

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV R TRy

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Ka Keung, Johnny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement
Felmk

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F 12 A31B I FE

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
202145 20204F
BT AR®T ARETIT
Revenue Wz 5 165,942 198,478
Cost of sales SHE A 6 (126,748) (124,621)
Gross profit EF 39,194 73,857
Other income EHaigA 7 1,944 5,328
Other losses, net E b EiE 55 8 (3,689) (1,584)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HRAX 6 (2,416) (2,278)
Administrative expenses TR 2 6 (10,333) (22,089)
Net impairment losses on financial assets & @& & & & 48 ERE
and contract assets Eia s 6 (1,974) (425)
Operating profit KR 22,726 52,809
Finance income RPN 10 1,477 388
Finance costs & B AR 10 (123) (604)
Finance income/(costs), net BEWA S (RA) F5E 1,354 (216)
Profit before income tax B AT 18 86 Al % Al 24,080 52,593
Income tax expense FriSFi X 11 (2,898) (8,772)
Profit for the year attributable to AAREE ABIEFREF
owners of the Company 21,182 43,821
Earnings per share attributable to KAREBEABEEREF
owners of the Company
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EARREE(ARES) 12 1.70 4.64

The above consolidated income statement should be read in  _Fift4R & U as 2% fE BARE B O B 5 — GBI AE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

= A2\ .
RE W
For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F 12 A31B I FE

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
20214 20204

AR¥T T ARET T

Profit for the year FRIEF 21,182 43,821
Other comprehensive loss: Hih 2 EEE :
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss Rt B B EmiEH
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINERRIEN =58
foreign operations (19) -

Total comprehensive income for the year KAREBAEEFR
attributable to owners of the Company ZHEWKEAEE 21,163 43,821

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should 3l 47 & 2 8 W 25 5% e ER RS B A B i — HERIRE o
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fre MR

As at 31 December 2021 72021412 H31H

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
20215 20204
s AR®T T AR®TTT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FREEE
Properties, plant and equipment W - BB MR 14 147,476 146,651
Right-of-use asset ERAEEE 14 2,640 2,722
Investment property KEWZE 15 308 341
Intangible assets B EE 16 1,236 645
Prepayments TE{TFRIA 18 7,807 277
159,467 ]75707,7673767
Current assets RENEE
Inventories A 19 9,737 9,272
Contract assets ABHNEE 20 8,320 7,556
Trade and bills receivables B 5 FEUGRIE K W = & 20 18,774 13,060
Prepayments and other receivables T8 3R I8 K H fth FE UL SR IE 18 1,623 10,013
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREEEYD 21 182,294 109,483
_________ 220,748 149,384
Total assets EERE 380,215 300,020
Equity B
Equity attributable to owners of the 22 T #EH A (LS
Company
Share capital N 22 10,511 -
Reserves A 324,195 222,951
Total equity E=esE 334,706 222,951
*  The balance was rounded to the nearest thousand BB ERER T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
rE AR

As at 31 December 2021 742021412 A31H

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
20214 20204F
BT AR® T ARETIT
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities EREBEME
Other payables H fth < 5K IE 23 1,478 1,533
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 24 535 346
2,013 1 7,{377797
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B 5 e 5RIE 25 20,221 10,706
Other payables and accruals H b FE 1 5R8 K FE AT RUIE 23 17,242 37,859
Contract liabilities EHEE 23 588 3,440
Current income tax liabilities BEAFR S B & 5,445 10,185
Bank borrowings RITIE X 26 - 13,000
__________ 4349% 757190
Total liabilities aEEE 45509 77,069
Total equity and liabilities EEREEER 380,215 300,020

The consolidated financial statements on pages 102 to 177 were  F102E177E NG M ERAR D LEE 2202245
approved by the Board of Director on 25 March 2022 and were 3 A25B#L&ETIZE - WHIATATRAEE o
signed on its behalf.

Lin Minqgiang Wei Cunzhuo
MR BREN
Director Director

BF EE

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be 3l 47 & B 75 A 0 5% e ER B B A B 7% — GBI RE o
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

,iﬂ/_\ == N\ 7 %—;—I%
REEmEER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F 12 A31B I FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARERAELE
Share Share Other Statutory  Exchange Retained Total
capital premium reserves reserve reserve earnings equity

RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Bx  R#9EE  RER  AERE  ENGHE  RERA  RR4E
ARBTRL ARBTR ARETI AREBTL ARETT ARETLT ARETR

(Note a)
(Mista)
Balance at 1January 2021  R2021F1R1A K& -+ - 104,466 16,620 2 101,863 222,951
Profit for the year FEREF] - - - - - 21,182 21,182
Other comprehensive loss HE2AFE - - - - (19) - (19)
Total comprehensive income 2H WA HE - - - - (19) 21,182 21,163
Transactions with owners ~ EEFANR S
Capitalisation issue (Note 22) &AL &17 (Fi+22) 7,883 (7.883) - - - - -
Issuance of ordinary shares of ~ AARIETLBR
the Company (Note 22) (Mzr22) 2,628 102,486 - - - - 105,114
Share issuance costs RIDEITRA - (14,522) = = = = (14,522)
Appropriation (Note b) Ee (iR - - - 2,402 = (2,402) -
Total transactions HEBANRZEE
withowners 10511 80,081 - = 2402 - = (2402 90,592
Balance at 31 December 2021 /420215128318 W&tk 10,511 80,081 104,466 19,022 (17) 120,643 334,706
*  The balance was rounded to the nearest thousand * ERNBEERERLTA
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GARREDE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

Attributable to owners of the Company

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

AREHEA NES

Share Other Statutory  Exchange Retained Total
capital reserves reserve reserve earnings equity
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BA  HtEE  ATHE ERAREE  REEN  EREE
ARBTT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARBTR

(Note a)

(KizEa)

Balance at 1 January 2020 20201818 H &gk 138 104,466 10,720 2 63,942 179,268

Profit for the year FRa Al - - - - 43,821 43,821

Total comprehensive income FHKHAR - - - - 43,821 43,821

Transactions with owners BREEANR S

Cancellation of ordinary shares AREFHE T AR (PaE22)

of the Company (Note 22) (138) - - - - (138)

Issuance of ordinary shares of ARBBITEBAR (PaE22)

the Company (Note 22) =* - - - - -

Appropriation (Note b) R (Fib) - = 5,900 = (5,900) -

Total transactions with owners ~ BEBANRZHE (138 - 5900 - (59000  (138)

Balance at 31 December 2020 720205128310 &84 —* 104,466 16,620 2 101,863 222,951

*  The balance was rounded to the nearest thousand * RBRABRERERETM

Notes: B

(@)  Other reserves represent the combined share capital and capital reserve of (@) EHfEEEMN20215F &20205F12A31H » K&EE
the companies comprising the Group, after elimination of inter-company ETEZARKEHEEERNARBRS RESRERN
transactions and balances as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 in relation to EREANEHRARE RNGFHE -
the reorganisation.

(b)  The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in the PRC to (b) HEBEREEEHRBT PEAMAARMERRE
provide for certain statutory reserves, which are to be appropriated from BAELRADIRA - B8 HES B ATV BR
the profit after income tax (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior RETERMAOFMEHERAN (REAEFENRET
years) as reported in their respective statutory financial statements, before iR EENE T AEMEBTIREE - TBEEAT
profit distributions to equity holders. All statutory reserves are created for REUYREEENMRIL PHRAARDIREE
specific purposes. A PRC company is required to appropriate an amount BIEENF B SN A - BEBREMHEETE ST
of 10% of statutory profits after income tax to statutory surplus reserves, 0% EELETEBHBEE BEELTRHBREEN
prior to distribution of its post-tax profits of the current year. A company 48 zE R T & AE50%0E - A A A 8 e
may discontinue the contribution when the aggregate sum of the statutory FETEERHEESERRBEAREE BERX A0
surplus reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory EERIEMAFER o b/ RAIAIRIER R R
surplus reserves shall only be used to make up losses of the company, SR E—FSEBHEBERNENSRGHE -
to expand the company’s operations, or to increase the capital of the
company. In addition, a company may make further contribution to the
discretional surplus reserve using its post-tax profits in accordance with
resolutions of shareholders.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be |3l 47 & 18 25 85 & 5% /8 B2 BB B AO B 5% — GBI AE -
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HEHERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F 12 A31B I FE

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
20215 20204
s AR®T T ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHRERE
Cash generated from operations REFFESE 28(a) 30,488 87,736
Income tax paid B FEH (7,449) (5,525)
Interest received B U F 8 1,477 388
Net cash generated from operating activities & &/&BMigREFE 24516 82,599
Cash flows from investing activities RETZBHRERE
Purchase of properties, plant and equipment BB - BE k& E (35,231) (2,014)
Proceeds from disposal of properties, HEME  BEREEN
plant and equipment FriS IR 28(b) 828 101
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE (1,069) (70)
Net cash used in investing activities KB EBFTHR S FE ~ (3s5472) (1,983)
Cash flows from financing activities RETBHRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRITIE RIS RIE 28(c) = 13,000
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER 28(c) (13,000) (13,000)
Gross proceeds from issuance of ordinary R TR T AR
shares upon listing FriS sIA %8 105,114 =
Interest paid BAFLE (128) (634)
Consideration paid for the acquisition of a MBBEEANE KB
subsidiary in respect to reorganisation NAIMEMARE 28(c) - (5,000)
Payment of IPO listing expenses BEXAREE EMASNR (8,193) (3,980)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing Bt & &8T5, (FTA)
activities Rexs#E 83,793 (9,614)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents W& RIS EEBYILINFRE 72,837 71,002
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYRERFAEEEY
of the year 109,483 38,480
Currency translation differences ERinE =5 (26) 1
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FARIREKIAEEEY 21 182,294 109,483
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in iR A& I8 4 7t & 5% e ERRE B OB i — GBI RE o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A T ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F 12 A31B I FE

1 GENERAL INFORMATION, 1 —REB -EARZIEE

REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

1.1 General information

Deyun Holding Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 4 January 2019 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated
and revised of the Cayman Islands. The address of the
Company’s registered office is 71 Fort Street, P.O. Box
500, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-1106, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
is principally engaged in (i) manufacturing of lace and
provision of dyeing services (the “Listing Business”);
and (ii) sales of shoes.

The ultimate holding company of the Company
is Deyong Investment Co., Limited (“Deyong
Investment”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The ultimate controlling
shareholders are Mr. Lin Mingiang, Mr. Lin Bingzhong,
Mr. Lin Chaoji, Mr. Lin Chaowei, Mr. Lin Chaowen all of
whom are acting in concert (together, the “Controlling
Shareholders”).

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing”) on 13 January 2021.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in unit of Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000"), unless otherwise
stated.

1.1 —REH

EEERERAR ([A2H]) 120194
TR4EREREHE R EDE (1961F 5
ZFEN - BEFE RE RHESHE
MK AEREER AR - KRR
fift 9% =5 B b HE A71 Fort Street, P.O. Box
500, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1106, Cayman Islands °

ARBR—RBREZERDA - ARF R
HIfE AR (s A Em]) = 2R Eq
SUETEE MR E R ([ WK ])
K(ii) EFEIHE ©

RRAFBHHBEERARAREBRE X
HE(RBELZEB]) MK L6
‘A A]Deyong Investment Co., Limited
([ Deyong Investment |) o 5 42 {% i%
RRTH—BHMRERTE  MERERE
& MREAE SR A - MERE B A RIKFX
Sk (R ERRR]) °

RRQ TR 202151 138 £ &8 B
ARGIBRABERLEM (L] -

ZEEAVBRRANELARE (TAR
D2 BRIFEZEER BRIMEH
EONBERROTM ([ ARETT]) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
N

SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

1

GENERAL INFORMATION,
REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION (Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation

In preparing for the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group underwent the reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) which mainly involved the following
major steps:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(9)

On 4 January 2019, the Company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. 10,000 shares
of the Company were allotted and issued at par on
7 January 2019 to Deyong Investment which is held
by Mr. Lin Mingiang, Mr. Lin Bingzhong, Mr. Lin
Chaoji, Mr. Lin Chaowei and Mr. Lin Chaowen.

On 29 January 2019, Deyun Investment Limited
("Deyun Investment (BVI)") was incorporated in
the BVI and held by the Company.

On 13 March 2019, Deyun Holding (HK) Limited
(“Deyun Holding (HK)") was incorporated in
Hong Kong and held by Deyun Investment (BVI).

On 23 September 2019, Regal Star Holdings
Limited (“Regal Star”), an investment holding
vehicle of the pre-IPO investor, Mr. Tsoi Wing
Sing (“Mr. Tsoi”), subscribed for 10% of equity
interest of Fujian Deyun Technology Co., Ltd.* (&
#EERE AR 2AR) ("Deyun Technology”)
at 16,000,000 Hong Kong dollars (“HKD")
(approximately RMB14,316,000). The amount was
paid subsequently on 6 November 2019.

On 18 December 2019, Fujian Deyun Consulting
Services Co., Ltd.* (fRiEfEE KRB AR AR
(“Deyun Consulting”) was incorporated in the
PRC and held by Deyun Holding (HK).

On 19 December 2019, Deyun Consulting acquired
the entire equity interests in Deyun Technology
from the Controlling Shareholders and Regal Star,
at a total cash consideration of RMB5,000,000. The
consideration was fully settled on 13 March 2020.
Deyun Technology has since become an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 20 December 2019, the Company allotted
and issued 8,000 and 2,000 new shares for cash
consideration of 8,000 United States dollars
("USD") and USD2,000 respectively to Deyong
Investment and Glorious Way Investments Limited
("Glorious Way"), which is controlled by Mr. Tsoi.

For identification purposes only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires the directors
of the Group to exercise judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4.

(a) Amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has adopted the following amended
standards for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2021:

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)  Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, and Interest Rate
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) — Phase 2

TESTHEBE

M ERERRZ SRS WBRREMRA
MEEGAHER - RIFEXERZH BRIRA
2INAEFE - BEERRAZTRE °

21 RBEE

AEBERAMBHRRCIERBELS S
e ([BEREHEAE ) RONEEN
BmEEA ((EBMBRERER]) KE
BRRHRE (BBEDIF622E) WIKE
HRERHE - FRAMBRRCREELK
AEMREL

RETEBEMBRE RN A B
BEATRERE THREMES  TH
BEAREESHEEAXAKESTERERDN
B2 AT - 0 RS HE B R
RERSNEEXRIRRGEEER
BHREBEANBEC R FARE -

(a) FEEZRALERIETE

AREFDR2021FE1A1BHBE S
FERE IR EX BRI T &EIERT
AR

BB BMERER  Covid-191H
F165% (BFTA) HeER
BB ISMERER] FIRAEERE
FoNE - BEE —F R
FTHERIZE395% -
BEBMIERELE
BISE75E - &S
BT S 2E R S
AR RBERH
A 2RI 1655

CEHEN)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHERE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 RBLEE (@)

(b) B A0 55 (B jf K FRAN B9 FT AT K
BIEETER) - HBRE 55/

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards, interpretation
and accounting guideline issued but not yet
adopted by the Group

LA A B 8 #18720215F12 31
A 2z #k BRI N AR 58 il A2 A 3T ET
KIS FTRR] - 2R &S]
A= B IR EIR AT ER A o

The following new and amended standards,
interpretation and accounting guideline have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2021 reporting periods and have not been early

adopted by the Group.

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
RT5BH
R EARE
BETHBEXR

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

H V8 B T5 i 2E R 5B 16557
CCHEN)

HKFRS 3 (Amendment)

BB B 5 i AE R B 357
CCHEN)

HKFRS 16 (Amendment)

BB 5 E 2R 1657
CCHEN)

HKAS 37 (Amendment)

BB ERE37H (BT A)

HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16
and HKAS 41 (Amendments)

BB WELERE 195 -
BT AE R 5K -
B S 2E R 165 K&
B GRHEREA155
(f&&TA)

Accounting Guideline 5
(Amendments)

CHEECIE FUACCHEN)

HKFRS 17

BB WELRERE175

HKFRS 17 (Amendments)

BB WmEERE175
(5T A)

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2021

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021
7202146 A30H 18 2 Covid- 198 FATH © Z Rt

Reference to the Conceptual Framework
AR R A Rt

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use
Y% - BB MEE—RE R RIS IE

Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract
BREMEEH —BITE AR
Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2018 to 2020
20185 —-20204F 3 HiF Z i

Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations

HEESITE A OS5 EIR

Insurance Contracts

REEEH

Amendments to HKFRS 17

BRI ERERE 17 2185

1 April 2021
202144818

1 January 2022
202251 A1H

1 January 2022
202251 A1H
1 January 2022
202251 A1H

1 January 2022

202251 A1H

1 January 2022

20221 A18
1 January 2023
20231 H1H
1 January 2023
20231 H1H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETHRME @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 RBLEE (@)
(b) New and amended standards, interpretation (b) E {875 B K R B FTET R
and accounting guideline issued but not yet AEIEETER - REER E51 755/ (E)

adopted by the Group (Continued)

Effective for

accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
KT % A8
®Z BRI
BB EXR
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023
BEGFEAFEIREFTAR) BERRBIGERDHE 202351 A1H
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
Statement 2 (Amendments)
EEGEF VR RBEVE SETBR 2 KE 20231 A1H
HEEA BB R EFE25%
(EFTA)
HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
BEGFHERESE (BFTAR) ErtfhEt2ES 202351 A1H
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising 1 January 2023
from a Single Transaction
BAEGFEAFE129 (BRI A) HE-XZFELNEERBERM RN 2023F1A1H
HK Interpretation 5 (2020) Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that 1 January 2023
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
EEREESR(ZT_TF) BRAUSEREREZEINTEHRETN S A 2023F1A1H
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sales or Contribution of Assets between To be determined
(Amendment) an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
BB B ELERIFE 1057 & REERHBENANGERECEENE FRE
BB G AR 285 gEE
(EFTA)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETHRME @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 RBLEE (@)
(b) New and amended standards, interpretation (b) E {875 B K R B FTET R
and accounting guideline issued but not yet AEIEETER - REER E51 755/ (E)

adopted by the Group (Continued)

The Group will adopt the above new and amended N E R Eat AT RSB ET £
standards, interpretation and accounting guideline A ZERSFHES EREERA -
as and when they become effective. The Group has NEBE FRIAFTEZ SR L& g
already commenced an assessment of the impact of IR REKGHESINTEE
these new and amended standards, interpretation HEE T A AL ELE
and accounting guideline, certain of which may be I AT R SRt R & e - R
relevant to the Group’s operations and may give FEAREHAEGRE M BmET
rise to changes in accounting policies, changes in ETEE -

disclosures and remeasurements of certain items in
the consolidated financial statements.

2.2 Subsidiaries 2.2 it A F
2.2.1Consolidation 22158 Ak

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured WEBRARAAEBEEREGIENE
entity) over which the Group has control. The B(AELEEER) E4A5EHE
Group controls an entity when the Group is BB2MEZEBNEEMESK AR
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from ZHAEOR BEHRENBEBERY
its involvement with the entity and has the ability ERBOE NP EZERSRE - AR
to affect those returns through its power over the SEEHIZERE - WEAR B EH
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date EEBEAEEE HBGE AR
on which control is transferred to the Group. They I B HIER IS B R IEGRE A
are deconsolidated from the date that control R o

ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS
9") in profit or loss. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

2 FESTHTHEHRE @

22 EAF (&)

2214580k (#8)

(a)

RXBE

AEERBEBEBEIBEBE
BEARR o W P B 1 ] By
FRERAKBEDBREE -
PrEL R E R BEITHBRARE
SHRAFE -MEBERKEER
EEIRREL Y EMEEE
MEELRBENRFE R
EB AR BER A B A
ENRAENRBERIARAE
BONZRERKBRHNA
FEFE - AKBEREEHR
WisE & AR FELIRIE
2 P A o A R T A A
AFEENERZBALLH] -
e SR 0 15 M B T O A ) R 42

PetEas

W HRRER AR E AR 3K -

R E G0 B BT K
BAORARBRKBLFERN
e #E 7AW B BB B BR T (B 22
Mt ERWE BB ATE
BRAENTEME LW EM
Was s B RN B R -

AEBEK T HEZEOEMAMKA
REZYER BN FERE
RoWER—REEXAE
M RARENRFERER
B mREBMB RS ER
BRI A|I([EBHH
BEEAFN ) RNB P HE
RN BRI RNAKE
BREHAE MERERE
OIS 5PN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Business combination (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries now comprising the Group
have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposal to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The CODM, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the directors who make strategic decisions.

2 FTEESTBRBE @

22 B TF (&)
2214580k (#8)
© HEHBARA

fied 7 = [ 1 75 7 A 1 o 4
HRZERNEMRERS
BEREEGREANRF
BEEFHFE MEREE

AINBEANER - BLERA
RIMEEBERRIREREE
MEREESMS Lt AFE
BN P RRE(E - AN - BRI
HitzEWEANERRZE
BERNTASRRENA
SECERLEAHMEEN
BENATXAR - EARE
KELEMEEMEEKZEA
BRNEEER D BERS -

2228V H#fE

KK E R BRI R E B AR RIIRACAR
HBRREAR - KA BREREN
BRERAS - (B ARNEREREAR
ARE WA R R R B AR

BUWBIRNHB AR HRENRE
o WA SRR B A REE KR
SHENEEREATE R B
MR AR A R E BB R
BRAFEE (BRBE) REA
PR REER - BIZAH AR
REEITRERH

2.3 DEmE

REDHNRELARRETBLERK
E(EEEERKE]) RHEOATRE
AR - TBZ2ERRERANKE
BRRFHERENHRR  HOREER
EHRIARNES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEHBEREBEE@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation 24 INEBRE
2.4.1Functional and presentation currency 241 EER 2B

ltems included in the financial statements of each REEZEBUBHRKRAIINIER
of the Group’s entities are measured using the HRAZERKEMEEELER
currency of the primary economic environment ENE®((THEEE D2 - Fa
in which the entity operates (the “functional IS IMERAR R BN e B KA
currency”). The consolidated financial statements SENENEEAREZ -

is presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional currency and the Group’s presentation

currency.
2.4.2 Transactions and balances 242X 5 R4Z6
Foreign currency transactions are translated into INERZ SRR 5 EBBRTERRE
the functional currency using the exchange rates RUNEEE - HEEAR I RIRF
prevailing at the dates of the transaction. Foreign RNEZRBEAIINETHENEEEE
exchange gains and losses resulting from the REBEMEENINERR —RNE
settlement of such transactions and from the R o

translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are generally recognised in profit or loss.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are Fir 7 H i SN U 25 % 5 48 — 4%
presented in the consolidated income statement on HAENGE WaEm R AR [ E A E
a net basis within “Other losses, net”. BEEIRNZT] -

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair LASNEB A FERT 28 FEE ¥R B £
value in a foreign currency are translated using the REEATEEBREERE - X
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was ATEEAENEERBERERZ
determined. Translation differences on assets and I AR FER R EN —
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of Dol FEEEKEERAE (W
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation AAFEGFEAEZSH T ABRZN
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities ) WIE N ZBERERERS
such as equities held at fair value through profit or N ERZESEEN—BH - Ik
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the EMEE(WMUAATEA=EEHE
fair value gain or loss and translation differences et AH M2 E WS E ) #E
on non-monetary assets such as equities held at HEBAAMEEBKERER -

fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHBRBE@®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.4 HNEEIRE (4F)
2.4.3 Group companies 243E8 A7

The results and financial positions of all the group Mg EBEZFEETRNME S
entities (none of which has the currency of a BER(ERT P REEBRESH
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional BEAEHE) WEERMBARIE LA
currency different from the presentation currency THZERERZVEE

are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of

FH2IOFHERRLERADN

financial position presented are translated at BEKBERZMBMRIER
the closing rate at the date of that statement EHMKMmEXRKE

of financial position;

e income and expenses for each income e BHKmEXREREEWHFERA
statement and statement of comprehensive B ST i T e = (BRIE
income are translated at average exchange Ut E =W IER 5 B B
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable TEEMNRATZENSED
approximation of the cumulative effect of H-ERBERAT  WXIEE
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, ERGBEBHNERRE) : &

in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are e FEHUEANERZFERN
recognised in other comprehensive income. Hfth 2 W 2w FERR ©
On consolidation, exchange differences arising REre ARE - MEF RGN
from the translation of any net investment BHIR & F M EEE R Z8at
in foreign operations are taken to other AEMEERE o 8 HEBINER
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation HEEBKZIREF B D M ER
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net B HANELEZBERERSE
investment are repaid, the associated exchange TR EWEs BN —

differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part
of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on AW EEEIINEEMEENDERAD
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated FEAR HRIEEREINEEN
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and BEREBE WREHMERKE -

translated at the closing rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs, net of their residual value, over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Buildings Shorter of estimated
useful lives or
remaining lease terms

Plant and machinery 5to 15 years

Office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

Gains or losses on disposal are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in
“Other losses, net” in consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHERE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
25 ¥ -BERRE#E)

2.5 Properties, plant and equipment

(Continued)

Construction-in-progress (the “CIP") represents
properties and plant under construction and is stated
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
and capitalised borrowing costs. No provision for
depreciation is made on CIP until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and ready for intended
use. When the assets concerned are available for use, the
cost are transferred to relevant categories of properties,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with
the policy as stated above.

2.6 Investment property

Investment property is stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation. Investment property, is held
for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and is not occupied by the Group. Investment
property is initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of
investment property over the shorter of its estimated
useful life of 30 years or the related leasing period and
after taking into account of its estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method.

The asset’s residual value and useful life is reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within “Other losses, net” in consolidated
income statement.

ERTR(ERIRDEERTOME
R - AR RFHRERERZ5 (40
B) KABREREERBBRARER
fEEREAR - ERIRZITEREBRS
REMEERT RAMERERE BT
AFR-HEBEEAHER  BIKAE
HREMAENE  BEMREBER XL
RIE BB BRRETRITE -

2.6 BEWME

REMERBELRXABRNERT
REMEDFHEARREHBES WAL
ERERIBRERMERE  AIFHAE
BER REMEVNSEZRAE 8
ERAR 5 E R RERKA WER)
REMEET REFRBEEER R
FHERFHB0F HAMBEERE AR
RERE)NEREBRRBINE - UM
BEWERT

BENKKEENERAFHIRN

A& 7R
SHRETR  WIEHEENFAE -

WEENREESNE G TRE S -
AN K EERTEMREE KD S
R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHTHEHRE @

2.7 Intangible assets 27 EREE

122

Software

Computer software licenses for own use are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to
use the specific software. Computer software is carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment,
if any. These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of 5 years.

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

2.9 Financial assets

2.9.1Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as assets to
be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Group reclassified debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTBRBE@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued) 29 SREE (&)
2.9.2Recognition and measurement 29.27FZRiE

At initial recognition, the Group measures a R R - AN EEE N FEM
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of (& @MEEW IR FE AR
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or D) BEEREEEEELNRS
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable KAGTESREE - BAFERA
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction BalemEEXINEIRNERX
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through o

profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are ErHenESRERRERHA
considered in their entirety when determining NEE - ERARITELIANS
whether their cash flows are solely payment of BEEREEER -

principal and interest.

Debt instruments EELA

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments B LENERTESTASEE
depends on the Group’s business model BEENFBEAREERERE
for managing the asset and the cash flow REEME - NEBBEGEHBIAS
characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies its HAREIENAGE -

debt instruments to be measured at amortised cost.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual FEWBERNREME MR
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely EERLRERAENRHNEERE
payments of principal and interest are measured at SHEX ARG & - B EER IEERIOR
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment B - BE R R B AR StE B 3
that is subsequently measured at amortised HAHEERNEBREN R ERE
cost and is not part of a hedging relationship RERPER - ZEERMEENN
is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is BUASABBRRZETIAEABYA -

derecognised or impaired. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method.

2.9.3Derecognition 2.9.34IFBSR
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights BRI EWEGR € 2/ ER ER
to receive cash flows from the investments have HEWEE BEASBEEEME
expired or have been transferred and the Group B 48 KB 5 BB 12 [0l Ry - 4% 0
has transferred substantially all risks and reward of HREMEE -
ownership.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHBRBE@®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments 210K €M I A
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net EAAEERBIATENEEEERS
amount reported in the consolidated statements of B UAERRFEEELESRKEE
financial position when there is a legally enforceable BERMEAER cREEHEEER
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an B WEESWBRARZ2®RA
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and HEE o

settle the liability simultaneously.

2.11 Impairment of financial assets LNERMEERE
The Group’s financial assets measured at amortised AEERBHEKAAENESRHEERS
cost are subject to HKFRS 9's expected credit loss BB R EERESRNBEHREEEE
model. The Group assesses on a forward looking basis R AR PR o 2N 5 [ LA BT BE 1 B 2E 5T (4
the expected credit losses associated with its assets HiZ@ XAt EnEERENTERE
carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology EFBE - KANBEFRNGETEERR
applied depends on whether there has been a significant A AL E o f73.1.325 8%
increase in credit risk. Note 3.1.3 sets out the details on B[ EE 2R A EAE B RIS N
how the Group determines whether there has been a 1& o
significant increase in credit risk.
For contract assets, trade and bills receivables, the HENEE BHRWREBEREREE
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by ms  NEBRBESVBREELNE
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be SREFTMEARX  ZAREKRKEY
recognised from initial recognition. The provision matrix IREREERERFTENESE - BEE
is determined based on historical observed default rates EARBREEUEERBSEHNEHNEE
over the expected life of the contract assets, trade and Z 5 EUGRIA R EWE R R TEAF EA
bills receivables with similar credit risk characteristics HBEBRMBEANRERE @ WEARK
and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every HEFAE REREHRAEHBAER
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are IS ER DT ARG EE) o
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.
For other receivables, the Group measures the HEMEBUFIENS KT EERRE
impairment as either 12-month expected credit losses or NTHREBEEARNR LA XEEFE
life-time expected credit losses, depending on whether WERIEATBREEBBNFESRE
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since HEEEE - MEMERFENEER
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit B AV HERERNE L BRERTE
risk of the other receivables has occurred since initial HEMEEEE=E -

recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime
expected credit losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade, bills
and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment.

2.13 Inventories

The Group's inventories comprise solely raw materials
which stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted-average method.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and deposits held at call with banks
with original maturities of three months or less.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEHBEREBEE@

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Trade and other payables L1 EZENRERELMMENS IR
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or B ORNRIBIERN —REBBEFE
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course HEFMBESEMARBNROEE - M
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables IR —F AR (EERANEEBIE
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due BRERABRA) B - A8 5 EMNRIE
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle REMERNFRIBESBEARSEE - B -
of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as BHRNFIEZSRIERBEE -

non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair B 5N RIAREMEN KBNS RR
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost FER - B8 B IR R R E RS HK
using the effective interest method. RETE o
2.17 Borrowings 217 B

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of BREVIERATEHREEERFHK
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently A) FERR o fE SR E 18 d S5 Pk AN B B
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the Fr{S s I8 (B R S A ) BLiE B {EE K
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption ERIZER - PNMEREERA BR R =ER
value is recognised in interest expense over the period of FIS 1R o

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the RIEREEERBRHTCEEEZAESR
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of HREBHEZL T @A TAERS
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting HARBARE -

period.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly BEEEBRKE BERILEERERE
attributable to the acquisition, construction or ER—REFEERNAE - TR TK &
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the EBEEEAEENERRTERSNIEHEE
period of time that is required to complete and prepare FEMHBRARTER  SEREER
the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are WA E—BRREMEENEERTER
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to BN HENEE -

get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment ERANENEEREER BRIBEMNR
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on EEFAERRRERRAKRERA -
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs JEfE G ERE AR BERK AR -

eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in H A fE R AR E L BRI 8 -
which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTBRBE@

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Provisions 218818
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present ERKERBEFHARESIAEX
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past HEEE METEEAREEGEER
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will - BRESR e s B SR - Al
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has SHERBEE BRECEBETSERE
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for 1 o

future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the MR ZBEUERTE  BITAEFEE
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement TR B AT R TS BB E R A A
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a BETE - BMEREE EFR R EM—IER
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of HEIR AT BE ML AT RE IR - D2 FERR
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the 1 o

same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the BEFARBAANEZRETEBAT

expenditures expected to be required to settle the RHEIME X HHIREANE  BRAMNER

obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current MERmZEEENRHEEBERZAT

market assessments of the time value of money and A BB A AT o P BRE D HE S T 48 A0 A9

the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the BERRASMEKAR

provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance

costs.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax 29N RIEZE RSB

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax AT S B S s R 1R 8 BAFE R B UK

payable on the current period’s taxable income based AR REEEEBNETE - W5t

on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction AR YR E R R AR EEmE

adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities BMEEREEERBEEL AR -

attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax

losses.

2.19.1 Current income tax 2.19.1 BIEG B 5%
The current income tax charge is calculated on BVER TS B S H Th iR R A Bl 6O BT /8
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively NE R B E N T L E R E A ERM
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the WARBE RN HEAREEHRE
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and HRGOBISEAGE - ERERN
associates operate and generate taxable income. HABBRAINXZEMRBOHBER
Management periodically evaluates positions FEH AR RN WEEE
taken in tax returns with respect to situations &5 T AR IR 78 HAZA (R B A5 A = 1+
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to e ERE -

interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHTHEHRE @

Q19BN EA R IEFE PR 1S B4 (4F)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

2192 EFE TS H

2.19.2 Deferred income tax

128

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
income tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTBRBE@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Employee benefits 2200 EEEF
2.20.1 Short-term obligations 201 REEF

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including TR 7 E B 1R 448 78 AR 75 19 2R
non-monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave NeET_EA2EEENTE - &
that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve ® (BREIFEBRI) REAHER
months after the end of the period in which the BERBERENERESIRESN
employees render the related service are recognised BR 75 M RR L $2)5 18 B ER TR AT X
in respect of employees’ services up to the end NHEFBEE - HEBERGE Y
of the reporting period and are measured at the AR =R Iz B Hi R B R A & (7
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities R o

are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

2.20.2 Other long-term employee benefit obligations 202 Bt RAEESEFEZ(E
The obligations are presented as current liabilities B EEGGRITEERESE
in the consolidated statements of financial position REREHEREDS @A M
if the entity does not have an unconditional right mIEHAREERESR B
to defer settlement for at least twelve months after FRAEMBRARZINARBEE -

the reporting period, regardless of when the actual
settlement is expected to occur.

2203 Defined contribution plans 203 FRERMEE

The Group pays contributions to state-managed AEEMHBERERNRAE R
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, @t BRG] - KB RIEMH
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no TR o ANER B 7E 2 A5 R 18 B A —
further payment obligations once the contributions FRREME - EFHR AR HERR
have been paid. The contributions are recognised EERNAX - WEBBR SR
as employee benefit expense when they are due. RRGEFEE IR T3 - FEA e
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to RBREE °

the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

2204 Bonus plans 2204 FEALETE
The Group recognises a liability and an expense N BEIR RET R AR S B AR R A
for bonuses based on a formula that takes into I E T AR A ERE
consideration the profit attributable to the Group's AEEERAX AEEREEAHER
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group ESGREENI B E AT B ERTE
recognises a provision where contractually obliged REHE -

or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEHBEREBEE@

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition 221 =R
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the W B W E R EN A FEE -
consideration received or receivable, and represents B AL E —REBKBEFREESEM
amount for the goods sold or service rendered in the SR AR 7 B U K U B FRIE
ordinary course of the Group’s activity.
The Group does not expect to have any contracts where AEBEA B I EEEMNEELAEE R
the period between the transfer of the promised goods SR TEPER P HR 2z FH AR ER
or services to the customers and the payment by the —FEWMERN - Al - AREWRKEES
customers exceeds one year. As a consequence, the W EEBERABERZSER -
Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for
the time value of money.
When either party to a contract has performed, the EAHNEAN—FERY  ANEEREA
Group presents the contract in the consolidated EERBANERTENRANBERERGREEE
statements of financial position as a contract asset or a BEREIEHNRENEEIENEE -
contract liability, depending on the relationship between
the Group's performance and the customer’s payment.
A contract asset is the Group's right to consideration AHEERASBERARFEZEE MK
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has AR mABREWERRENET - BESE
transferred to a customer. Incremental costs incurred REENILERAR (AT E) & & AR
to obtain a contract, if recoverable, are capitalised and WEINAEE  WHRHEEERE @R
presented as assets and subsequently amortised when RrBEH o
the related revenue is recognised.
A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer BB EREAEEE WEEEREB R
the promised goods or services to a customer for which EmEREFEEAGEERARBOE
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of 7% o
consideration is due) from the customer.
A receivable is recorded when the Group has an FEWHRIERAE B SR EEE E G-
unconditional right to consideration. A right to B A B o find 2 78 137 BRF i 38 2 88 AT KO
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time RAE - WERE BRI BN A 54 -
is required before payment of that consideration is due.
Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have been Wezs B B T X PTEL AN &R EDE BV 45 TE
met for the Group's activity as described below: IEAERF TR -
Manufacturing of lace and provision of dyeing HERERIEMRERE
services
Revenue from manufacturing of lace and provision of BLEIE RBRHAERBE 2 WERE @
dyeing services is recognised when the control of the HAR TSI IR ERS TR PR

goods or services is transferred to the customer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEHBEREBEE@

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued) 221 R TR (&)
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws BEENERREARGHZERE 8
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or & o o AR 7S 122 o A T B B R A SR 2 B
services may transfer over time or at a point in time. MEER - MAKERBAFRENE
Control of the goods or services is transferred over time EERERASEAEEERESE R
if the Group’s performance does not create an asset BB AV ER S S SRR Rl & 1T RE D - Rl
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group B mak R 1T e R AR o

has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, fin) & m 3k AR 75 12 Il e PR s 1 82 75 - Bl
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by mRENHRRTERITRAREZE
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction EWHER B WaRNEPIISEERE
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is il P R PR 5R ©

recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the asset.

Revenue recognised over time uses the input method W THE2Z 8 Mk AR TE E 4 2 BB
with reference to the costs incurred for the goods or R ] 58 FR 830 AR TSR ©

services.

Sales of shoes BEEHE

Revenue from trading of casual and sports footwear is EENHERKEDERNKIENE D
recognised when control of the products has transferred, WiIEHIEEER (AERRNTER) -
being when the products are delivered to the customers, mMEFEREEEER  BWERBTH
the customers have full discretion over the products, and EAMAETERFPERERRER -
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the EEMEBEXAZRTEME  REREBELXD
customers’ acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs ElREE®E TR  BRFPERRBIEE
when the products have been shipped to the specified BABERE R - SEBERIERE LR
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been SAEEERETREAMMEZEREL
transferred to the customers, and either the customers EAERNKE - BB AR o

have accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed,
or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

As receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered EWRIBRE mR I R#ER - DERRE
as this is the point in time that the consideration is RzkEEREREGY  EASHFRE
unconditional because only the passage of time is FIEASE A o

required before the payment is due.

2.22 Interest income 2.22 7 B WA
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis FIE U A TH 18 55 I 8 b ) 2 12 B R R
using the effective interest method. TIRTER o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FTESTHREBE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Leases 2378
The Group leases land for the manufacturing of lace and REERBELEREBRABRRBEE
provision of dyeing services. The consideration paid for T REEXNNREBEREREEE
the lease is treated as a right-of-use asset, which is stated 7RI - R R R R AR
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated BEEEE) 2% - HE R FI#AHE
impairment losses, if any. Lease land is amortised over EHRE R E R -

the remaining lease term using straight-line method.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and the HERHEEEMHASEMA 2 BH

corresponding liabilities at the date of which the leased BRACAREERBESE -SHM

asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease SN ERBERBEKAE - g & KA

payment is allocated between the liability and finance HEREHERRN ISR T 8 - AR

cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the Ut I 7 & B B 4 B ([ eR 58 2 12 E B fH

lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of IS o

interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each

period.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially BHEEENEERBBEVFZRABER

measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities £ - HEBGEBEUNTHEN KD

include the net present value of the following lease REFHE

payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed e BEEMKR(BEEDEEFN -
payments), less any lease incentives receivable; BAEMERAEEE

e variable lease payment that are based on an index o HRNIEBE AR AT EHEERK
or a rate;

e amounts expected to be payable by the lessee o FREEERTHABANEIRE
under residual value guarantees; I

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee o IREBEMITHEES (MAMBEAGE
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and HREEITEZERN) &

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, o XNMERIEMEMI K (M E HR
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that R ANTTEE L) o
option

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate HENRERBEME SR E (H:Z

implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or the FEARETE) Rz BEBESERF X

entity’s incremental borrowing rate. FTUAHTER o
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Leases (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of less than 12 months. Low-value
assets comprise assets with value below RMB5,000.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the underlying asset and recognised as expense over the
lease term on the same basis as lease income.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the periods in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

2.25 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised in the consolidated income statement
within “Other income” on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are recognised.

2.26 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

2 FESTHTHEHRE @

23 E &)

HERHRERBNSNREEBEEEDN
HENBEARER BT R R 58
HMHEEEAERA LN 2EANHEE -
EEEEESKEERERARY5000
TTHBEE °

REAEBESHEAANKERE ZHE
BEWARBHARELERNBATER
RREEHEEENNFERKATIN
REMEEMNREEL  YHEBABAZ
HEWRARREEEB LA

2.24 IR B 7R

ARRD KR BEARRIBRKES
(n:E R ) 41t 6 75 B AR 0 HA ] A TR g 2
RBEE-

2.25 B AT % BY

BRI RE K A W IRBT B
MAKE K &N FTA M R - &
I Bh & R E N FERER

MEAEEEENRAX ZHBE Rt
REERRAS AR BRERA RER
[E A YA AR o

HFREE

FRBETDRBEERAIEELENE T -
MEFEELTEREEZEHIARBEL
—RASRAEETEETTRIEH TR
ARKREREE - AARABETARER
RAIREAR MK EERSARGER SEat &
BERETSBEMTTHERNBESEMN
EEMREEE-

KRABLTHER  EBEFBRRT
KE-BERLERNAEERE - BUE
AEEREER  ARABERRERA
Bith o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 M¥ERER
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: REBEBRXZEMBRER : mERRE (2
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate FINER B R EER) - FEERRRRE
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk BBk AEEMNEERREETEIER
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of BEemmSMN A EANY WS KFER
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse BHAEBFBRENBENFTZE -

effects on the Group's financial performance.

3.1 Market risk 3.1 MR K
3.1.1Foreign exchange risk 311 SMER B

The majority of assets and liabilities are ABLEERBBEUARKE - ET
denominated in RMB, USD and HKD, and there are RABTE  TEEMERNEER
no significant assets and liabilities denominated in BENEMER.E - AEEEHER
other currencies. The Group is subject to foreign HEREER S ARERAARKE
exchange rate risk arising from future commercial Nhz B (BAAEBAEELE
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities ARIZNEEB)TENEERE
which are denominated in a currency other than BT EERINETERRE R - AEE
RMB, which is the functional currency of the major T B 7 4 Y L ANEE [ B o

operating companies within the Group. The Group
currently does not hedge its foreign currency

exposure.
The Group’s foreign currency transactions are AEEBZHINERZGEBAETE
mainly denominated in USD. At 31 December B ° 7A20214F12 A318 * ETLH
2021, if USD had weakened/strengthened by ARBEE B FHES%IM A b
5% against the RMB with all other variables held AERZRETE HEFHEBH
constant, profit before income tax for the year LIEFEE NSRS TR L,
then ended would have been approximately # N4 AR #566,0007T (20204 :
RMB566,000 lower/higher (2020: RMB440,000 B, AN# AR #440,0007T)
lower/higher), mainly as a result of the foreign FERBENETHENENE
exchange difference on the translation of USD E BIREWFIEREREZEERNR
denominated contract assets, trade and bills RERREFEMZINEEZR -

receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

At 31 December 2021, if HKD had weakened/ 20215123318 - B TRAR
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all ¥ 87 8, FH{E5%im T A £ fib a] £
other variables held constant, profit before income AERFEIE - BEBBHABAALSF
tax for the years then ended would have been [E IR BTS84 B s R8s 4> 48 hn
approximately RMB1,452,000 lower/higher (2020: 4 A R #1,452,0007T (20204 : R
RMB374,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of L BN A R #374,0007T) £
the foreign exchange difference on the translation ERBREAETHENRE e RS
of HKD denominated cash and cash equivalents. ZEYIMNEZR -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEREE@M@
(Continued)
3.1 Market risk (Continued) 3.1 Wi Ak (&)
3.1.2Interest rate risk 312 FIEE

The Group's interest rate risk is mainly attributable REBOFERREERGEAE
to its cash at banks and bank borrowings with X EMRITR S RRITHE
floating interest rates. Details of the Group’s cash oo REERITIRE A RRITER
at banks and bank borrowings have been disclosed B w18 9 Rl B 4R & B 7% S 2k B o
in Note 21 and Note 26 to the consolidated 21 2 i 5E26 5% 57 -

financial statements respectively.

Other than cash at banks and bank borrowings, the REIRTTIR S A RRITERIN - A&
Group does not have significant interest-bearing EirfmERTEEENBE-

assets or liabilities.

As at 31 December 2021, if interest rates on cash 20214128318  HETIRER
at banks and bank borrowings had been 100 basis R 77 {5 R B9 FI R 182 055k 2> 1001E
points higher/lower with all variables held constant, ERmMMAEHMESRTTE - B
profit before income tax for the years then ended ZHHB BIEFE RS H A=
would have been approximately RMB1,823,000 e, R AR 1,823,000
higher/lower (2020: RMB965,000 higher/lower), 76 (20204 : #0R A AR
mainly as a result of higher/lower of interest income 965,0007T) * FEHRRITHESH
on the cash at banks netted with higher/lower A2 WAL IR (R ERTT
interest expenses on the bank borrowings. EREF SFZIEM, D) BB
3.1.3Credit risk 313 ERE

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from AEERNEERBEZRFRTE
cash at banks, contract assets, trade and bills ®EHNEE  EBEHEWFIERE
receivables and other receivables. The carrying USR5 A R E Ath FE IR IR © F &
amounts of each financial asset represent the BEMNEABEEASENCREE
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation PR & A EERR

to financial assets.

Risk management B EHE

The Group has policies in place to ensure that credit REEEHEBRRBREEHN A
terms are made to customers with an appropriate BEERMERZEMNTFEL - A
credit history and the Group performs periodic SEBHERPETEREERNM -
credit evaluations of its customers.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and EEARTERALRRERREE
cash and cash equivalents are limited because BYNEERRER REARZE
deposits are in banks with sound credit ratings GRERREETREENRT
and management does not expect any loss from WEBEEATERZEHFHE
non-performance by these counterparties. K EEEMELE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BERRERE @

(Continued)
3.1 Market risk (Continued) 3.1 mi5 A (&)

3.1.3Credit risk (Continued) 313 ERE (8)

136

Risk management (Continued)
(@ Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial asset
that is subject to the expected credit loss
models:

o Contract assets, trade and bills
receivables

. Other financial assets carried at
amortised cost

Contract assets, trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all
contract assets, trade and bills receivables. The
Group measures the expected credit losses on a
combination of both individual and collective basis.

To measure the expected credit losses, contract
assets, trade and bills receivables have grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. The contract assets relate to
unbilled services and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the
loss rates for the contract assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MHEREERE @
(Continued)
3.1 Market risk (Continued) 3.1 Mz A &)
3.1.3Credlit risk (Continued) 313 EERERE (/&)
Measurement of expected credit loss on individual 15512 7B 2z B E 1R
basis
Contract assets, trade and bills receivables with BEANELEENEGNEE BFE
known insolvencies are assessed individually for Wk I8 K FE U = 4% Ty 17 8 Bl AT il
impairment allowances and are written off when AREBORERE - YN SRR
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. 7% Y2 [B] B 4 8E o 7020214812 A 31
As at 31 December 2021, the balance of loss B - BLaz 38 R 5k e YR IE 2 &
allowance in respect of these individually assessed BRBESROR A K%2,169,000
receivables was approximately RMB2,169,000 7t (20204 : AR #569,0007T) ©

(2020: RMB569,000).

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective R EFRAIE EER

basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated by Kt REPUE RARRER - K
grouping the remaining receivables based on SEMRBEHARGEERRSEE
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively T 5 FEUGRIE 2 48 K 2[R 51 4k [El
assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking into A hETTRERE B &R - Wi
account the nature of the customer and its ageing BEEEEEEERE S E WA
category, and applying the expected credit loss BREEME -

rates to the respective gross carrying amounts of
the receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are estimated on BHEEEBEEERERELEEE
the basis of historical credit losses experienced, BEBRmEr - WIFHFARURMRE
adjusted to reflect the effects of existing market Al TR R B R P s R R IA Y
conditions as well as forward looking information N B EEA RO ATEEE R

on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivable.

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of loss M20215F12A318 » 2S£ R &F
allowance in respect of these collectively assessed HERRIEBENBEERELROR
receivables was approximately RMB474,000 (2020: AR #474,0007T (20205 : ARHE
RMB100,000). 100,0007T) °

Impairment losses on contract assets, trade and BREE BHRWEFIEREWRE
bills receivables are presented as “net impairment BREBB NG ERmRANA &
losses on financial assets and contract assets” MEERGHNEEREBEEBFHE]
in the consolidated income statement. When a HIAR o & FEUCGRIE SR U Bl R - B
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against ] FE YR IE RS AR A S o EL g R (el
the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent WM RIBE R EARIEE -

recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MHEREERE @
(Continued)
3.1 Market risk (Continued) 3.1 Mz A &)
3.1.3Credlit risk (Continued) 313 EERERE (/&)
Other financial assets carried at amortised cost TR B 3K NS B B B2 m A
The Group’s other financial assets carried at R ER B A AR A B S
amortised cost include other receivables in the BEAEREMBIRARNES R
consolidated statement of financial position. The E M fEIGRIE © FREE ARSI BR Y
impairment loss of other financial assets carried at HAth & 5 & E R E R T547 1218
amortised cost is measured based on the 12-month ARMTEEEEEETE - 12858
expected credit loss. The 12-month expected credit TREMEEEE SRS B HE12ME A
loss is the portion of lifetime expected credit loss WAl Be AR B e R T AR E
that results from default events on a financial HNEHFMEBNFERBHREES
instrument that are possible within 12 months B —HH - A WEERRE S
after the reporting date. However, when there EEBNBBEELR  ZBEEHEN
has been a significant increase in credit risk since FEMEREEERREE -

origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime expected credit loss.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, management 20214 20206 12H318 © &
considered the credit risk of other receivables to 18 2 R 7= E A fE BGRIB )5 B B
be low as counterparties have a strong capacity RE BAEYFHEEERAARE
to meet their contractual cash flow obligations in TEHREREE TR KR

the near term. The Group has assessed that the AREB BT - RET12(8 A 8978 &7
expected credit losses for these other receivables BHR% 7% H fth fE W R IE ) T8 A7
were immaterial under 12-month expected losses EEBBIETEXN Al 254
method. Therefore, the loss allowance provision BB BRITREKX - B EERE
for these balances was immaterial and no provision fa] B4 o

was recognised.

3.1.4Liquidity risk 314 REELEE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current AEBRER AT HERIRR LA
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that HHRBESH K URERERE
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its SAHYIR © 1 18 DA FE 1~ HL 5 B K = B
liquidity requirements in the shorter and longer MEBEEFR -
term.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group held cash MR2021F12A318 A& E#H A
and cash equivalents amounting to approximately WEERBEEEEMARARYE
RMB182,294,000 (2020: RMB109,483,000), that 182,294,0007T (20204 : A R ¥
are expected to be readily available to generate 109,483,0007T) * FEHIAIEAR &
cash inflows for managing liquidity risk. MANBERREE SRR
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MHEREERE @
(Continued)
3.1 Market risk (Continued) 3.1 Mz A &)
3.1.4Liquidity risk (Continued) 314 ZEHELEE (E

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of AEEBBLBREHFRBDE
sources including orderly realisation of receivables ® BREEFERASERSEE
that the Group considers appropriate and adequate REBRIE  RASEEHEERE
amount of available financing including short-term BRERITEEZREHEREREE
borrowings are also considered by the Group in AAME AEEETERAKRR
its capital structuring. The Group aims to maintain REIRITHS B AEER
flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient bank Mt BEBEFRERESNBEIE
balances, committed credit lines available and AEAREBERA] RS REBHER
interest bearing borrowings which enable the i o
Group to continue its business for the foreseeable
future.
The table below analyses the non-derivative TRINFASEIENTESHBER
financial liabilities of the Group into relevant FRAEEE B BRZE I - AR R R B SRR
maturity groupings based on the remaining period FEBEESHINHBENFSBREETT
at the statement of financial position date to the DT

contractual maturity date.

The amounts disclosed in the table were the EARENSEASNRMRRS
contractual undiscounted cash flows and the MEMAEEBERERINHRE
earliest date the Group can be required to pay. HEf -

Less than  More than

1 year 1 year Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
PREF BB1F At
ARETT AR¥®TT ARETT
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12831R
Trade payables B ETHIE 20,221 - 20,221
Other payables and accruals H A R 5008 R B 3R (T B 15

(excluding accrued employee benefits, — EFHEERH - BEP KRG ESE
deposits received from customersand R E b ENFE)

other tax payables) 12,386 2,606 14,992
32,607 2,606 35,213
At 31 December 2020 #2020F12A831H
Trade payables BHEMNTE 10,706 = 10,706
Other payables and accruals H A e FRIB R B FUE (TR 1E

(excluding accrued employee benefits, — fEzHES R - B EPUIGEZS
deposits received from customers and R E A EAFEE)

other tax payables) 31,125 2,661 33,786
Bank borrowings - principal portion BITER -2 HH 13,000 - 13,000
Bank borrowings — interest portion BIER-FEHM 504 - 504

55,335 2,661 57,996
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEREE @

(Continued)

3.2 Capital management 3.2 EXER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEEEEALNNE ERREAEEIZ
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going FEREELREBECENGE S UARK
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders R R B3 - [R] RE R BEE H {th R 25 AR BE &
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an B A a4 RS ) B AR RS DURVE
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. BRI o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, REFHABREREE  AEEHEH
the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to BERRFRMOKRESE - MRFRMD
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or sell assets BRI E B ERRETR o

to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of total debt to AEBZBABENEERNL REEE
total capital ratio. Total debt and total capital represent Ko BEEREBENEBEEMBRREK
total borrowings and total equity, as shown in the Fro REI4RIE B R Bk - 20216 &
consolidated statement of financial position. The total 2020512 A1 A B FEEH B E R =
debt to total capital ratios at 31 December 2021 and (N

2020 were as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
20215 20204F

ARBT T ARET T

Total borrowings FEAERN - 13,000
Total equity arEm 334,706 222,951
Total debt to total capital ratio BRI E B E AR X N/ATIE A 5.8%
The decrease in total debt to total capital ratio from BIETEE B E AR R BH2020612H31H
5.8% as at 31 December 2020 to nil as at 31 December #95.8% NP ZE20215F12A31BHZE - T
2021 was mainly due to the repayment of bank FERRBE2021F12A31HIEFEE
borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2021. EIRITIERATE ©
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The Group did not have any financial assets or financial
liabilities at the consolidated statement of financial
position which is measured at fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including trade and bills receivables, other receivables,
amounts due from shareholders and cash and cash
equivalents; and the Group’s financial liabilities including
trade payables, other payables and accruals, amounts
due to shareholders and bank borrowings, approximate
their fair values due to their short maturities.

The nominal values less any estimated credit adjustments
for financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less
than one year are assumed to approximate their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

3

BRERERER @#)

3.3

&t

REBRERE M IBARR KR AL EIZRF
EBEFfENENeREEXTRAR -

>
_Ia
[

AEECREERRE S BUARE
YR - H AR UGRIR - B WA R GRR
EReFBASEEY MAKETRE
BEREEZRERNFIA  EbENFEAR
FERTHR ~ BT BRI RERTTHE K
HRZEEREERSRABEBEHT
B HEREERAQFERS -

AMAIR—FNEREERBBZR
HEERTAGAEEARRKREEAF
BERE RAUARENESREBEIFESE
BEAEERBUSH T RSN ER
MIZHEFRRENRAERERR TN
R
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 BERETMTRER

142

AND ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

4.1 Impairment of receivables and contract
assets

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
and contract assets based on assumptions about risk
of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group’s historical default rates, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. The identification
of impairment of receivables and contract assets
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where
the expectations are different from the original
estimates, such differences will impact the carrying
value of receivables and contract assets and loss for the
impairment of receivables and contract assets recognised
in the periods in which such estimates have been
changed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company and the
Group is principally engaged in

(i)  manufacturing of lace and provision of dyeing services;
and

(i)  sales of shoes.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
directors of the Company. The directors review the Group's
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. The directors have determined the operating
segment based on these reports.

In previous years, the directors consider the Group’s operation
from a business perspective and determine that the Group has
two reportable operating segments being manufacturing of
lace and provision of dyeing services. During the year, a new
subsidiary was incorporated in Hong Kong which is principally
engaged in sales of shoes. Therefore, the Board currently
considers the Group’s operation from a business perspective
and determines that the Group has three reportable operating
segments being,

(i) Manufacturing of lace — principally engaged in
manufacturing of lace based on customers’ orders for
lingerie and other products;

(i)  Provision of dyeing services — principally engaged in
provision of dyeing services of lace and swim wear fabrics
based on customers’ orders; and

(iiiy  Sales of shoes — principally engaged in trading of causal
and sports footwear

The directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of revenue and gross profit.

WKk o EBEH

AR AR ERA T R AL E E B
==

() BBEEBREHAERE X

(i) EEHE -
TRLEERRECHERANRARESLE -E=X

EHAEENALREANFHERERDEE
ReBEERBEZERERELEDH -

RBEFE BEFREBAREELAREN

BB CREAEEAMET2REEH T

BIBLETEE RIBHABRE - FR - —HH
MBRARANERBKY  TEREEEHE -
it ZEE22 BN ETAREZEBEAREN
g ITREAKREA=EANZ/NEED

& DRlE

() HETE-IBERERBEPHOLER
KM E A E mA] FRIETEE

(i) REIABRE-TBLEREEFIE
REFIEERARLERY - &

(i) EEHE-TERERBREDERED
2%

EERBNEREMNOFEFEHRE DA
RH o
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WHEo2IER &)

(Continued)
(a) Segment revenue by operating (a) BEE T HBE D7 HBUW =
segments
The segment information provided to the directors [FE FAT IR A B E20214F 2020612
for the reportable segments for the years ended 31 A31HIEFEM A 238D D 2FEM
December 2021 and 2020 is as follows: mE
Manufacturing of lace  Provision of dyeing services Sales of shoes Total
HETR RUFERY HEHE &3t
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
20215 20205 2021 2020F 2021 2020F 2021% 20205
ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Seqment revenue arlige 56,161 76,675 94244 121,803 15,537 - 165942 198478
Segment results R E 1852 3579 18995 40278 1,621 - 3919 738%7

Other segmental information: £t 54 #} :
Depreciation of properties, ~ #1% * FIE R
plant and equipment HENRE 7,425 7,52 8,023 7,209 - - 15,448 14732

Additions to non-current ERBIEE
seqment assets #Em 24771 127 24,295 16,203 - - 26,772 16,330
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12A31H I FE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

5 WEksHER @)

(b) EFEHWFED I

(b) Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers

AEENKEKENRKESFEHEES
an M BE RS P ER L ARTS - a0 T

The Group derived revenue from the sales of goods at
a point in time and provision of services over time as

follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000
20215 2020%F
AR®T T ARBT T

Timing of revenue recognition Uy 2 e SR PR i
Over time — provision of services BERFE — IR ARTS 150,405 198,478
At a point in time — sales of goods HEREZ - HEEM 15,537 =
165,942 198,478

(o) BEFHEMNES 2K DB
i z2

AREEERBEGEMAL » AN & B30 1E
NE (EREPAEETE)E D HEN

(c) Segment revenue by customers’
geographical location

The Group is domiciled in the PRC. The Group's revenue
by geographical location, which is determined by the

(d)

location of customers, is as follows: T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
20214 20204
AR®T ARBET T
The PRC R 148,577 196,672
Hong Kong B 16,232 1,124
Others H A 1,133 682
165,942 198,478

Information about major customers

Revenue derived from any single external customer was
less than 10% of the Group’s total revenue during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Deyun Holding Ltd. (RE#ZERAR QA T*)

d) EB2EFEH

HE20214 N2020F12A318 IEFE -
ARE—IIBEFEENREEREER

EUTZE10% AT ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12A31H I FE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

5 WEksHER @)

(Continued)
(e) Details of contract liabilities (e) EHNEEBHE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
202145 20204
AR®T AREFTT
Contract liabilities (Note 23) 88 E (MEE23) 588 3,440
Notes: Mg s -

()

(9)

(@)  Contract liabilities represent advanced payments received
from the customers for services that have not yet been
transferred to the customers. The contract liabilities fluctuated
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 due to
fluctuation in sales orders with advanced payments.

(b)  During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, all
brought-forward contract liabilities at the beginning of the
financial years were fully recognised as revenue.

Unsatisfied performance obligations

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all performance
obligations not yet satisfied by the Group were from
contracts with original expected duration of less than
one year. Therefore, as permitted by the relevant
practical expedient under HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied performance obligations
was not disclosed.

Non-current assets by geographical
location

All of the Group’s non-current assets were located in the
PRC.

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

BEEEIHAEX

FAAHERA - HERDHHAX - THAX
ReRMEERANEEREBIEFENMAX

6 EXPENSES BY NATURE 6

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution

expenses, administrative expenses and net impairment losses

on financial assets and contract assets are analysed as follows: DT -
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000
20215 2020%F
AR% T ARBT T
Raw materials and merchandise used (Note 19) R # 4 & p & 5 7% (K 7E19) 58,270 54,562
Employee benefit expenses, including directors’ 1 E @FIFX (BIEEEE<E)
emoluments (Note 9) (BE9) 37,056 37,703
Manpower service expenses (Note 9) ANERRS A= (M5E9) 1,841 1,872
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) mR A EEE (E1e) 451 258
Utilities KEE 9,806 9,863
Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment #1Z « i M 3% &5 M (8 F #
and right-of-use asset (Note 14) BENE (fE14) 16,086 15,389
Depreciation of investment property (Note 15) &M% & (H5£15) 33 41
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 5B 27 B 1,843 1,600
Listing expenses EmAx - 13,319
Professional fees HEEH 2,761 3,105
Other tax and surcharges HFiE kM e 1,439 1,830
Packaging expenses BERX 1,722 1,569
Commission expenses HeZR 921 =
Waste handling charges BEYEREE 4,001 4,068
Net impairment losses on financial assets and & EIEE LA N EERE
contract assets B85 1,974 425
Others B 3,267 3,809
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution HEKA - HERDHX -
expenses, administrative expenses and net THASZERESREEK
impairment losses on financial assets and BREERERIEFE
contract assets kL] 141,471 149,413
OTHER INCOME 7 HfA
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
20215 2020%F
AR%T T ARET T
Government grants (Note) ERAT B (B aE) 1,800 5,065
Rental income (Note 15) WA (FH3E15) 17 34
Others Hih 127 229
1,944 5,328

Note: Government grants are all income related and there exists no
unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these

government grants.

ff

I o

BT B 2 B AKERE - B AT
ZERFEPORERGH A EMBIAE

Deyun Holding Ltd. (fEE =R E R 2 5*
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

8 OTHER LOSSES, NET 8 HiEEFEHE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
20215 20204

ARBT T AREBTT

Losses on disposal of properties, plant and HEYE  HERXENERE

equipment (3,174) (620)

Exchange differences fEHZER (515) (964)

(3,689) (1,584)

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES AND 9 EERABMIRAIERRKE
MANPOWER SERVICE EXPENSES, X (BREEMNE)

INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

20214 20204

ARBT T ARETT

Wages and salaries ITERS® 34,234 34,667
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RRBA — FE MG E
(Note a) (Kfsta) 2,719 2,877
Other staff welfares Hth 8 T2 5 103 159
Total employee benefit expenses EERNFAZ B
(including directors’ remunerations) (BREEEH2) 37,056 37,703
Manpower service expenses (Note b) ANERRH A= (KizEb) 1,841 1,872
38,897 39,575
Notes: B o
(@)  Pension costs — defined contribution plans (@) BHREKA-REHERE
The PRC ==}
As stipulated under the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC, HREHEERNEEEET  RPEYE
the subsidiary operating in the PRC contributes to state-sponsored HEARBAHEEEABRREBHEKRET
retirement plans for its employees. For the years ended 31 December Bl{EEH X - H 20214 K2020%FE12 A31
2021 and 2020, depending on the provinces of the employees’ HIEFE BRI EENELCFEEHOREE
registered residences and their current region of work, the subsidiary AMI{EE  HEBARBIEHEEEH &
contributed certain percentages of the salaries of its employees TEOHMEZR BV ELE—FETRZS
and had no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions HIIINEREHERBRBINELEEE X
or postretirement benefits beyond the contributions. The state- o ZEBRREMARIKETE B B EENK
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension BEMEZIMENRESEE -

obligations payable to the retired employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES AND 9
MANPOWER SERVICE EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b)  Manpower service expenses

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
entered into certain manpower service arrangements with an
external manpower service organisation in the PRC. Under these
arrangements, certain of the Group’s manpower requirements were
fulfilled by this organisation at agreed service fees whereas the
human resources provided were directly employed by the service
organisation. The individuals providing services to the Group did not
have any employment relationship with the Group.

(a) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group include nil and one director for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 respectively, whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented in Note 34. The emoluments payable to the
remaining five and four individuals for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 are as follows:

BEEEANBEEIRADERRSE
X (BRESEWE) @

BIeE - ()
(b) ANBRRBHX

H E20214 K202056128318 EFEE - &
SEE—RPREINBANERRIEHEIE ] L
HETANERBRIBZH - REBEAZH - Z
BBZHEREERRETAEEETAF
B MATRRENANERHZRERER
BES MASEREREHATHAEER
I BT R E R R -

(0 HEARSFMAL

H E2021F K20206F12A831H L FE » K
EEAEEa AL RBETER—F
% HSRBEMF4Z2IH ST -
H E2021F K2020F12A831H I FE - &
NHBTRERMNEATHMESHOT :

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

20214 20204

AR¥T T ARBFIT

Wages and salaries ITEEFH® 673 759
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BRIRE AR — FEHERETE 84 44
757 803

The emoluments fell within the following band:

BesmEmnT

Number of individuals

A
2021 2020
20214 20204
Emolument band MEEE
Not more than HKD 1,000,000 % 121,000,000/8 70 5 5

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

#H E20214F %2020%F128318 IFFEE - &
EEBEATNEESXNARZREHMA TR
AT BN & VE & I B sk fE M BE AR A 7] B Ay 88
B EABERRE -

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BEE#ZERERAT*) —T - —FF3f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

10 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS), NET

1"

10 @MEWA ~(KA) FHE

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
20214 20204
ARET ARET T
Finance income mME KA
Interest income rMewA 1477 388
Finance costs [5=9%:N
Unwinding of discount on other payables LA JE < SR I8 A 47 3R [0 4 (10) (8)
Interest expenses on bank borrowings SRITERFERX (118) (626)
Less: capitalised on qualifying assets W BEREEEARNL 5 30
____________ (123)  (604)
Finance income/(costs), net BMEWA S (RA) BEE 1,354 (216)

Borrowing costs have been capitalised at rates 4.35% of and
4.93% per annum on qualifying assets for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 respectively.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Taxation has been provided at the appropriate rates prevailing
in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, Deyun
Technology, the Group's subsidiary in the PRC, has qualified
for high and new technology enterprises status and is
therefore subject to a preferential income tax rate of 15%.

Pursuant to the enactment of two-tiered profit tax rates by the
Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong from the year of
assessment 2020/21 onwards, the first HKD2 million of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HKD2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Hope Faith
Limited, the Group's subsidiary in Hong Kong, was a qualifying
entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime with
assessable profits less than HKD2 million and is therefore
subject to a tax rate of 8.25%.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no provision for
Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group had no assessable profit in
Hong Kong.

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2021

11

HZE2021F K20205E12 831 B I E » R1T
BRAERAT D RIEHAEEREERIET ST
RM4.35% 24.93% ) FFIRE R o

Fre®ipx

BB AR SR A P 0 PR 2
BRI -

#H E20214F F2020F12A31H IEFE » &
SEEPBRNHNBRAREERBZALKRER
AR EA A ZEERAMERE
15% °

BEESRERHENFEHMAES - B
20021 AMEER  AEREEERBNE
2008 78 70 )% F| 15 4%8.25% B R =R F - 200
BT ERRE A 1R 16.5%F R T -

B E2021F12A31HIEFE - AEBERNES
MEBAREHERAT AR EREANEH
M AR E g H B R E FE R 2008 %
TC AL %8.25% 71 KR FH o

B ZE2020F12A3MBIEFE - ARAEEL
EEBERFEN ML ERNGREUBERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 FEHEX @)
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
20215 20204

ARBT T AREBTT

Current income tax BVHAFT 15 %5
— PRC corporate income tax — R EMEH 2,618 8,859
— Hong Kong profits tax — BB NEN 91 -
2,709 8,859
Deferred income tax (Note 24) EIEFTISHE (M 5E24) 189 (87)
Income tax expense FriSHi 2,898 8,772
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000
20214 2020%F
AR®T T ARET T
Profit before income tax R BT 15 256 A v A 24,080 52,593

Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to profits 3% B B /2 &% FIl i F /9 F1 &

of the respective subsidiaries STERFIE 3,431 7,661
Tax effect of: UTIEENREZE
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose AT 0% B =2 1,009 2,505
Super deductions from research and T 35 A R R 40 (B 5E)

development expenditure (Note) (1,542) (1,394)
Income tax expense FTiSfiF X 2,898 8,772
Note: B o
According to the relevant laws and regulations promulgated by the State BETHRERREERBHOMBBER LA
Administration of Taxation of the PRC, enterprises engaging in research REWHE N EEREEE T EFEERR %
and development activities are entitled to claim 150% to 175% of their FEF  EATE LM ER I A150%E175% F 3R
research and development expenses incurred as tax deductible expenses ERTHFBAY

when determining their assessable profits for that year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BRER
The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the FRERBRZARNBES AR MR A
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted B ZE20214F K2020F 12 A318 IEFEH D 2
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the years TEBRNETEHE - UL B OEA
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. The weighted average IR AR N HE T B R IR 2020512 168
number of ordinary shares used for such purpose has been ETHERMBITERORNDETHLEE
retrospectively adjusted for the effects of the issue of shares in TEPFE -

connection with the capitalisation issue which took place on
16 December 2020.

2021 2020
20215 2020%F
Profit for the year attributable to owners  ZNA A1 A A FE {5 F RE 5
of the Company (RMB’000) (AR FT) 21,182 43,821
Weighted average number of ordinary BT T mARE i T8
shares in issue (thousands of shares) (F1) 1,249,644 945,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREAREEREF
(RMB cents) (AR¥S) 1.70 4.64
There were no differences between the basic and diluted A A E20214F 202012 A31H (L FE I
earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary BETEIINBEEELER WERER
shares outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2021 REERAEESR -
and 2020.

152 Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

13 MiE 2 F

N5 B PA20214F 2020412 A31 B &9 = E fff

13 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 and

2020 are set out below. BAREIAT o
Place of incorporationand  Principal activities and Particulars of  Percentage of effective interest
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity place of operation paid up capital  held/controlled by the Group
SRR L BHR KEBEE/BHH
WEARAR EARRER TEEBREEHY BRRAFE EREZADNL
2021 2020
20215 20205
Direct Interests:
EfRE:
Deyun Investment Limited BVI, limited liability company  Investment holding in BVI UsSD1 100% 100%
RBRAHES BRAR  EEBRLEERERR 1%
Circle Time Limited BVI, limited liability company  Investment holding in BVI UsSD1 100% -
RBRAHES BRAR  EEERLEHERERR 1%
Indirect Interests:
R
Deyun Holding (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in Hong Kong HKD1 100% 100%
company
& ARAH EEBREER 1787
Fujian Deyun Consulting Services The PRC, limited liability Investment holding in the PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
Co. Ltd.* company
RREELARBARLA HE - BRAH EREREER AR 10,000,007
Fujian Deyun Technology Company ~ The PRC, limited liability Manufacturing of lace and RMB98,670,000 100% 100%
Limited* company provision of dyeing services
in the PRC
RREENRRHERAA HE - BERAH ERERETER AR 98,670,007
RRAEBIRIE
Hope Faith Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Sales of shoes in Hong Kong HKD1 100% -
company
AHARAT &k BRAH EERHERR 18T

* For identification purposes only

* EHEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

14 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT MYE BEERREREAES

AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET =
Plant and Office Motor  Construction Right-of-
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles inprogress  Sub-total  use asset Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B BREREE HARG RE  HEEIR Mt EREEE @it
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARET:
At 1 January 2020 202051418
Cost KA 40,997 258,809 3,808 1,090 1513 306,217 412 310,338
Accumulated depreciation 2itHE (10262)  (145,831) (2,591) (700) - (159384) (1317)  (160,701)
Net book amount REFE 30,735 112,978 1,217 390 1513 146,833 2,804 149,637
Year ended 31 December BZ20205125318
2020 LEE
Opening net book amount BOEEEFE 30,735 112,978 1,217 390 1,513 146,833 2,804 149,637
Additions HE % 7,904 86 = 8,645 16,731 - 16,731
Transfers gz - 1,530 357 - (1,887) - - -
Depreciation (Note 6) & (Hfit6) 2019  (12763) (361) (104) = (15,307) 8) (15389
Disposals e - (1,606) - - - (1,606) - (1,606)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 28,752 108,043 1,299 286 8,271 146,651 2,722 149,373
At 31 December 2020 #2020512A31R
Cost KA 41,093 264,444 4251 1,090 8271 319,149 4121 323,210
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (12,341)  (156,401) (2.952) (804) - (17249%) (1399)  (173,897)
Net book amount BEFE 28,752 108,043 1,299 286 8271 146,651 2,722 149,373
Year ended 31 December #22021%125318
2021 LEE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 28,752 108,043 1,299 286 8,271 146,651 2,122 149,373
Additions HE 1,382 13,896 248 1,832 3473 20,831 - 20,831
Transfers g3 - 11,744 - - (11,744) = = -
Depreciation (Note 6) & (Kfi6) 104  (13453) (386) (61) - (16,008 (82 (16,86)
Disposals & - (4,002) - - - (4,002) - (4,002)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 28,030 116,228 1,161 2,057 = 147,476 2,640 150,116
At 31 December 2021 #20215128318
Cost BA 42,475 279,053 4,499 2,922 - 328,949 4121 333,070
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (14,445)  (162,825) (3,338) (865) - (181473) (1481)  (182,954)
Net book amount BEFE 28,030 116,228 1,161 2,057 = 147,476 2,640 150,116
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

14 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15

AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (cContinued)

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
depreciation expenses have been charged in cost of sales,
selling and distribution expenses and administrative expenses
as below:

MYX BERREBRERESR

= (@)

H E20219F K2020F12A31B L EE - 7 E
FAYEEHEERAE HERDHEBE I RITH
BRI :

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’'000

20215 20204

AR®T T ARET T

Cost of sales 81 & B A 15,448 14,731
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HRAX 7 7
Administrative expenses THRAX 631 651
16,086 15,389

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15 REWE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

20214 20204

AR®T ARBTTT

At 1 January M1ATH 341 382
Depreciation (Note 6) & (i sE6) (33) (41)
At 31 December M®12H31H 308 341

The Group leased out an investment property through
operating lease. The lease typically runs for an initial period of
5 years. The lease does not include variable lease payments.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the fair value of
the Group's investment property was approximately
RMB1,270,000 and RMB1,240,000. These fair values are
determined by the directors of the Company mainly with
reference to a valuation performed by an independent
qualified professional valuer, using the income capitalisation
approach.

AREEBEERENE—BRANE 7
E—@i5 AYST - AEL K2 FHAE
BEL

MR20214F %2020F 128310 A& BEKE Y
(2 ANTFEHBARE,270,000t X AR
1,240,0007C c ZE A FENIARRESEE
2EBIEERBEMEMERABRAERE
EEITHEEERERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{£2021F 12 A31H It F[Z

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued) 15 REY = @)
The following amounts have been recognised in the Ty & EBEE NG W kR

consolidated income statement:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
20215 20204

ARBT T ARETT

Rental income from investment property HEMERS WA (HFE7)

(Note 7) 17 34
Direct operating expenses attributable to EEHSRANKREDE

investment property that generates rental ERREELEREZ

income (7) (8)

10 26
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e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 ELEE

Software
RMB’000
B
ARET T
At 1 January 2020 720201818
Cost B 1,402
Accumulated amortisation RETEEH (569)
Net book amount BREFE 833
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12A318 L FEE
Opening net book amount HAIRREF (B 833
Additions NE 70
Amortisation (Note 6) # 55 (ff15E6) (258)
Closing net book amount HIRBREF(E 645
At 31 December 2020 7A2020512H31H
Cost B 1,472
Accumulated amortisation RErHEE (827)
Net book amount BREFE 645
Year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F128318 L FE
Opening net book amount BRI AR E R (B 645
Additions NE 1,042
Amortisation (Note 6) 55 (M 7¥6) (451)
Closing net book amount HIR AR F (B 1,236
At 31 December 2021 A2021%12831H
Cost BAR 2,514
Accumulated amortisation RET#SS (1,278)
Net book amount BRmEFE 1,236

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
amortisation of approximately RMB96,000 and RMB51,000
has been charged in administrative expenses and
approximately RMB355,000 and RMB207,000 has been
charged in cost of sales respectively.

Deyun Holding Ltd. (fEE =R E R 2 5*

— = —
=

=

H ZE2021F N2020F12A31B L FE - 5 5l
#) A K #96,0007T & A K #51,0007T 2 # 54
B BTERFAZ N - M4 A RE355,0007T &
AR#207,0007 B B $HEK AR ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

18

CATEGORY

17 RERETHNEMT A

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
20214 20204

AR¥TT ARETT

Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost B A R A % B
Trade and bills receivables (Note 20) B 5 W GRIE & R E R
(Pi5£20) 18,774 13,060
Other receivables (Note 18) H fh e U SR IE (B RE18) 1,011 2,167
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) BeMESEEY (HE21) 182,294 109,483
202,079 124,710
Financial liabilities sRmERE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B RR 2 F B E
Trade payables (Note 25) E 5 R 3kE (M #E25) 20,221 10,706
Other payables and accruals i Ath & A SR8 K B 5T R 13,853 32,649
Bank borrowings (Note 26) R1TfE R (FI5E26) - 13,000
34,074 56,355
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 18 AR RER Mt EKRRE
RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000
20214 20204
AR¥T T AREFTT
Current portion B ERER
Prepayments to suppliers TE AT 44 FE 7 IR 370 613
Other prepayments H MBI FHIE 242 9
Other tax receivables H b A7 18 - 895
Other receivables (Note a) H b U 28 (B 5Ea) 1,011 2,167
Prepaid listing expenses (Note b) FE ET RS (B9 sEb) - 6,329
1,623 10,013
Non-current portion Ik BP HA &R
Prepayments of acquisition of properties, W EEYI 2 - BB MR HY
plant and equipment AR IR 7,807 277

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2021




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

18

19

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(@  As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of
other receivables approximated their fair values.

(b)  The prepaid listing expenses as at 31 December 2020 were
incurred in connection with the listing of the Group and will be
deducted from equity upon listing.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments and other
receivables were denominated in the following currencies:

18 FATFIE K H b fE W FX I8 ()

P EE -

(@) 720214 K%20205128318 » H b fE k3K
ENEROEAEAFERE

(b) H2020F12A3THMEMN EmAZEASE
ErmAaR TR EmEYEERSRINR -

R ER B TR SR K E A R W R IR RO AR E B A
THEHEHE -

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
20215 20204

ARBT T ARET T

RMB AR 9,259 4,653
HKD T 171 5,637
9,430 10,290

INVENTORIES 19 78
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
202145 20204
ARET AREFTT
Raw materials R % 9,737 9,272

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 amounted to approximately RMB58,270,000 and
RMB54,562,000 respectively.

H E20214F &2020F12A31BHILFE » &
B4 A A R%58,270,0007T & A R
54,562,0007T K 17 B X AN R A B 2 05T A
SHE RN o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

20 CONTRACT ASSETS, TRADE AND BILLS 20 EHNEE - ESZRRBURERE

RECEIVABLES WRE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000
20215 2020%F
AR®T T ARET T
Contract assets aREE 8,348 7,564
Less: Provision for impairment of B BREERBERE
contract assets (28) (8)
Contract assets, net anEEFRE 8320 755
Trade receivables 2 5 EUWRIE 21,289 10,461
Bills receivables A ES 100 3,260
Less: Provision for impairment of B B S EUGRIE R E R
trade receivables (2,615) (661)
Trade and bills receivables, net BHRMHEREREEFER 18774 13,060
27,094 20,616
Contract assets represent the Group’s rights to consideration EHNEEEASEREXBETHKERAR
for work completed but unbilled for its business. The contract B AR B W ER BT o 2RI BK A &
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights BB (—REHE—Z2=@A8) AHEEHE
become unconditional which generally take one to three BEEHRIWFIA - HRAEBERFERZA
months. The balances of contract assets fluctuated from year- FIiREEMIRBHARAZSELR - R
to-year during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 HZE2021F K2020F 12 A31H IEFEMAE L
as the Group provided varying amount of goods or services BERRIZEIZE o
that were unbilled before the year-ends.
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of MR20214F 2020128310 - 6 HEE - B
contract assets, trade and bills receivables approximated their SERFIBEREREENRAEEEQAFE
fair values. GBI
The Group's sales were generally on credit terms primarily REEHENEER—BREZN T30E60A -

from 30 to 60 days.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

20 CONTRACT ASSETS, TRADE AND BILLS 20 EHNEE - ESZRRBURERE

RECEIVABLES (Continued) WEE @
Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of REBEBESHEERBEBENEELNT :

contract assets are as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
20215 20204

AR¥TT ARETT

As at 1 January M1A1H 8 =

Provision for impairment on a collective basis & 2t [F] E X 5+ 42 B s (B £ 5 20 8

As at 31 December ®12A318 28 8

Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade REERE S RUGRIEREREZHFIFN
receivables are as follows: Ik

2021 2020

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

20215 20204

AR¥TT ARETT

As at 1 January RKR1HA1R 661 612
Provision for impairment on an individual basis 1% Bl £ £ 5142 & 35 (B #é 1,617 386
Provision for impairment on a collective basis 1% £ B E SR H R E B s 354 92
Reversal of provision for impairment BB 13 1 188 [m] 17) 61)
Written-off of provision for impairment TSR R (B R - (368)
As at 31 December M12A318 2,615 661
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

20 CONTRACT ASSETS, TRADE AND BILLS 20 EHNEE - ESZRRBURERE

RECEIVABLES (Continued) WEE &)
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis of trade 20214 2020512 A318 - & 5 E W KA
and bills receivables, based on invoice date, was as follows: NMEWERREZABRNRRS AT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
20214 20204

AR¥TT ARETT

1 to 3 months 12318 A 16,659 10,768
Over 3 months 3E A A E 4,730 2,953
21,389 13,721
Less:Provision for impairment of trade B 5 EWGRIE R E B
receivables (2,615) (661)
18,774 13,060
The carrying amounts of the Group’s contract assets, trade REEGHNEE B H5RUGIERERER
and bills receivables were denominated in the following RIEREE LA T3 BB EHE
currencies:
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
20214 20204

ARBT T ARETT

RMB N 26,806 20,328
usb ETT 288 288
27,094 20,616
The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December 20214 2020512 A31H M &= 5 ER R
2021 and 2020 was the carrying value of the receivables and BEXFTEWFIERENEENREE -
contract assets mentioned above. The Group did not hold any ANEEWEFEERKTEREAER -

collateral as security.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 BERBEEEY

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

20214 20204

ARET ARET T

Cash on hand FERS 9 36
Cash at banks RITIEE 182,285 109,447
Cash and cash equivalents HeERREeEEY 182,294 109,483

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the ReRBeSEYRGFEERERERME R

purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows: FEATIER :
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
20214 20204
AR®T T ARBFT
Cash and cash equivalents HehBeEEY 182,294 109,483

AEERERReFEYMNREEATIE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash

equivalents were denominated in the following currencies: BESTE ¢
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
20215 2020%F
AR%T T ARET T
RMB AR 124,973 93,485
usb eV 10,484 8,519
HKD B IT 46,837 7,479
182,294 109,483

RITEESBRIET B BITERIRZTZ B HREX
B o R20214 K2020E128318 - HE K
HeEEYHNERMEHEEQNFEEE -

Cash at banks earned interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rate. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximated
their fair values.

20214 %2020F 128310 A& EHR &
MR EEBYH R4 A AR%180,455,0007T
N AR #109,447,0007T @ 77 B3R R AY IR
17 T8 & < 0 A B X A B AT 28 4 1 B
BIRBARERRE ©

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounting to approximately RMB180,455,000
and RMB109,447,000, respectively, were deposited with the
banks in the PRC where the remittance of funds out of the
PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the Government of the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 R
Number of Nominal Nominal
shares value value
HKD'000 RMB'000
g 4= HE HE
THELT ARETT
Share capital [N
Authorised: ERE
As at 1 January 2020 2020F 1818 50,000 390 345
Decrease in authorised ordinary shares 74202091 5 16 B s 2 &% 1.00% T
of USD1.00 each on 16 January 2020 AR E LR
(50,000) (390) (345)
Increase in authorised ordinary share M202051 A 168 2 INEAX0.01E T
of HKD0.01 each on 16 January 2020 B)ATE & AR 38,000,000 380 337
As at 31 December 2020 and 202012 H310 K&202141 /818
1 January 2021 38,000,000 380 337
Increase in authorised ordinary share AT E Bk (M a)
(Note a) 9,962,000,000 99,620 83,840
As at 31 December 2021 20214128318 10,000,000,000 100,000 84,177
Number of Nominal Nominal
shares value value
HKD'000 RMB’000
[z 4= HfE HfE
THT ARETT
Issued: 28T
As at 1 January 2020 20201818 20,000 156 138
Cancellation of ordinary shares of 202051 8168 EE M 1.00E T
USD1.00 each on 16 January 2020 H) 3 38 AR (20,000) (156) (138)
Issuance of ordinary shares of HKD0.01 ~ 74202015 16 H %178 %0.01/45 7T
each on 16 January 2020 FOR=RETS 20,000 —* —*
As at 31 December 2020 and 72020912 A318 %2021F1A1H
1 January 2021 20,000 —* —*
Capitalisation issue (Note b) BB AT (FitsEb) 944,980,000 9,450 7,883
Issuance of shares upon listing (Note ¢) 74 _E B 47 A% 9 (Fif3Ec) 315,000,000 3,150 2,628
As at 31 December 2021 20214128318 1,260,000,000 12,600 10,511
& The amount was rounded to the nearest thousand. & SRAOBEERELTMA
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e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

22 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 22 RAR K@ E )

(Continued)

Notes: B o

(@ On 13 January 2021, the authorised share capital of the (@) M2021F18138 ' AR AEERAELE
Company was increased to HKD100,000,000 comprising 100,000,000% 7T * £ 510,000,000,000A%
10,000,000,000 shares of HKDO0.01 each. FRREEO0.01B TR °

(b)  Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders (b) REREN2020F12A16BRBHEM
on 16 December 2020, a total of 944,980,000 shares of RBR FRABARARMNDEERTH
HKDO0.01 each were allotted and issued to the shareholders of 9,449,800/ Jt (#J A R #7,953,0007T) # 75
the Company whose names appear on the register of members BEABER EWASHEMR2020612A31H
of the Company as at 31 December 2020 on a pro rata basis ZHARRNBREZMEAR D BT - R LI
by way of capitalisation of HKD9,449,800 (approximately fid 2% K2 25174 $£944,980,000/% & ILHE {E0.01
RMB7,953,000) from the Company’s share premium account on BITE R G o BRI EITE R20214F1 813
the Listing Date. The capitalisation issue was completed on 13 H5ERK °
January 2021.

(¢ On 13 January 2021, pursuant to the listing on the Main Board () M2021FE1R138  BERBEBBAXZFT
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Company BRARERLEM - AR E AFAR0.4%E T
issued a total of 315,000,000 ordinary shares at a price of H) (& 1% 3247 & ££315,000,000/% L B% - &
HKDO.4 per share for a total gross proceeds (before related share SEE BT (RN ARERD TR AA)
issuance costs) of HKD126,000,000. #£5126,000,0007% JT °

23 CONTRACT LIABILITIES, OTHER 23 ENEE - HUMENARERE

PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS at FIE

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000
20215 2020%F
AR®T AR T T
Current portion BIER S
Payables for acquisition of properties, plant BEWHE  BERZED
and equipment FE IR 9,648 16,550

Other tax payables H Ath FE S B IE 972 =

Other payables H At P& 5 5K IE 622 369

Accruals for auditor’s remuneration JE 5 4% SR 37 B 1,494 1,600

Accruals for employee benefit expenses FEEHE B @A 2,632 2,744

Accruals for professional fees EETEXER 457 1,677

Other accruals H fth FEET 5/ IE 154 173

Accrued listing expenses FEET ETR® - 10,747

Deposits from customers 5 P BUGRIA 1,263 3,999

Contract liabilities (Note 5(e)) & # B8 & (KEEseE) 588 3,440

17,830 41,299

Non-current portion JEENEAEB o

Other payables Hth & 5 5RIE 1,478 1,533

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of M2021F KX2020F 128318 » REEHME

the Group's other payables and accruals approximated their RFRIE R ERT AR REEEE A FERE ©

fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

23 CONTRACT LIABILITIES, OTHER 23 ENEE HMBEAREBERE
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued) T FRIE ()
The carrying amounts of the Group’s contract liabilities, other AEEEGHERE - EMEMNFRIERERHIER
payables and accruals were denominated in the following BREEN T E8HE
currencies:
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
202145 20204

AR¥TT ARETT

RMB AR 16,947 32,633
usD E=pv 376 553
HKD BIT 1,985 9,646
19,308 42,832
24 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 24 EEBIBEA B
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
20214 20204

AR¥T T ARETT

Deferred tax liabilities FERIEEE 535 346
The movement in deferred tax liabilities during the years IEEFTE B E R E E20214F 2020512 A31
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, without taking into HiEFERE e CRET KA IERR %A
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax ERERAERR) AT

jurisdiction, is as follows:

Accelerated

Deferred tax Contracts tax

(liabilities)/assets assets depreciation Others Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

EEHRE(BE) BE EHNEE MEBBITE Hit @t

AREBTR AR®Tr AR%®Tr AR¥TxR

At 1 January 2020 720201 A1H (229) (175) (29) (433)
Charged to the consolidated RERE RS R G

income statement 181 61) (33) 87

At 31 December 2020 72020912 H31H (48) (236) (62) (346)
Charged to the consolidated NG e Tl

income statement 44 (188) (45) (189)

At 31 December 2021 M2021412A31H (4) (424) (107) (535)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

24 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

25

The Group had undistributed earnings of RMB143,067,000
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB119,284,000), which, if
paid out as dividends, would be subject to tax in the hands of
the recipient. An assessable temporary difference exists, but
no deferred liability has been recognised as the parent entity
is able to control the timing of distributions of dividends from
the PRC subsidiary and is not expected to distribute these
profits in the foreseeable future.

TRADE PAYABLES

24 EEFEEE (&)

MR2021F12A318 - AEBH KD K& F
A AN R #143,067,0007T (20204 : AR
119,284,0007T) * {E AR BIR A - WA
BEMTATE - BT R R A B 72 AR B
BRARSDKEEMEEH  BrfERRKTE
DRSS FEAFRERE5 B EE
RIELEEE °

25 ESEARE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’'000

20215 20205

AR%T T ARBTIT

Trade payables 2 RN HRIE 20,221 10,706

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis of trade
payables, based on invoice date, was as follows:

720214 %2020 128318 - E 5 ER KA
REZASHNERSTOT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

202145 20204

AR¥T AREFTT

1 to 3 months 12318 A 17,728 9,631
Over 3 months 3E A LA E 2,493 1,075
20,221 10,706

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of
the Group’s trade payables were denominated in RMB and
approximated their fair values.

R20214 20205128318 ' A& B E HfE
NHRBEBNGEEENAARBAE  THERQ
FEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

26 BANK BORROWINGS 26 RITHER
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
20214 20204
ARET T ARET T
Current portion B EA 55 17
Bank borrowings — secured RITER—FER - 13,000

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings were
carried at a floating rate of 4.4% per annum.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of the bank
borrowings were denominated in RMB and approximated their
fair values.

As at 31 December 2020, the above bank borrowings were
secured by the Group’s properties, plant and equipment with

carrying amounts of RMB19,360,000.

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings were
repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has no undrawn banking
facilities (2020: RMB62,000,000).

27 DIVIDEND 27

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

28 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

28 RERERERME

(a) RATEHRANE N EEEEL W

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income

tax to net cash generated from REFHYER
operations
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000
20215 20204
AR®T T ARET T
Profit before income tax Fr BT 15 56 A v A 24,080 52,593
Adjustments for: AT S IEEL A
Interest income F B YA (1,477) (388)
Interest expenses B 123 604
Depreciation of properties, plant and VI BE RERETE
equipment 16,004 15,307
Depreciation of right-of-use asset FREEENE 82 82
Depreciation of investment property BEMENE 33 41
Amortisation of intangible assets A R 451 258
Losses on disposal of properties, plant HEWE - B &R ER
and equipment & 18 3,174 620
Provision for impairment of trade BORBGRIERANEE
receivables and contract assets VERIEEE L ] 1,991 486
Reversal of provision for impairment of ‘& 5 i U 3% T8 s (B 7 55 5 [o)
trade receivables (17) 61)
44,444 69,542
Changes in working capital: EEEEE
— Trade and bills receivables — B RIKFIE R EWEE (7,540) 2,210
— Contract assets —ERNEE (764) 9,029
— Prepayments and other receivables — TB5 R IE 2 B M R R IE 2,073 (2,621)
— Inventories —FE (465) 650
— Trade payables — B I ENIEA 9,410 (3,352)
— Other payables and accruals — H A FE A FRIE R e 5T R IE (13,818) 10,145
— Contract liabilities —AREaE (2,852) 2,133
Net cash generated from operations BEEANIRRFE 30,488 87,736
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

28 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 28 FERERERMTE @)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) In the consolidated statements of (b) RGZEBRERERFP HEY
cash flows, proceeds from disposal X BERIKENABREE
of properties, plant and equipment &
comprise:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
20214 20204

ARBT T ARET T

Net book amount disposed &R ERmEFE 4,002 1,606

Losses on disposal of properties, HEWME  BERLENEE
plant and equipment (3,174) (620)
828 986

Proceeds from disposal of properties, HEYE  BERZED

plant and equipment FR18RIR 828 101

Non-cash movement IER S B - 885

828 986

(c) The reconciliations of liabilities arising (c) METHEEMNBEEYWIRNOT :

from financing activities are as follows:
Amounts
due to Bank

shareholders borrowings Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

P RERE RITIEM st

ARBTT AREBETT AR®TE

As at 1 January 2020 72020F1H1H 5,000 13,000 18,000
Cash flows BeRE
— Proceeds from bank borrowings —IRITE R EIE - 13,000 13,000
— Repayments of bank borrowings —[EIBIRITER = (13,000) (13,000)
— Consideration paid for the acquisition — — gt/ Zg & 48 g —
of a subsidiary in respect to B ATE
reorganisation ®rE (5,000) _ (5,000)
As at 31 December 2020 7A2020512H31H - 13,000 13,000
Cash flows ReRE
— Repayments of bank borrowings —([EEIRITER - (13,000) (13,000)
As at 31 December 2021 A2021%F12831H - - =
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12A31H I FE

29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29 HAAE
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not have MR20214F K%2020F12A318 * NEE W E T
any material contingent liabilities. fAIERKAELE -

30 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30 EXREE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the years but REREBFTHNEREENERRZAT ¢

not yet incurred is as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
20215 20204

AR¥T T ARBTT

Contracted but not provided for EREESEIGE S 185 2,781
31 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITIES 31 EEBERERARNEE
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as securities for BEEFERIBARTEFRERARNEENK
current bank borrowings are: mEMNT :
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000
20215 2020%F

ARBT ARETT

Non-current portion IEREEB D
Charge at floating rate B A R K
Properties, plant and equipment (Note 26) M - BB KA (MiEE2e) - 19,360

Total assets pledged as securities for bank BHEIRERBITERERDD
borrowings B ERTE - 19,360
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BB ARS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, MR—FHENEEXHEEZESS—7 - 5
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise HE— MBS EERREINERNTZE T -
significant influence over the other party in making financial B8 A REE 77

and operating decisions.

Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to R 7 X B LR B B A 1l - IR AR
common control or joint control. R e
Members of key management and their close family members FTEBTREKE REFFITR BT o

are also considered as related parties.

(a) Parent entity (a) B EE
The ultimate holding company and controlling B AR A B AR AR B AA BT 51 1 38R o

shareholders are disclosed in Note 1.1.

(b) Key management compensation (b) TEEEEFH M
Key management includes directors and a senior Ig%ﬁ@@@%g%%% :{EZ ]
management who have the responsibility for the &iﬂﬁ$%§§§m§$%%%& E_ﬁ@ °
planning, directing, controlling and the execution of Eff BN EREREAOFHMIITAT :

the activities of the Group. The compensation paid or
payable to key management is shown below:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
20215 2020%F

ARBT T ARETT

Wages and salaries TERFS 535 488
Pension costs — defined contribution plan  BIKE KA — 7 E H 32 71 30
606 518
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 33 AREINHMBRRRRFHHES

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company as at

31 December 2021

B

ARARIR2021F12 A31 BB AR R R

2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
202145 20204
B 5 ARET T ARBEFIT
Assets BE
Non-current asset FkRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RE AR 186,371 186,371
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TR IR 171 6,329
Amounts due from subsidiaries J7E U B BB A R FUE 88,400 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEFEY 1,366 =
__________ 89,937 . .6329
Total assets BEE#E 276,308 192,700
Equity 3
Equity attributable to owners of the  ZNQ TR A E(HRERS
Company
Share capital A& 10,512 —*
Share premium f&1D & B 80,081 -
Reserves G (a) 186,373 186,373
Accumulated losses 2 EE (a) (28,249) (22,423)
Total equity Gt 248,717 163,950
Liabilities =L
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals FEETFRIE 1,981 12,616
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE 4B B A R FUA 25,610 16,134
Total liabilities BEEE 27591 28,750
Total equity and liabilities EExREaERE 276,308 192,700

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and

was signed on its behalf.

QR AR N KR B AL E =2 5202243
A25B AT WHRIATALTREEZE -

Lin Mingiang Wei Cunzhuo
MER BEN
Director Director

EF EE

* The balance was rounded to the nearest thousand. * PRANBEREATN
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e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %2021 12A31H I FE

33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 33 AREINHMBRRRRFHHES

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE @)
COMPANY (continued)
(a) Reserves movement of the Company (@) XRATFEEES
Share Capital Exchange  Accumulated Total
premium reserve reserves losses reserves
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

B tiaE BXfif Eiff 2iER AR
ARBTE  AR®TT  ARETR  AR%TR  ARETR

At 1 January 2020 R202051A1A - 186,371 2 (7,243) 179,130
Loss and total comprehensive ENEEREABRLES

losses for the year - - - (15,180) (15,180)
At 31 December 2020 and R20206128318 &

1 January 2021 2021%181A = 186,371 2 (22,423) 163,950
Loss for the year FRER - - - (5,826) (5,826)
Total comprehensive loss Ei) g =Et - - - (5,826) (5,826)
Transactions with owners BREARS
Capitalisation issue B ELT (7,883) - - - (7,883)
Issurance of ordinary shares BOARALRR

of the Company 102,486 - - - 102,486
Share issurance costs RAZTRA (14,522) - - - (14,522)
Total transactions with owners ~ EEEARZHEE 8O& - - - 8081
At 31 December 2021 R2021%512A318 80,081 186,371 2 (28,249) 238,205
Note: P
The capital reserve of the Company represents the aggregated KRR ERFEEEAR R RBRKRNE.2F7
net asset values of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company HOEHEKENORBA RN EEFEESE -

pursuant to the Reorganisation as set out in Note 1.2.
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e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 34 EEREA R ER
DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=M =
The remuneration of each director is set out below: BEZNHMIINOT
Employer's

Allowances  contribution

Discretionary ~ benefitsin ~ to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary bonus kind scheme Total
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

EER REIHERE
BEEpA g ik B BNEN  AENER i
ARETR AR%TR AR®TRE ARBTT AR¥TR AR¥TR

Fortheyearended  EHZ2021%
31 December 2021 12A3BLEE

Executive directors: HiTES:
- Lin Bingzhong -HRE - 87 - - - 87
- Lin Mingiang —HER - 97 - - - 97
- Lin Chaowei — e - 97 - - 19 116
- Lin Chaowen —HEX - 97 - - 17 114
- Wei Cunzhuo —REA - 97 - - 19 116
~ Lin Lil — BRI - 60 - - 16 76
- 535 - - n 606
Fortheyearended  EZ2020%
31 December 2020 128318 LEE
Executive directors: HiTES:
- Lin Bingzhong -HRAE - 97 - - 8 105
- Lin Mingiang —HER - 37 - - = 37
- Lin Chaowei — PR - 97 - - 8 105
- Lin Chaowen —MEX - 97 - - 7 104
- Wei Cunzhuo -BEN - 97 - - - 97
~ Lin Lil — BRI - 63 - - 7 70
- 438 - - 30 518
Lin Mingiang, Lin Bingzhong, Lin Chaowei, Lin Chaowen, MR - MER - WREE - I 3
Wei Cunzhuo and Lin Lili were appointed as executive 7 19 B AR F & 72202093 200 E £ (T
directors of the Company on 20 March 2020. The RANTHITESE - EZME HIRMEW
directors’ emoluments are presented as if the executive HMITEFENEEB E2020612A31H
directors had been appointed throughout the year ended IFFERNEZENEEZS] -
31 December 2020.
Sheng Zijiu, Chow Kit Ting, Yip Koon Shing and Wong BFAL ABRE EEKRKEFEBER
Chun Sek Edmund were appointed as independent 2020512 A 16 B EZ R A RIE I
non-executive directors of the Company on 16 HITEE - HZE20219F %2020 12A31
December 2020. During the years ended 31 December HIEFE BUFRTESUERES
2021 and 2020, the independent non-executive FHWREMESHE -

directors have received nil directors’ remuneration in the
capacity of directors.
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e MR ERRMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31B I F &

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (cContinued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
none of the directors of the Company (i) received or
paid any remuneration in respect of accepting office;
(i) received or paid emoluments in respect of services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiaries undertaking; or (iii) waived or
has agreed to waive any emolument.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
no emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of directors’ services
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the directors;
nor are any payable.

(c) Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
no consideration was provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services.

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such
directors

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and controlled
entities with such directors.

(e) Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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3 EEEANRER ®)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEME @

HZE20214F 2020F12A31H L FE -
4 7K 2 R) ZE B() B 3 409 Bk oz U B =k &
MEREHH : (NVEERAQ R BHRE
Bt /&8 X 7 35 75 1Y PR 75 U R S I ST B <8
H(INMENKE REREEMMS -

EERNREANRALLER

HZE20214 %20206F12A31H LFE -
MEFEKLEEZRENME  RIKE
SR ENmESEERBEESIN
e ¢ IREAT (R BT FR0E o

RERKEERBEMEAE=S
RHEKRE

HE20214 2020512 A31H L EE -
MEREREEEREMEE = FREE
KE -

FHRUEE -BERESEZES
MEEREEFBENERS
ERANER - EERKREM
RENEHR

20214 220205128310 » EEE
LEE AAMESEH AR RER
EHENERAS T ANER  EEX
RHEAMRZ Z %2 -

EERNRE  ZERENHH
EXER

BEmaMBRRABREEIN  BET
UARREERNETERIEEREFE
AiERMRFERIFRETAFREFER
HAKEXGABNEARS  RHR
BH -
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